WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING OF THE LOWER TOWNSHIP COUNCIL
NOVEMBER 3, 2025 ~ 5:00 p.m.

Opening Announcement ‘
Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence
Roli Cali & Determination of Quorum

Work Session
Commissioner An

drew Bulakowski - Presentation

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes ~ October 20, 2025

Approval of New Jersey State Firefighter's Association Membership — M. Alexander, Erma Volunteer Fire Company

Res. #2025-357
Res. #2025-358.
Res. #2025-359
Res, #2025-360
Res. #2025-361
Res. #2025-362
Res, #2025-363
Res, #2025-364
Res. #2025-365

Res. #2025-366
Res. #2025-367

Res. #2025-368
Res. #2025-369
Ord. #2025-22

Regular Agenda

Public Comment

Authorization for the Payment of Vouchers $5,232,154.41

Authorization for Refund of Taxes

A Resolution Authorizing a Shared Service Agreement between the Township of Lower and the Lower Cape May Regional
School District for the Placement of Schooi Resource Officers (SRO) within the Lower Cape May Regional School District
Insertion of Special lfem of Revenue Pursuant to NJSA 40A:4-87, Chapter 158 (Community History Grant $5,000)

A Resolution Adopting a Revised Personnel Policy Manual for the Township of Lower

Authorization for Waiver of Permitting Fees for Naval Air Station Wildwood Associated with the Museum Egress Plan
Transfer of 2025 Appropriations

A Resolution Approving the Annual Level of Compensation for the Commissioners of Fire District #1 Pursuant fo N.J.S.A
40A:14-88 and Local Finance Notice 2021-16

A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Shared Service Agreement Between the Township of Lower and the County of
Cape May for Public Safety Answering, Dispatch and Related Services

Authorizing the Assignment of Eight (8) Tax Sale Certificates

Approval of Change Order #1 to 10-75 Emergency Vehicles to Install Four (4} Television Monitors in the Drone Command
Control Mobile Unit

A Resolution Approving the Annual Level of Compensation for the Commissioners of Fire District #3 Pursuant to N.J.S.A
40A.14-88 and Local Finance Notice 2021-16

Authorization for the Payout of Accumulated Compensatory Time (M. Harkin, $9,097.28)

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 400, Land Development, of the Code of the Township of Lower. This is the first reading of
this Ordinance. The second reading and public hearing has been scheduled for December 1, 2025,

Council Comments

Adjourn




COUNCIL. MEETING MINUTES ~ October 20, 2025

The mesting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey was held
on October 20, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. in the meeting room of Township Hail, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for rol call taken by the Clerkc
Counclimember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Joseph Wareham
Councilmember Roland Roy, Jr.
Deputy Mayor Kevin Coombs
Mayor Frank Sippel

Also present; Michael Laffey, Township Manager and Karen Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes — October 6, 2025

Res. #2025-343  Authorization for the Payment of Vouchers § 683,539.92

Res, #2025-344 Certification of Best Practices Inventory

Res. #2025-345 Authorization for the Payout of Accumulated Compensatory Time (W.Omrod $3,837.60)

Res. #2025-346  Authorization for the Payout of Accumulated Compensatory Time (K.Walker $14,126.84)

Res. #2025-347 Approval of Contribution to Lower Township Chamber of Commerce

Res. #2025-348 Approval of Change Order #1 to Phoenix Advisors for Municipal Advisory Services in connection
with General Improvement Bonds :

Res. #2025-349 A Resolution Authorizing a Memorandum of Agreement between the Township of Lower and the
County of Cape May regarding Code Blue Warming Centers

Res. #2025-350 Insertion of Special ltem of Revenue Pursuant to NJSA40A:4-87, Chapter 169 (NJ Green Acres
$750,000)

Res. #2025-351 Approval for Cape May Hallowed Half Marathon

Res. #2025-352 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave (L.Read $6,300.85)

Res. #2025-353 Approval of Change Order #2 for Remington & Vemick Engineers Services for an Environmental
Report for the HYAC Replacement Project at the Township of Lower Municipal Building and
Construction & Zoning Building

Mayor Sippel shared information about Res. #2025-349 with regard to the Code Biue warming centers.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD X X
WAREHAM X X
ROY X
COOMBS X
SIPPEL X

Reqular Agenda
Res, #2025-354 A Resolution to Terminate Al Participation Under the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP)

Including Drug Plan andfor Dental Plan Coverage

Mayor Sippel communicated the urgency in passing this resolution prior to the end of October to save the Township
from a 36.9% cost increase in State Health Benefits.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD X
WAREHAM X
ROY X
COOMBS X X
SIPPEL X X




Res. #2025-355 A Resclution Authorizing the Award of a Contract to Amerihealth for Health Insurance Coverage for
the Township of Lower as an Extraordinary Unspecifiable Service

Mayor Sippel asked Manager Laffey to explain the process.

Manager Laffey explained the current health insurance situation and the factors involved with establishing coverage.

He also communicated the Township's obligation to secure the best and most reasonable plan for employees and

taxpayers.

Councilmember Wareham commented in favor of his current coverage with Amerihealth through the County.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD X
WAREHAM X X
ROY = X X
COOMBS X
SIPPEL X

Res. #2025-356 A Resolution Authorizing the Award of a Contract to Braven Health for Prescription Coverage for
Retired Employees for the Township of Lower as an Extraordinary Unspecifiable Service

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD X
WAREHAM X
ROY X
COOMBS X X
SIPPEL X X

Engineer Report
Andrew McTague, DeBlasio and Associates, gave Council an update on the following engineering projects being

handled by DeBlasio and Associates: Rotary Communily Park Renovations, Bay Qutfall Extensions, Reconstruction
of Ridgewood Ave., Stormwater GIS Mapping Services, David Douglass Sr. Memorial Park Renovations, Lower
Township Public Works Building Design, Holmes, Gorham and Scott Avenues Storm Sewer & Roadway
Improvement Project, Lower Township Municipal Pool Building, Reconstruction of Beach Ave., Resurfacing of
Cardinal Ave., Bayshore Road Pickleball Courts, Clem Mulligan Sports Complex Storm Sewer Pump Station, and
Lincoln Bivd. and Arctic Ave. Storm Sewer Replacement.

Administrative Reports
Clerk, Dog, Vital

Public Comment

Joanne Rietheimer, 111 Pinewood Road, addressed Council regarding her proposal to install children’s little libraries
on Township playgrounds.

Manager Laffey informed Ms, Ristheimer that more research is needed before a determination can be made.

Council Comments

Councilmember Conrad - no comments

Councilmember Wareham gave an update on Townbank Road paving project and thanked the County for making it a
priority.

Councilmember Roy — no comments

Deputy Mayor Coombs voiced favor with Townbank Road improvements.

Mayor Sippet announced the following events: Haunted Tralls and Veteran’s Day Parade.

Adjournment
There being no further business to address, motion to adjourn maved by Mayor Sippe!, seconded by Councilmember
Wareham. Motion to adjoum was unanimous. Meeting adjoumed at 5:18 p.m.

Frank Sippel, Mayor Deputy Township Clerk
Approved:




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION #2025-357
Titte: AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS
VENDOR CHECK# DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
The Belasco Law Firm LLC #7744 Labor Expenses $ 589822
TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS: $ 589822
TOTAL COMPUTER GENERATED: $5,226,256.19
TOTAL BILL LIST $5,232,154.41
MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

I, Karen 8. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby

certify {he foregoing fo be a true and exact copy of a resclution duly authorized by the Township Council at a meeting held on
November 3, 2025,

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




i

Resolidd

'
n

ST

LAy

Page: 1 Lower Township 10/29/2025
Bill List By Vendor Id
03:42 PM
Ranges ltem Status Purchase Types Misc
Rangs: First to Last Open: N Bid: Y P.O. Type: Al
Revd Bateh Id Range: First to Last Volid: N State: Y Include Profect Line  Yes
Paid: N Other: Y ftems:
Heid: Y ‘Exempl; Y Format; Condensed
Aprv: N Include Non-Budgeted: Y
Revd:Y . Vendors: Alf
PO, # PO Date Description ~ Status Amount -Void Amount - Contract - PO Type -0
00030 AE, STONE INC.
25-021862 08/12/256 HOT ASPHALT Open $1,189.12 $0.00 B
000655 LARRY AKINS
25.02787 10/28/26 MEDICAL CLAIMS Open $212.05 $0.00
00153 ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC*
25-02813 10/28/26 ACE SEPT-OCT BILLING Open $21,293.07 $0.00
00179 : AVERY TEITLER
25.02483 09/18/25 PB SOLICITOR SALARY (AUG/SEPT) Open $1,668.00 $0.00
25-02705 10/20/25 PB RESOLUTION VOUCHER Open $200.00 $0.00
Vendor Total: $1,868.00
00194 ADVANCED VIDEO & SOUND LLC
25.02750 10/27/25 CAMERAS- REC & CLEM MULLIGAN  Cpen $1,000.00 $0.00
00257 BAYSHORE LANDSCAPING iNC*
25-00638 §3/06/25 RES#25-50 DNE $54500 Open $10,900.00 $0.00
00419 RICHARD M BRASLOW, ESQ
25-02588 10/01/25 FS Legalfees Open $330.00 $0.00
00454 KEVIN LEWIS
25-02739 10/23/25 TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT Qpen $16.00 $0.00
00651 MUNICIPAL UTIL AUTH DUMP FEES
25-02710 10/20/256 DISPOSAL FEES SEPT.2025 Gpen $81,032.67 $0.00
00743 COUNTY OF CAPE MAY. TREASURER
25-02752 10/27/25 4TH QTR COUNTY/LIB/OPEN/ANIMAL  Open $4,124,525.61 $0.00
00784 CAPE MAY STAR & WAVE
25.02720 10/20/25 LEGALS 10/08/2025 Open $35.00 $0.00
25-02800 10/29/25 LEGALS - 1015 & 10/22/2025 Open $268.50 $0.00
Vendor Total: $303.50
00825 COMCAST INTERNET
25-02812 10/20/25 COMCAST TVAINTERENT OCT-NOV 25 Open $1,588.52 $0.00
00948 COASTAL LANDSCAPING
25-02290 08/27/25 FREEMAN DOUGLASS PARK Open $885.84 $0.00
01092 CONTINENTAL FIRE & SAFETY,INC*
25-02808 10/28/256  ANNUAL FIRE EXT SERVICE/REFILL  Open $302,00 $0.00
‘01110 COLLEEN CRIFPEN




Page: 2

Vendor #
RO.#

01110
25-02790

01125
25.00020

01170
25-02691

01201
26-00874

25-02496
25-02746

016563
28-02044

01690
25-02315

25-02715

01741

25-02185

01748
256-00516

01840
26-02747

01864
25-02630

01873
25-00973

02108
25-01568

02137
25-00384

02247
25-02310

02538
25-00025

03023
25.01406

" 'PO Date

10/28/25

01/03/25

10/15/25

04/04/26
09/23/25
10/23/25

07/25/25

08/27125
10/20/25

08/13/25

02/21125

10/23/25

10/06/26

04/14/25

06/11/25

02/06/25

08127125

01/03/25

06/02/26

Name
Description

COLLEEN CRIPPEN
HEALTH INSURANCE MAILING-USPS

MARGARET CROMPTON
CONTRACTUAL REIMBURSEMENT M

VERIZON WIRELESS* F/S
Verizon 08,27 09.28

DELL MARKETING LP
2 SDL LICENSES (ZONING)

SDL SOFTWARE FOR BOCA
GEORGIA COMPUTER

GENTILINI FORD ~
PARTS FOR VEHICLES/DPW

GRANTURK EQUIPMENT CO*
PARTS FOR RECYCLING/.DPW

SUCTION NOZZ/DPW
GENTILINI CHEVROLET, LLC  ~
RES 25-274 (2) CHEVY TAHOE PPV

R.A.WALTERS & SONS INC*
RES 2025-102 DEL BAY PUMP HOUS

COLLEEN HORWATH
RETIRED MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT

JONAS PIZZA, LLC ~
PASTA BOWLS- HAUNTED TRAILS

HOME DEPOT*
SUPPLIES /BLDG/DPW

KEEN COMPRESSED GAS CO*
BOTTLED GAS/DPW

CHARLES MARANDINO, LLG*
RES #2025-83 CHG ORD 4 TB IMPR

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC, ~
SUPPLIES FOR GARAGE/DPW

MARSH & MCLENNAN AGENCY, LLC
RES#2025-13 DNE $40K

SIG SAUER INC*
MPX ARMORER CERTIFICATION

Lower Township
Bill List By Vendor Id

Status

Account Conlinued

Open

QOpen

Open

Opsn
Open
Open
Vendor Total:

Opsen

Open
Open
Vendor Totak:

Open

Cpen

Cpen

Open

Open

Open

Open

Cpen

Cpen

Qpen

~Amount

$33.40

$100.00

$168.44

$5,814.76
$29,563.38
$1,066.45

$36,444.59

$2,065,51

$3,243.73
$2,659.59

$5,903.32

$111,318.91

$127,760.00

$3,057,00

$279.60

$281.27

$276.90

$1,313.38

$699.25

$3,333.33

$680.00

Void Amount

§0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.0C

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.0¢

$0.00

$0.00

10/29/2026

03:42 PM

Contract PO Type'




Page: 3 Lower Township 1012072025
Bili List By Vendor 1d

03:42 PM
Vendor# - - .00 Name - o T R E R : S e
RO.# ‘PO Date 'Description ' ' “Status ©Amount  Void Amount - Contract PO Type 0
03023 SIG SAUER INC* Account Continued
03026 *NJ STATE HEALTH BENEFITS WIRE
25-02797 10/29/256 NOV 2025 NJSHBP ACTIVE Open $247,229.37 $0.00
25-02798  10/20/25 NOV 2025 NJSHBP RETIREE Open $126,411.37 $0.00 |
Vendor Total: $372,640,74
03086 NJ STATE ASSN CHIEFS OF POL* . |
2501871 07/09/25 BUDGETING AND FINANCIAL COURSE Open $500.00 $0.00
03305 PEDRONI FUEL*
25-02716 10/20/25 NO LEAD GAS/DPW 9.28.25 Open $682.35 $0.00
25-02742 10/23/25 NO LEAD GAS/DPW/10.15.25 Open ‘ $716.61 $0.00
Vendor Total: $1,397.96
03466 R & R SPECIALTIES ]
25-00716 03/18/25 PLAQUE FOR BENCH QOpen $300.00 $0.00
25-00890 04/04/25 DESK PLATE Open $52.00 $0.00
25-02411 09/09/25 MEMORIAL PLAQUE Open $325.00 $0.00
25-02662 10/09/26 TROPHIES FOR B-BALL TOURNAMENT Open $159.00 $0.00
Vendor Total: $836.00
03518 RIGGINS, INC.* :
25-02741 10/23/256 OFF HIGHWAY DIESEL/10.15.2025 Open $634.34 $0.00
03611 SERVICE TIRE TRUCK CENTERS ~
25-02308 08/27/25 TIRES/RDS/REC/DPW Gpen $5,254.20 $0.00
03519 THOMAS SOLENSKI
25-02748 10/24/25 MEDICAL CLAIMS Cpen $2,400,00 $0.00
03683 SNAP-ON TOCLS*
25-02229 08/19/25 REPAIR- PT850 SERIAL 22486299 Cpen $185.00 $0.00
03692 SOUTH JERSEY GAS CO*
25.02788 10/28/25 SOUTH JERSEY GAS SEPT-OCT 25 Qpen $816.32 $0.00
03902 DONALD VANAMAN JR
25-02738 10/23/25 TRAINING REIMBURSEMENTS Open $30.00 $0.00
03904 LOWE'S HOME CENTER INC*
25-02312 08/27/25 SUPPLIES FOR BUILDINGS/DPW/OCT Open $518.77 . $0.00
25-02313 08/27/25 SUPPLIES FOR BUILDINGS/DPW Open $519.00 $0.00
25-02495 00/23/256 MISC. FCR HAUNTED TRAILS Cpen $1,911.66 ‘ $0.00
Vendor Total: $2,947.43
03985 VILLAS NAPAAUTO PARTS ~
25-02557 09/26/26 RDS/SANT/RECY/NOVIDPW Open $3,698.26 $0.00
03992 VAL-U AUTO PARTS LLC ~

25-00876 04/14/25 RDS/SANT/RECY/DPW Open $3,142.70 $0.00




Page: 4

Vendor # .

PO. #

04080
25-01366

04087
25-02525

25-02677
25-02761
25-02762
25-02763

6071
25-02187

25-02765

7098
25-02693

7196
28-00027

7251
25-02566

7354
25-01904

2502475

7437
25-02631

7475
25-02786

7689
25-02600

7751
25-00630

7772
25-02592

7820
23-02340

23-03046
24-02404
24-03368
25-00517

. PO Date

05/30/25

09/24/25
106/14/25
10/27/25
10/27/25
10/27/25

08/13/25
10/27/25

10/15/25

01/03/25

09/26/25

0710/25
09/18125

10/07/25

10/28/25

10/01/25

04/10/25

10/01/25

09/14/23
11/28/23
09/06/24
12/06/24
02/21/25

Lower Township
Bilt List By Vendor id

" Name

Description o Status Amount

WIRELESS ELECTRONICS, INC*
CRADLEPOINTS FOR PATROL VEHICL. Open $5,220.00

CINTAS FIRST AID AND SAFETY*

FIRST AID SUPPLIES/DPW Open $60.14
COURT MEDICINE CABINET 10/2026 Open $50.46
TOWNAHLL RESTOCK 9/10/25 Open $7.53
BOCAFIRST AlD SUPPLIES Open $90.01
RE-STOCK LT PGOL. Open $25.43

Vendor Total: $233.57

UNITED UNIFORMS LIMITED LIAB*

75 WRESTLING UNIFORMS Open $2,250.00
MANAGER'S SHIRTS Open $80.67
‘ Vendor Total: $2,330.67

SHORE VETERINARIAN ANIMAL

ANIMAL CONTROL AFTER-HOURS Open $450.00
LAUREN HUGGINS SUIT

RES#2025-07 2025 PUBLIC INFO Open $1,356.57
REIT LUBRICANTS CO*

OIL SUPPLY/DPW Open $3,615.87

FLEETPRIDE INC.*

SUPPLIES/BLDG/DPW Open $574.22
YEARLY DIAGNOSTIC TOOLS UPDATE Open $3,895.00
Vendor Total: $4,469,22

ECOVERSE INDUSTRRIES LTD*
PARTS / COOLANT SWITCH Open $437.67

SUZANNE M SCHEID
MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT Open $55.00

GOVERNMENT FORMS AND SUPPLIES*
2026 Yard Sale Permits QOpen $192.00

HOFFMAN'S EXTERMINATING

PEST AGREEMENT-FREEMAN DOUGL: Open $75.00
PIONEER ATHLETICS*
ATHLETIC PAINT FOR FIELDS Open $2,588,51

DEBLASIO & ASSQCIATES, RP.C

RES#23-303 CO #1 ROTARY PARK Open $1,600.00
#23-389 SURF RIDGEWQOD DNE 48K Open $3,810.00
RES 2024-288 C/0 2 DPW BUILDNG  Open $4,270.00
#24-372 BAY OUTFALL EXT #C059 Open $4,000.00

2025-103 DEL BAY DR PUMP C084 Open $71.25

Void Amount

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.06
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.60
$0.0C
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

10/29/2025

03:42 PM

Contract PO Type

m




Paga: 5 ' Lower Township ' . 10/29/2025
Bill List By Vendor Id

03:42 PM

Vendor # : Name : : L - LT
PO.# PO Date Description Staius Amount Vold Amount  Contract PO Type
7820 ' DEBLASIO & ASSOCIATES, P.C Account Continued
25-00696 03/12/25 RES#25-120 CO#3 CANAL PARK 30k Open $942.50 $0.00
25-0G778 03/24/25 RES #25-136 PCOL BUILDING 80K Open $21,040.54 $0.00
25-01199 05/12/25 RES 2025-178 LTC087 CLEM SEWER  Open $1,026.25 $0.00 B
25-01257 05/19/26 RES#25-155 PICKLE BALL COURTS Open $5,657.50 $0.00 B
25-01805 07/01/25 RES 2025-236 LTC-061 BEACH AVE Open $2,616.25 $0.00 B
25-02016 07725125 RES2025-260 L.TC062 CARDINAL Open $1,545.00 $0.00 a8
25-02233 08/21/25 RES #2025-290 (LTC-059) CHG 1 QOpen ‘ $240.00 $0.00
25-02465 09/18/268 RES 2025-317 LTC-070 DELAWARE Open $2,288.75 $0.00
25-02706 10/20/26 PB ENGINEER VOUCHERS Opsn $641.70 $0.00

Vendor Total: $49,658,74
7857 MOHAWK LIFTS, LLC
25-01687 06/17/25 VEHICLE LIFTS (2} Open ' $71,306.58 $0.00
7871 PLANET TECHNOLOGIES, INC*
25-02147 08/08/25 FS microsoft renewal x5 Open $211.20 $0.00
7921 WILLIAM PORCH
24-00259 01/22/24 2024 EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE Cpen $80.75 $0.0¢
7929 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC ~
25-02869 10/10/28 Blinds o Cpen $95.94 $0.00
25-02690 10/16/26 PD SUPPLIES + TRUNK OR TREAT Open $520.73 $0.00
25-02697 10f15/25 FS equiptment cases Open $148.38 $0.00
25-02714 10/20/25 OFFICE SUPPLIES Open $236.27 $0.00

Vendor Total: $1,010,32
8175 INTEGRITY INTERPRETING LLC : ‘
25-02678 10M14/25 COURT INTERPRETING 9/2028 Open $133.00 $0.00
8393 PRI MANAGEMENT GROUP INC *
25.02424 09/12/258 EXPUNGEMENT WEBINAR 11-20-2025 Open $278.25 $0.00
8517 STEWART BUSINESS SYSTEMS *
25-02751 10/27/25 COPIER USAGE 1/1- 6/30/25 Open $306.46 $0.00
8564 MATTHEW REILLY
25-02740 10/23/25 TRAINING REIMBURSEMENTS Open $33.62 $0.00
8566 HARPOONS ON THE BAY *
25-02704 10/20/25 RELEASE OF BOND PLUS ESCROW  QOpen $9,278.10 $0.00
8676 GPANJ
25-02749 10/27/25 GPANJ " Open ' $125.00 $0.00
ar21 BLANEY, DONOHUE, & WEINBERG PC
25-00023 01/03/25 RES#2025-04 PROSECUTOR DNE 45k Open $3,750.00 $0.00 B
25-00024 01/03/25 RES#2025-04 WWC DNE $10K Open $833.33 $0.06

Vendor Total: $4,583.33

8800 MARK DELANO



Page: 6

Vendor #
PO.#

88060
25-02753

8848
25-02660

8868
25-02713

9134
25-02613

9141
25.02756

9216
25-00043

0264
24-02722

9316
25-00020

9445

25-02692
25.02695
25-02708

9453
2501910

25-02457
25-02658
25-02661

9464
25-02703

9465
2502718

9467
25-02775

AMUSE
25.02702

BLAUE
22-02882

23-02899

PO Date

1027125

10/08/25

10/20/25

10/02/25

10/27/28

01/07/25

10/16/24

01/03/25

10/156/25
10/156/25
10/20/25

071125
09/18/25
10/09/25
10/09/25

10/20/25

10/20/25

10/27/25

10/20/25

1117122
1/13/23

Lower Township
Bill List By Vendor id

. Name - R S .

Descilption Status Amount
MARK DELANO Account Conlinued

REIMBURSEMENT- 5TH QUARTER Open $120.00
COMFORT NOWLLC

ANNUAL BOILER MAINT REC Open - $1,118.00
BRAVADO. COFFEE CAFE .

HAUNTED TRAILS FOOD Open $325.00

ASCENDANCE TRUCK EASTERN PA
SEAL,CIL PINION/DPW Open $101.20

CITY OF WILDWOOD WATER UTILITY
WATER BILL ACCT #4015020-0 Cpen $315.05

ATLANTICARE REGIONAL MEDICAL
RES#2024-229 YEAR 4 Open $5,000.00

PENNONI ASSCCIATES INC

RES# 2024-332 Tax Maps Open $46,382.50
THE BELASCO LAW FIRM LLC
RES#2025-01 DNE 340k Open $3,333.33
TWIN ROCKS WATER
PD WATER DELIVERY 10/7/2025 Open $269.75
WATER-OCTOBER '256 REC. DEPT. Open - $20.98
FS Water 10.01.25 Open : $19.99
Vendor Total: $319,72
CAPITAL ONE TRADE CREDIT
RDS/SIGNS/AUG/DPW Open $420.03
MONTHLY- SEPTEMBER'25 Open $244.06
SOLAR SALT FOR SOFTENER Open $115.95
2 DAY RENTAL STEAM CLEANER Open $68.37
Vendor Total: $848.41

PATRICK AND KERI BRADY

RELEASE OF PERFORMANCE BOND  Open $6,256.09
ARTHUR MATHEWS

B-360.02 L-15 MATHEWS QOpen $286.37
WALTER HARTMANN

B-642 |.-6 EXEMPT VETERAN Open $250.00

AMUSEMENT PARTNERSHIP USA
RETURN OF BOND & ESCROW Open $44,863.14

BLAUER ASSOCIATES INC*
2023 SCPF APPLICATION CONSULT  Open $2,100.00

RES 23-372 FY24 SCPF ADA POOL Open $300.00

Vaid Amount

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

10/29/2025

03:42 PM

‘Contract - 'POType



Page: 7

Vendor #
PO #

BLAUE
2402953

LOWER
25-02807

SEAGE
25-01924

25-02586
25-02605

SMITHS
25-02789

PO Date

11/12/24

10/29/25

07/15/25
10/01/25
10/01/25

10/28/25

Lower Township
Bili List By Viendor Id

Name
Descriplion Status Amount
BLAUER ASSOCIATES INC* : Account Confinued
FY 2025 SCPF ADA DOUGLASS PARK Open $3,800.00
Vendor Total: $6,200.00
LOWER TOWNSHIP
DIFFERENCE CARD EXPEN 10-25 Open $18,302.69
SEAGEAR MARINE SUPPLY*
FS uniforms x4 . Open $275.00
J. Embs uniforms Open $107.98
FS Belles hoots Open . $79.99
Vendor Total: $462.97
SHEILA D SMITH
MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT Open $219.23

10/29/2025
03:42 PM

Void Amount  Contract POType i

$0.00 B

80.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

Total Purchase Orders:

129 Total P.O. Line items: 0 Total List Amount: $6,226,256.19 Total Vold Amount:  $0.00



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-358
Title: AUTHORIZATION FOR REFUND OF TAXES
WHEREAS, the Township Tax Collector has certified an overpayment due to the reasons listed below; and
WHEREAS, a refund is due,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of

Cape May, State of New Jersey that the CFO/Treasurer be and the same is authorized and directed to refund the
overpayments according to the Tax Collector's certification on file with the CFO/Treasurer.

Block Lot Refund To Reason Tax
380.02 15 Arthur Mathews Exempt Veteran 10/01/2025 $ 286.37
642 6 Waller Hartrmann Exempt Veteran 10/06/2025 $ 250.00
MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE ABSTAIN ABSENT
CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

I, Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a irue and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Council at a meeting held on
November 3, 2025

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-359

Title: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNSHIP
OF LOWER AND THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE PLACEMENT
OF SCHOOL RESCURCE OFFICERS {SRO} WITHIN THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL
SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 ef seq. (the "Act™),
authorizes focal units of this State to enter into agreements with any other local unit or units to provide or receive
any service that each local unit participating in the agreement is empowered to provide or receive in its own
jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the existing Shared Service Agreements which will expire December 31, 2025,
the Township of Lower provides two (2) School Resource Officers to the Lower Township Regional School
District who are stationed at the Lower Cape May Regional High School and the Richard M. Teitelman Middle
School, and the costs associated therewith are equally shared; and

WHEREAS, the Township and the District are seeking to renew the terms and conditions of the Shared
Service Agreements and desire to execute a new Shared Service Agreement, which memorializes the specific
terms, obligations, and conditions to be performed by the Township and the District, and the specific services to
be provided by the School Resource Officers; and

WHEREAS, in the spirit of interlocal cooperation, and in furtherance of the principals underlying the Act,
the Township and the District have negotiated a new Shared Service Agreement, a copy of which is attached
hereto, and deem it necessary and proper to memorialize these terms, in order to outline their respeclive rights
and responsibilities for the benefit of both parties.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey that the Mayor, Township Manager, andfor Township Clerk are hereby
authorized to execute the attached Shared Service Agreement between the Township of Lower and the Lower
Cape May Regional Schoot District for the provision of two (2) School Resource Officers.

MOTION | SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

ROY

COOMBS

SIPPEL

I, Karen 8. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do
hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Tewnship Council at a
meeting held on November 3, 2025

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

AND

THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

DATED

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNSH]P OF LOWER AND THE LOWER CAPE MAY
REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE PLACEMENT OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS
WITHIN THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT



A SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWIER AND
THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE PLACEMENT
OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS WITHIN THE LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL
SCHOOL DISTRICT

THIS SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT is made this day of , 2025 by
and between the TownsHir OF LOWER (“Township™), a municipal corporation of the State of
New Jersey whose administrative offices are located at 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey
08251 and the LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DIsTRICT (“District”™), a local municipal
board of education whose administrative offices are located at 687 Route 9, Cape May, New Jersey
08204, and who may collectively be denominated as the “Parties” in this Agreement, and each
may be called, separately, a “Party.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 et
seq. (the “Act™), authorizes local units of this State to enter into agreements with any other local
unit or units in order to provide or receive any service that each local unit participating in the
agreement is empowered to provide or receive within its own jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an existing Shared Service Agreement, which expires December
31, 2025, the Township provides the District with two (2) School Resource Officers (hereinafter
“SRO”), police officers employed, managed, and overseen by the Lower Township Police
Department (hercinafter the “Police Department™), who are stationed at the Lower Cape May
Regional High School and the Richard M. Teiteiman Middle School, the cost of which has been
shared equally (50/50) by and between the Township and District; and

WHEREAS, the Township and the District are seeking to renew the terms and conditions
of the expiring Shared Service Agreement and desire to memorialize in this Shared Service
Agreement, the specific ferms and conditions of the services to be performed and provided by the
School Resource Officers; and '

WHEREAS, in the spirit of interlocal cooperation, and in furtherance of the principles
underlying the Act, the Township and the District have negotiated an Agreement and deem it
necessary and proper to memorialize these terms, as set forth below, in order to outline their
_respective rights and responsibilities for the benefit of both parties.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, do hereby adopt
and endorse the following agreement to outline their rights and responsibilities in connection with
the Township providing a school resource officer for the District: '

1. PREAMBLE: All of the Statements of the Preamble to this Agreement are
repeated and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full.



2, TERM OF THE AGREEMENT.

A,

This Agreement shall take effect January 1, 2026, for a term of three (3) years,
through December 31, 2028.

This Agreement shall not be extended orally, and it is expressly understood that
it shall expire on the date indicated unless it is extended in writing.

The District and The Township agree that meetings to initiate a successor
Agreement and to modify, amend, or alter the terms of this agreement shall
commence no later than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of this
Agreement,

The District and the Township agree that the parties may choose not to enter into
a successor Agreement if they determine that doing so would not be in their best
interest.

Either the District or the Township may choose to cancel this Agreemeﬁt with
thirty (30) days written notice.

3 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES. It is understood and agreed that the District and
the Township share the following goals and objectives with regard to the SRO Program in the

schools:

A.

To foster educational programs and activities that will increase students’
knowledge of and respect for the law and the function of law enforcement
agencies.

To encourage the SRO to attend extra-curricular activities held at schools, while
on duty, such as PTA meetings, athletic events and concerts.

To act swiftly and cooperatively when responding to major disruptions and
flagrant criminal offenses at school, such as: disorderly conduct by trespassers,
the possession and use of weapons on campus, the illegal sale and/or distribution
of controlled dangerous substances, and riots.

To report serious crimes that occur on campus and to cooperate with law
enforcement officials in their investigation of erimes that occur at school.

To cooperate with law enforcement officials in their investigations of criminal
offenses which occur off campus.



4.

EMPLOYMENT AND ASSIGNMENT OF SRO.

A. The Township agrees to assign two (2) full-time SRO during the term of this

agreement to the District. The SRO shall be employees of the Township and
shali be subject to the administration, supervision and control of the Police
Department,

B. The Township agrees to provide and pay the SRO’s salary and employee benefits

in accordance with applicable salary schedules and employment practices of the
Police Department, including but not necessarily limited to: sick leave, annual
leave, retirement compensation, disability salary compensation, disability salary
continuation, workers compensation, unemployment compensation, life
insurance, dental insurance, and medical hospitalization insurance. The SRO
shall be subject to all other personnel policies and practices of the Police
Department.

C. The District agrees to pay the Township one half(50%) of the cost of each SRO’s

salary and benefits, subject to the parties conferring on an annual basis to
confirm that the figures outlined below remain accurate, in accordance with the
following anticipated annual payment schedule:

DISTRICT School Year Obligation Payment Due:

Year 2026
$ 90,573.32 due on or before June 30, 2026
$ 90,573.32 due on or before December 31, 2026

Year 2027
$ 96,226.05 due on or before June 30, 2027
$ 96,226.05 due on or before December 31, 2027

Year 2028
$ 100,610.03 due on or before June 30, 2028
$ 100,610.02 due on or before December 31, 2028

D, The Police Department, in its sole discretion, shall have the power and authority

to hire, discharge, assign and discipline the SRO. The District shall have the
option of participating and/or providing input during the interview/selection
process in order to ensure that the selected SRO is an appropriate fit within the
District. The District reserves the right to request an alternate SRO from the
Police Department in the event the SRO’s job performance is contrary to Police



Department policies and the Code of Conduct applicable to police employees.
The decision to grant or deny this request shall be the responsibility of the Chief
of Police, after receiving input from the Township’s Mayor and/or Manager.

5. BASIC QUALIFICATIONS OF A SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER (SRO),

The Police Department represents that the SRO assigned to District shall meet all of the
following qualifications:; '

A. Shall be commissioned officers and should have three (3) years of law
enforcement experience;

B. Shall possess a sufficient knowledge of the applicable Federal and State laws,
Township and County ordinances, and Board of Education policies and
regulations,

C. Shall be capable of conducting in-depth criminal investigations;
D. Shall possess even temperament and set a good example for students; and

E. Shall possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function
effectively within the school environment.

6. DUTIES OF THE SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER. The SRO shall each be
expected to work a forty-two (42) hour work week; and shall perform such duties as are assigned
to them by the Chief of Police in consultation with the District Superintendent. During the time
school is in session from September through June, the SRO shall work full time at District, except
in the case of an emergency as directed by the Chief of Police. During vacation periods when
school is not in session, the SRO shall report to the Chief of Police. In addition to rules and
responsibilities listed in the Police Department Rules and Regulations, the following rules and
responsibilities shall apply:

A, To protect lives and property for the citizens and public school students of the
Township;

B. To enforce Federal, State and Local criminal laws and ordinances, and to assist
school officials with the enforcement of District Policies and administrative

regulations regarding student conduct;

C. To investigate criminal activity committed on or adjacent to school property;



D. To counsel public school students in special situations, such as students
suspected of engaging in criminal misconduct, when requested by the principal
or the principal’s designee or by the parents of the student;

E. To answer questions that students may have about police enforcement of New
Jersey Laws and Municipal Ordinances;

F, To assist other law enforcement officers with outside investigations
concerning students attending the school(s) to which the SRO is assigned; and

G. To provide periodic traffic control at the school.
7. CHAIN OF COMMAND.

A. As employees of the Police Department, the SRO shall follow the chain of
command set forth in the Police Department Policies and Procedures Manual;

B. Inthe performance of their duties, the SRO shall coordinate and communicate
with the Superintendent and the Principals or the Principals’ designee of each
of the District’s schools;

C. The District Superintendent shall periodically report to the Chief of Police as
to the work efforts. of the SRO.

8. TRAINING/BRIEFING.

A. The SRO shall be required by the Police Department to complete the 40-hour
Basic Course for School Resource Officers and School Administrators, as well
as attend periodic seminars, recertification and in-service training sessions, as
directed by the Chief of Police. All efforts will be made to coordinate this
training to avoid its interfering with the SRO’s responsibilities at the school,
and District shall be provided with reasonable advance notice of such training
so it may anticipate the SRO’s absence. The Police Department shall provide
a replacement police officer if the SRO will be absent due to training,

B. The SRO must attend periodic briefings and meetings at the Police
Department. All efforts will be made to coordinate this training to avoid its
interfering with the SRO’s responsibilities at the -school, and District shall be
provided with reasonable advance notice of such briefings and meetings so it
may anticipate the SRO’s absence. The Police Departiment shall provide a
replacement police officer if the SRO will be absent due to briefings and
meetings.



C. In the event both assigned SROs are absent due to being sick, on vacation,
using personal days, or due to a recognized holiday in their current collective
- bargaining agreement, the Police Department shall provide at least one (1)
replacement police officer in order to ensure that there is always at least one

(1) officer within the District during school hours.

9. DRESS CODE. The SRO shall wear the departmental uniform with an option to
wear plain and/or tactical clothes in special situations when approved by the Chief of Police.

10.  SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT. The Police Department will provide all
equipment issued to the SRO as agreed to in their collective bargaining agreement between P.B.A.
Local #59 and the Township, as set forth in its Policies and Procedures,

11.  TRANSPORTING STUDENTS,

A. Ttis agreed that an SRO shall not transport students in their vehicles except:

1) When the students are a victim of a crime, under arrest, or some other
emergency circumstances exist; and

2) When students are suspended and sent home from school pursuant to
school disciplinary actions if the student’s parent or guardian has refused
or is unable to pick up the child within a reasonable time period and the
student is disruptive/disorderly and his/her continued presence on campus
is a threat to the safety and welfare of other students and school personnel.

B. If circumstances require that the SRO transport a student to a location other

- than the police station or other criminal justice facility, the school official must

provide a school official or employee of the same gender of the student to be
transported, to accompany the officer in the vehicle.

C. The SRO shall notify the school principal before removing a student from
campus,

12.  MISCELLANEOUS.

A. Representatives:

1) Each Party agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, it
shall at all times during the term of this Agreement be organized and
structured in a manner such that it can be bound with respect to any matter

7



affecting this Agreement by the signature of one individual acting as such
Party's representative. Upon any Party's request made from time to time by
notice to another Party, such Party shall within ten days provide the other .
Party with notice of the name and address of such Party's representative.
Each Party agrees that its representative will be reasonably available as
needed to enable such Party to perform its obligations under this
Agreement and that, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law such
Party’s representative will have full power to bind such party as to any
matter relating to this Agreement,

2) Nothing in this Section shall be deemed to prevent a Party from replacing
such Party's representative from time to time, by written notice to the other
Parties.

3) Representatives of the Parties:

a. The Township designates the following individual as its initial
representative for purposes of this Agreement:

Chief of Police

Township of Lower Police Department
405 Breakwater Road

Cape May, NJ 08204

b. The District designates the following individual as its initial
representative for purposes of this Agreement:

Superintendent

Lower Cape May Regional School District
687 Route 9

Cape May, NJ 08204

13.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION. The parties represent that each is
insured for liability purposes and agree to remain insured for so long as this Agreement remains
in effect. The parties agree, to the extent possible under the terms of their respective insurance
coverages, to name each other as additional insured on such policies of insurance to protect against
liability arising from the provision of services under this Agreement, and to maintain such
coverages throughout the duration of this Agreement.

The parties hereby agree to mutuaily indemnify, defend and hold one another harmless
from any and all claims, demands, liabilities, causes of action, complaints, suits (at law or in

8



equity), damages, penalties, fines, judgments, losses, costs and expenses .(including without
limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, consultants’ and experts’ fees, and the cost of
enforcing this agreement) (collectively "claims"), arising out of the sole negligence, criminal acts
and/or intentional conduct of either the Township or District or any employees, agents or officers
thereof or acting on that Party’s behalf, related, directly or indirectly, to the performance by such
Party under this Agreement,

The Parties agree to submit a copy of this Shared Services Agreement to their respective
insurance carriers prior to the execution of same. The Parties agree that during the term of this
Agreement they shall keep in force a policy of general and comprehensive Hability insurance that
will insure each party against any claims for any actions or omissions charged against either ot
both parties during the term of this Agreement. Each Party agrees to cooperate with the other in
the defense of any claim or claims assessed against either or both parties arising out of the
rendering or non-rendeting of services contemplated by this Agreement.

14, ASSIGNMENT. The rights and the obligations under this Agreement shall not be
assigned by either party without the express written consent of the other.

15.  APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement
between the parties and may not be changed orally, and may only be modified or amended by a
written statement signed by both parties.

17.  SEVERABILITY. If any part of this Agreement shall be determined to be
unenforceable or invalid the remainder of the Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force
and effect. '

18.  WAIVER, Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants
or conditions of this Agreement at any one time shall not be deemed a waiver of such term,
covenant, or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power herein be
deemed a waiver or relinquishment of the same or any other right or power at any other time.

19.  AUTHORIZATION OF OFFICIALS; COUNSEL APPROVAL. The parties
acknowledge that this Agreement has been executed and sealed by officials authorized and directed
to execute same on behalf of the respective Parties by duly adopted resolutions for such purposes. -

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE NEXT PAGE]



LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL
SCHOOL DISTRICT

Date: By:
Lower Cape May Regional Board President

Aftest:

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

Date: By:

Frank Sippel, Mayor

Attest:

10



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION #2025-360

Title: INSERTION OF SPECIAL ITEM OF REVENUE PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A:4.87, CHAPTER 159

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government Services
may approve the insertion of any special ifem of revenue in the budget of any county or municipality when stich
item shall have been made available by faw and the amount thereof was not determined af the time of the
adoption of the budget, and

WHEREAS, said Director may also approve the insertion of any item of appropriation for
equal amount,

SECTION 1.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, hereby
requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to approve the increase of $5,000.00 for an
item of revenue in the budget of the year 2025 as follows:

Miscellaneous Revenues -

Revenue Offset with Appropriations - Community History Grant
Total with increase to be $ 5,000.00
SECTION 2.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a like sum of $5,000.00 be and the same is hereby appropriated
under the caption of:
General Appropriations ~

Public & Private Programs Offset by Revenues - Community History Grant
State/Federal Share $ 5,000.00

Non State Share $

Total with increase to be $ 5,000.00

FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this Resolution with the appropriate documentation shall
be electronically filed with the State of New Jersey, Division of Local Government Services,

MOTION | SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

I, Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do
hereby cerlify the foregolng to be a frue and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Council at a
meeting held on November 3, 2025

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




2025 Community His
Pilot Project Award Agre

Lower Township Historic Preservation Commission
2600 Bayshore Road

Lower Township, NJ 08251

CH-2025-05

In accepting this New Jersey Council for the Humanities {(NJCH) Community Histor
Agreement in the amount of $5600, Lower Township Historic Preservation Comm
to the following provisions and procedures, which are binding for all recipients of
Recipient agrees to:

tory
sement

Pilot Project Award
sslon (Recipient) agrees
this award from NJCH.

a. Execute the proposed project as described in the project proposal. Any significant changes to

the project must be approved in advance by the Community History progra

b. Spend award funds only on allowable expenses occurring within the award

n

beriod,

director,

Only the Executive Director of NJCH or a representative of NJCH specifically authorirzed by the

Executive Director is authorized to modify any of the terms of this award on behalf
shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the awardee which do not conform witiL
agreement.

1. Award information

Project Name: Villas 100 Year Celehration
Award Period: 10/1/2025-9/30/2026
interim Report Due: 4/3/2026

Final Report Due: 10/30/2026

2, Acknowledgement of Support

Recipient must acknowledge NJCH in all printed and electronic materials related tg

of NJCH, NJCH
the terms of the

this

pilot project, including advertisements and publicity materials, and whenever written or

verbal presentations are made in conjunction with this project.

Sample acknowledgement language: [This program, project, event, etc.] Is support
the New Jersey Council for the Humanities with funding from the state of New Jerse
the National Endowment for the Humanities.

Please include NJCH's logo on all print and electronic materials.

NJCH logo: https://nihumanities.org/resources/
NEH seal: https://www.neh.gov/brand-materiais

3, Social Media

ed by
y and

NJCH uses Facebook, X {formerly Twitter), and LinkedIn, and we encourage Recipients to

connect with us on social media. We will tag or link a Recipient’s social media accou
relevant posts about these awards when possible and ask that you tag or link to NJC
return. Please use the following hashtags: #njch, #ipublichumanities.

s for
Hin




4, Termination of Award

If NICH determines that the Recipient has failed to comply with the terms and conlditions of

the agreement, NJCH may terminate the award for cause. An award may also be tg
by mutual consent of NJCH and the Recipient or at the Reclplent’s request. If yous
terminated by NJCH:

rminated
award is

a. Recipient will be consulted about the intended termination and provided with 30
days” written notice of termination by NICH. This termination will not affect any
commitments you have made prior to the date of termination. If there is disagreement
as to when these commitments were made, the judgement of NJCH will prevall.

b. Recipient must furnish NJCH with an itemized accounting of funds spent, owed, and

left over in your award within 30 days of the termination date.

¢. Recipient must return any money that is left over from your award to NJCH w
days of termination of the grant program.

5. Notification of Public Program(s)

thin 60

Recipient will notify NJCH of any publicly accessible programs at least 30 days in advance of

that program.
6. Reporting on Award

Recipients of this NJCH Community History Pilot Project Award are required to sub
reports on the project: an interim Report approximately halfway through the proje

mit two
t period

and a Final Report within 30 days of the end of the project period. NJCH will provide a form

for each required report in its award administration portal: njhumanities.org/ porthl.

Failure to provide this report in a timely manner will disqualify the Recipient from q
other NJCH programs and services. If you need additional time to submit a report, p
connect with NICH staff to request an extension.

7. Indemnification

ccessing
eqse

As part of the terms of this contract, Recipient agrees to hold NiCH and its employées and

agents harmless. Recipient also agrees to defend and indemnify NJCH and its emplo
agents against all claims, actions, liability, damage, loss, and expense, including atto

yees and
rney fees,

in any matter arising {cr alleged to have risen) from acts or omission by you, the awardee,

your employees, agents, and sub-contractors in connection with the award.

Te protect your interest, NJCH strongly recommends that Recipients develop written
agreements whenever services or goods are tc be provided to you by others.

B. NJCH Contact

Community History is directed by Gigi Nagiak, Director of Programs. Any questions 4
this award or the broader program should be directed to her at gnaglak@njhumanit
or 609.695.4409.

bout
es.org




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-361

Title: A RESOLUTION ADCPTING A REVISED PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL FOR
THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

WHEREAS, it is the policy of Township to treaf employees and prospective employees in a manner
consistent with all applicable employment laws and regulations including, but not limited to Title Vil of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Equal
Pay for Equal Work Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, the Americans
wilh Disabilities Act, the Famity and Medical Leave Act, the Conscientious Employee Protection Act, the Pubiic
Employee Occupational Safety and Health Act, (the New Jersey Civil Service Act,) (the New Jersey Attorney
Generai's guidelines with respect to Police Department personnel matters,) the New Jersey Workers Compensation
Act, the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) and the Open Public Meating Act; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council has determined that there is a need io updale personnel policies and
procedures to ensure that employees and prospective employees are treated in a manner consistent with these laws
and regulations, and the Township Insurance Company requires the manual be updated and re-adopted every two
{2) years.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey that the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual attached hereto is hereby
adopted and repiaces the current Personnel Policy Manual.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these personnel policies and procedures shall apply to all Township
officials, appointees, employees, volunteers and independent contractors. In the event there is a conflict hetween
these rules and any collective bargaining agreement, personnel services contract or Federal or State law, the terms
and conditions of that contract or law shall prevail, In all other cases, these policies and procedures shall prevail,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this manual is intended to provide guidelines covering public service by
Township employees and is not a contract. The provisions of this manual may be amended and supplemented from
time to {ime withouf notice and at the sole discretion of the Township Council.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SiPPEL

|, Karen 8. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing lo be a {rue and exact copy of a resoiution duly authorized by the Township Council at a mesting held on
November 3, 2025

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER
PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL

Updated November, 2025




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section One: General Personnel POLCY ...ovivviiincicce et e 5
Equal Employment Opportiunify POHCY et sssss s sssssisss s sssssssssssens 5
AMETICANS WIth DISADIIEIES 1uuiiiiriiisconrrimnieseneecsessnrseecsassseessssss s casssscesssscessessonsssressesssesbsesss s evesies s sossssesaassssesssnsssnessassassassesasess 6
Policy ABainst HATGSSIMENT .o s ssssssss s sas st s ibsss ssssss s b ivosis st vosbines 7

Harassment COMPIAING FOITN i e s smssssssssessssssmsesssassssss ssssssss sessesssss assied s Himiasisasss 13
WitNESS STALEIMIEIE FOIMINuumirirrinreiemssissrn e e sesscessess s s sssas s st sss s sssse s ressssassseessns s esssbesees osstd BV RS S IV LEAL S TSRS EEaES 16
Policy Prohibiting Workplace VIOIEIICE e essesserssensssssssesssmssessses s esseass iasssissaissessttspsssasssssssssssssns 18
WISt EDIOWET POLICY ..o enssrasss e ssss s sessssisessessssssarsssssesses s aesss st sesssss st cessssmsrassessedsbssnesat s 20

Section Two: EMployee Benefifs ... v e s sas e 22
00 DY a1 T L [0 PO O TN 23
O VBT THITIE 1o ruverseesresrasssamarsssesrassastsrevesss corssssms1as4eos450411 040434414 4414 S1551 435041 0584 SES S84 REEE SR8 4284 E8SEE 182 RE B EEAEE e nen SRR RS R 10 23
PATTOI POLCY cottevivirinmarmesmissianscsisessssssssess s assesscas ssesssssssess seesss sesisssesessassssasss s ases a3 04100008100 R B R RS LR RS SRR R R 08 24
MEAICA] BENEEITS c.vuivriiireeiissssicessssie s esserssses s ssssns s esssssossasssasssssss s snsssssssressanss asss 0 as1 04 shes£ne s esssess shssssnssimsas s sessmnesessressssriets 24
Classification and PrOmIOIO N . e i aerenss s easesscrsess s cresssessesse st reessesssssersse s bressesnsbsbbuser e B LSRR 0 26
HIPAA COMPLATICR cuuvveierreinisinssessssseossesssiasssrssesssasssscessses sessesssssssesssscns seasss st sresessseersessedsersebs obs bt bbb 28
T o T e o o 41 LT R L o) OO O OO 28
Pt HOIAAYS POLICY crreuvneuerccoreruiosmoeesitiss ettt 0000 00410080000 06511 4840105840818 103 1048241 R R 43RS RR R RS R AR 29

Section Three: Leaves 0F ADSENCE ...uiiiriiriiiriierere i reresee ettt esias st ssre s esseesrees 31
Vacation /Personal LEAVE POLICY i ssst st sssss st sssnsssassassasssssssssassssssasins s sssse 32
SHCK LAVE POICY 1vvinrcceanssssensssmmssess soressissrssssassessesessesssss s sesss s sasssssessss s bssses 4054443314083 4044458 EES RS 48 RS e ARS8 32
ERCRANEE OF THIB. i coreiriieerssisscesinisircss s enssesssemesessesssa s st soesssesusssins s aesace s snse s 58 sasmE8 s E8 s s£a R aen SR Rae e nebeend e rabesEbasad 8BRS RHE 0 35
DONALEA LEAVE PIOEIAIMN cuirresserremsssnsrsnenisssassssesssssssenssasssesassssessess et sesses sessssssscsesssosssassssesesssssassbassbad bbb Sb4 s LIRS B RIS RS 35

RECIPIENE EHGIBIIILY 1ot crrerscesinnms s sssesssosssssess s sscsssssssssesscessess st st d5ss e b4 841 0504100488 1588000 01010001 E B AR RS s bbb RS RS bR 36
DIONIOE EILZIDIIILY . ourrcerriirnecrsmneerssessnsmes sesesssercasiestassseesseosmessests trsses st 10044040 45040411 4031100411 RERR LR RSSEE SRR S 1 S R b s b b RS RS R 0 36
P OCEIUTE vrevrrermersrriensrersaeestrsemensrsssersssesmesssess srssesesosesaras sonescss e 4221 ment 105 s cebas s s E8SEE bR B TSR R RRA B e RA RS sb R SRR 001 37
Township of Lower Donated Leave Program Recipient Affildavit ... 38
Township of Lower Donated Leave Program Donor Transfer FOrm.. i 39
Family and Medical LEAVE i sssssss s s s ssssss e sassss s s 8 soa4 40410081 1411100001 bbb 41
NEW JEISEY FAINUIY LEAVE covrrieicrernsscserssnesssssssssesscesssossssessssss s sussssactssnessscanes tos 1146000480450 H 41 PO OR A S0E1 1 BRES SRR AL S LS a0 bR R 45

Application for Family and/or Medical Leave (FMLA) and/or New Jersey Family Leave (NJFLA) ........ 48




Return to Work Medical CertiiCatin. . s e cossiensicasesssimitis seosssssssssnsstssessssses sassssasssesssosssssssessssrosns 50

MEtArY SErviCe LEAVE POLICY .. icrirsmecsicesecnsrinnme s seesessnsssasssesssssesss ssssssseessssassssssersssssses e Hseentos sosstassisessiss seessactsonss 51
JUEY DULY L BAVE.treerrersceerserconessssssmssssesssssmsesssssarsssessorassssssses s bessanarssesssoasssssserssessssbesbbe s AL HOHLH 1SR H SO RRRRL A4 SRR RS AR bbb 51
Section Four: Personnel Rules and Regulations ..o siennee e 53
F N 0T i o= SO OO T TS OO 54
ADSENLEEISIN AN TATAINESS 1uoviisrvsnrarieniimsmeersisemmissirisreass s sessismmsscsssseess esassesss eess s sess1 818 sess 88 sesssssessassressasssssssses seressiss 54
Alcohol and Drug-Free WOTKDLACE oo et ssssessssss asssess ssssassions 55
Drug EdUCational I ormation s srcesssessssssssssessse s sssseesiesasssssessnses o ssedbsws 0485 4 E048 118 1HEBRS 1 RS SS S0 bR E 1 00S 65
Substance Abuse Professionals ... i s 69
Employee ASSISTANCE PROZIAIMN i ssabassas s s s st ssa s s 69
Active Employee Certificate of Receipt [DFWO L] i ssssses s srebsesmsssesssiiiassisensss 73
Pre-Employment Substance Testing Consent and Release Form [DFWOZ] ... 74
Acknowledgement of Consequences For Refusal of Drug Test [DFWO3 ..o 75
Changing Vital Information oo s s s s s smes ssassas s ssesssss e soses e 77
Employee Information Change FOrM s st i st s sssssties 78
Computer Use, Electronic Mail, and INEernet POLCY . i msesssmsssares e s ssceess 79
Telephone and Personal Communication Usage Pc;licy ................................................................................................... 81
CONAUCE OF EINPIOYEES ..ovuiiierisssiesissnississsmess osssssss s ssssssssss s ssssesss s ss s sssssasss s s e sne on 44 143 BN BRSO HRR AT 82
Confidentiality of Personinel RECOIIS o i esnesstsssssssss s s isssisss s asessssssssssaass s ssssssmsssises 84
Contagious/Life Threatening INESS POHCY wuimmmimimimmimimm i s s 85
Discipline and Termination POliCY i s s s e s s s s e s s 85
DOMESHIC VIOLENIECE POLICY ireuorreeriarsnrersssscssmmsssecssmscsres s assssssesasossesemsssmserssess st eastessassb iyt astes418001 01081804001 ARN SRS DR R 87
LAY OT covvrersmesresesssenseesemnsscessessssssseesssseesssasssssns s st ssess s s e renes s 644306430 4RR RSB 1AL TEEEES0ER 9004484300 B 4R AR ARSI SRR LE RS R SRS 800 94
ENMPIOYEE DAtINE POIICY verirrmissriimmssirissiansasrsssssesenss sssssssss semssisssssessssss st sesssnsssasssssssesssssessss s sssessssens sosssssenesesssst assssssrassaeries 54
N DI OYITIENT RO O BIICES civstirerisinrrssirreniesisisresss s e ssssssnessss semsstas sassss e e ses s s e8RS e et bR e re s en e bk pen i 95
AN NEPOUSII POLICY corrorcreri i rmenscersesesscss e ssessssesssersmssses fhersssis ek st st b aads ebeds e b1 sbs SRS B US RS B R LR LR 96
PerfOrmanCe EVAIRATION e erssserssarmssssssiss e s11es081 0004541435 500 300014818041 £ 8RR RSB R AR RS RS0 97
Lo VT oY 7 Vo 1k OO 97
S Y P OO 1o e e s SRR RS RS R RO BRSO A RS R 98
SECUTTLY POIICY v s ibs s sssssss s sssss b s s s 4 S BRRSES b RS e b RR SRR e 98
State ReSIACNICY REUITEITIEIIE . imuircsirsersrirarinesiesssrssessssseesesssesssessssses sesssssssesss st sassssessesssssassssssssssesssessssssessemss essesbemsssnss i sbrass 99
Policy for Use of Employer Vehicles (Non-Law Enforcement] .o, 99

TranSitional DULY POLICY i i e s s s s s s sas et sins s ssssns st sessas esss 101




CONTCE Of INTETESE POHCY corecermiis s mmeisssssssseses s sisisss st sisesssssss s sass s sssessanyssos 1 smeab s b 14884011 bas 08
JOD DESCIIPHION POLICY ciriiriimrcrmmmisnicsimiisscnmssmessssssaas s smssssss s ssiass ssssssa s s st seosss 110414000 PRS00 Dt bs s ams £
INO SIMOKINE POLCY cuuricrrrriecnreamernivsicsissemsesssesssessessssees sesusessssessessssssesessressessass st st 14 SRR AL LALS LS R B  REsRdEEemb T B0
VIAEO SUINVEILIAIICE c..voecrcerrresisenserscronscess s sessssonsassesessressssssessreseses et 14480403 ALV RSB b sER A R b RS b B R R TS
Employment Application FOrm POHCY .o s s
Training/Education/Travel ReimMbBUISEMENT. i s s
RESIENAION POHCY ciroiecicnirnioriininniionisssm s s s s s aeasschsssssnseases 4 s bss 084 em 1 1 sha SRS PERS RSN R RS SRS PR TR TR
REUITEIMIENE POHCY st s e s sasas s b s 18044 B R AR SESPaTS RS 40T

Open Public Meetings Act Procedure Concerning Personnel Matters (Rice Notice)

RICE NOUICE covveurenserescrensrsesrmesesssassessasssorssacesssessasesssensertisbenses 1406145418441 bE81E 80418048 LEL RS 1SR L PR AR PR PSSO RRS L PP SR bRt e s
Initial Employment Period ProCeAUTE o i s s csssssassss s sssss s sssssssesss st
Lightning Awareness Safety Programi.. ..o s e s
Emergency Action & Fire Prevention PRan ... s s 114
Conscientious EmMployee Protection ACL.... ... i s st s et s st ssbetassers s inasseians 115
FaMily LEAVE INSUTANICE (it s onesss iosses e sssseass s resssss a1 s 1 sess 4141858300100 001 PR EF0TE PR 015 116
GENAET EQUALLY corrr ittt cnsesseirommscstcssnes s sssss s ssasss st s s ss b s A4S b b R bR 117
Employer Obligation to Maintain and Report Records ..o S 118
New Jersey Earned SICK LBAVE . o ccrenrenismmiss st i manmiesssiams st s asssssss s st st ressssess st ressaasssassssas 119
WOTRET'S COMIDEIISALION ceu11ucrrenssecemmsrscrerensssscnsss e sassseessssssssss 158014011 ae s RS R8s RRS R LSRR S bR R RS E 120

Receipt for Employee HandbooK ... 121




SECTION ONE: GENERAL PERSONNEL POLICY

It is the policy of the Township to treat employees and prospective employees in a manner consistent with
all applicable employment laws and regulations. The personnel policies and procedures of the Township
shall apply to all employees, volunteers, (elected or) appointed officials and independent contractors. In
the event there is a conflict between these rules and any collective bargaining agreement, personnel
services contract, or Federal or State law (including) (the Attorney General's guidelines with respect to
Police Department personnel matters) (and) (the New Jersey Civil Service Act), the terms and conditions
of that contract or law shall prevail. In all other cases, these policies and procedures shall prevail.

All employees, officers and Department Heads shall be appointed and promoted by the Township
Manager, No person shall be employed or promoted unless there is an existing position created by an
ordinance adopted by the Township Council as well as the necessary budget appropriation and salary
ordinance.

The Manager and all managerial/supervisory personnel are authorized and responsible for personnel
policies and procedures. The Manager shall have access to the Labor Attorney appointed by the Township
Council for guidance in personnel matters.

As a general principle, the Township has a "no tolerance” policy towards workplace wrongdoing,
Township officials, employees and independent contractors are to report anything perceived to be
improper. The Township believes strongly in an Open Door Policy and encourages employees to talk with
their supervisor, Department Head or Township Manager concerning any problem

The Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual adopted by the Township Council is intended to provide
guidelines covering public service by Township employees and is not a contract. This manual contains
many, but not necessarily all of the rules, regulations, and conditions of employment for Township
personnel. The provisions of this manual may be amended and supplemented from time to time without
notice and at the sole discretion of the Township.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY POLICY

The Employer is committed to the principle of equal employment opportunity and anti-discrimination
pursuant to Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972 and
the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination (LAD) and all other applicable state or federal laws. Under
no circumstances will the Employer discriminate on the basis of sex, race, creed, color, religion, national
origin, ancestry, age, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, domestic partnership status, civil
union status, atypical heredity, cellular or blood trait, genetic information, disability (including AIDS or
HIV infection), Hability for service in the United States Armed Forces, gender identity or expression,
and/or any other characteristic protected by state or federal law, Accordingly, decisions regarding hiring,
promotion, transfer, demotion or termination are based solely on the qualifications and performance of
the employee or prospective employee. If any employee or prospective employee feels they have been
treated unfairly, they have the right to address their concern with their supervisor, or if they prefer, their
Department Head, Director of Personnel, the Chief Administrative Officer, or any other supervisor with




whom they feel comfortable, using the complaint procedure set forth in the Policy Against Harassment
set forth in this Manual.

Any employees with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination or harassment in the
workplace are encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of management through the complaint
procedure set forth in the Policy Against Harassment set forth in this Manual.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES

The Employer complies with the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination and the Americans with
Disabilities Act. The Employer will not discriminate against any qualified employee or job applicant with
respect to any terms, privileges, or conditions of employment because of a person's physical or mental
disability. The Employer also will make reasonable accommodations wherever necessary for all
employees or applicants with disabilities, provided that the individual is otherwise qualified to safely
perform the essential duties and assignments connected with the job and provided that accommodations
do not require significant difficulty or expense, The Employer's nondiscrimination policy applies to all
aspects of the employer-employee relationship, including recruitment, hiring, upgrading, training,
promotion, transfer, discipline, layoff, recall, and termination.

Definitions, The Americans with Disabilities Act defines an individual with a disability as any person
who:

(1) has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, such as
caring for oneself, walking, seeing, hearing, or speaking;

(2) has a record of such an impairment; or
(3) is regarded as having such an impairment.

An individual must satisfy at least one of the three prongs of the above definition to be considered an
individual with a disability under the ADA. Temporary conditions, such as a broken leg, are not
disabilities, nor are minor impairments, such as vision problems that are correctable with glasses.

The New Jersey Law Against Discrimination defines disability as a physical disability, infirmity,
malformation or disfigurement which is caused by bodily injury, birth defect or illness including epilepsy
and other seizure disorders, and which shall include, but not be limited to, any degree of paralysis,
amputation, lack of physical coordination, blindness or visual impediment, deafness or heating
impediment, muteness or speech impediment or physical reliance on a service or guide dog, wheelchair,
or other remedial appliance or device, or any mental, psychological or developmental disability resulting
from anatomical, psychological, physiological or neurological conditions which prevents the normal
exercise of any bodily or mental functions or is demonstrable, medically or psychologically, by accepted
clinical or Jaboratory diagnostic techniques. Disability shall also mean AJDS or HIV infection.

A qualified individual is an individual with a disability who, with or without reasonable accommodation,
can perform the essential functions of the employment position held or sought. An individual who poses
a threat to the health and safety of oneself or to others is not qualified. Reasonable accommodation means
any change or adjustment to a job or work environment that does not impose an undue hardship on the




Employer, or that permits a qualified applicant or employee with a disability to participate in the job
application process, perform the essential functions of the job, or enjoy benefits and privileges of
employment equal to those enjoyed by employees without disabilities.

Requesting Accommodation. Qualified employees or prospective employees with disabilities may request
accommodations to perform the essential functions of their job or gain access to the hiring process.
Employees or prospective employees should direct their written request to the Employer. In the written
request, the employee or prospective employee should identify themselves as a person with a disability,
eligible for protection, and identify the nature of the accommodation or consideration desired.

The Employer may require the employee to provide adequate medical or other appropriate documentation
of the disability and the need for the desired accommaodation. The Employer will reasonably accommodate
the known physical or mental limitation of an otherwise qualified applicant or employee with a disability
unless the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the Employer’s business operation.

To further the Employer’s nondiscrimination policy, the Employer will:
« Identify the essential functions of a job;

» Determine whether a person with a disability, with or without accommodation, is qualified to perform
the duties; and

» Determine whether a reasonable accommodation can be made for a qualified individual.

Reasonable accommodations that the Employer may provide in connection with modifications to the work
environment or adjustments in how and when a job is performed may include the following:

« Making existing facilities accessible and vusable;

« Job restructuring;

+ Pari-time or modified work schedules;

* Acquiring or modifying equipment or devices;

« Appropriate adjustment or modifications of testing materials, training materials, and/or policies;
* Reassignment to a vacant position.

The Employer is also committed to not discriminating against any qualified employee or applicant because
he or she is related to or associated with a person with a disability. If any applicant or employee has
questions concerning the Employer's equal employment opportunity policy, he or she should contact the
Employer.

POLICY AGAINST HARASSMENT




The Employer is committed to providing a work environment that is free of discrimination. The Employer
will not tolerate harassment of or by employees towards anyone, including any supervisor, co-worker, or
non-employee, including vendors and citizens.

Applicability. This policy applies to all people employed by the Employer, as well as volunteers working
on behalf of the Employer, and prohibits such conduct by or towards ali such employees/volunteers.
Independent contractors, vendors and all other parties, engaged in a professional business relationship
with the Employer are also expected to abide by the policy. In addition, no employee shall be required to
withstand behavior from the public which violates this policy.

Purpose. This policy is designed to ensure all employees a work environment free of any type of
discrimination based upon a protected status, including freedom from sexual harassment. The purpose of
this policy is to inform employees that harassment based upon a protected status is prohibited, to educate
employees about harassment based upon a protected status and to provide employees with a procedure to
bring complaints to management’s attention.

Provisions, All employees ate expected to avoid any behavior or conduct of a harassing or discriminatory
nature. The Employer prohibits any form of harassment or discrimination related to an employee's
protected group status, including race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status,
civil union status, domestic partnership status, atfectional or sexual orientation, familial status, genetic
information, sex, gender identity or expression, disability (including perceived disability, physical, mental,
and/or intellectual disabilities), atypical hereditary cellular or biood trait, or because of the liability for
service in the Armed Forces of the United States, veteran status, citizenship status, or any other group
status protected by law. Harassment includes, but is not limited to: '

A. Treating an individual less favorably based on a person’s protected group status;
B. Using derogatory or demeaning slurs to refer {o a person’s protected group status;

C. Calling another by an unwanted nickname which refers to one or more protected group statuses, or
telling ethnic jokes that harass an employee or create a hostile work environment;

D. Using derogatory references regarding a protected group status in any job-related communication;

E. Engaging in threatening, intimidating, or hostile acts, in the workplace, based on a protected group
status; or

F. Displaying or distributing material in the workplace that contains language or derogatory or demeaning
images, based on any protected group status.

Any form of harassment or discrimination related to an employee’s protected group status violates this
policy.

This policy applies to all employment practices such as recruitment, selection, hiring, training, promotion,
transfer, assignment, layoff, retum from layoff, termination, compensation, fringe benefits, working
conditions and career development.




Violations of this policy will result in appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

Sexual Harassment, The Employer prohibits sexual harassment of its employees in any form. Such
conduct shall result in appropriate disciplinary action up to and including dismissal from employment.

A. Sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually
motivated physical conduct or other verbal or physical conduct, gestures or communications, expressed
or implied, of a sexual nature when:

(1) Submission to that conduct or communication is made a term or condition, either explicitly or
implicitly, of obtaining or retaining employment; or

(2) Submission to or rejection of that conduct or communication by an individual is used as a factor in
decisions affecting that individual's employment, or

(3) That conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering
with an individual's employment, or creating an intimidating hostile or offensive employment
environment.

B. Prohibited Conduct: No supervisory employee shall threaten or insinuate either directly or indirectly,
that an employee's refusal to submit to sexual advances will adversely affect the employee’s continued
employment, evaluation, compensation, assignment, advancement, or any other condition of employment,
Similarly, no supervisory employee shall promise or suggest either directly or indirectly, that an
employee's submission to sexual advances will result in any improvement in any term or condition of
employment for the employee.

Other sexually harassing conduct in the workplace, whether committed by supervisory or non-supervisory
personnel is also prohibited. This includes, but shall not be limited to:

(1) Sexual flirtations, advances, propositions, subtle pressure for sexual activity, flirtatious whistling,
discussing sexual activities;

"nn

(2) Verbal abuse of a sexual nature including sexually oriented "kidding" or "teasing,
jokes about gender-specific traits, and foul or obscene language or gestures;

practical jokes,"

(3) The display of sexually graphic pictures or pictures of an offensive nature, or objects in the workplace,
including sexually suggestive written material such as letters, notes, facsimiles, text messages and e-mails;

(4) Any unwelcome sexually motivated touching, including, for example, patting, pinching, hugging,
corneting, blocking or impeding movement and repeated brushing against another employee's body.

Sexual harassment also occurs when one person harasses another solely because of the victim's gender.
This type of sexual harassment may involve unwelcome sexual demands or overtures, but it may also take
the form of other harassing conduct not necessarily sexual in nature. For example, this would include
gender stereotyping such as comments about the lesser abilities, capacities, or the "proper role" of females.
It also includes subjecting a woman or a man to non-sexual harassment solely because of her or his gender.




Sexual harassment is prohibited whether the harasser is male or female, and whether the harassment is
opposite sex or same-sex harassment.

Complaint Procedure. Any employee who feels he or she has been subject to harassment should report
the incident directly to the designated Affirmative Action Officer. The designated Affirmative Action
Officer will ask the employee to complete a Harassment Complaint Form. Employees, however, are not
required to complete the complaint form to initiate a harassment complaint under this policy.

Alternatively, any employee who feels he or she has been subject to harassment should report the incident
directly to the Chief Administrative Officer. The Chief Administrative Officer will ask the employee to
complete a Harassment Complaint Form, Employees, however, are not required to complete the complaint
form to initiate a harassment complaint under this policy, The names and telephone numbers of the
designated Affirmative Action Officer and Chief Administrative Officer are contained in the Contact
Information attached to this policy.

Any individual uncomfortable reporting an incident to the designated Aftfirmative Action Officer and/or
Chief Administrative Officer should feel free to go to any management representative which he or she
feels most comfortable to relay the problem. When any management representative learns of a violation
of this policy, the management representative shall assist the victim in reporting the alleged incident(s) of
harassment,

All Employer employees should notify the alleged harasser that the behavior in question is thought to be
offensive and unwelcome. However, failure to inform the alleged harasser that the behavior is unwelcome
does not prevent the victim from filing a complaint pursuant to this policy. The harassment or
discrimination does not have to occur on the Employer’s property during regular work hours for an
employee to file a complaint under this policy.

The Employer strongly encourages employees who witness conduct which they believe violates the
Employer’s Policy Against Harassment to report the violation pursuant to this complaint procedure. The
Employer encourages the prompt reporting of complaints so that rapid response and appropriate action
may be taken. Any complaint should be reported within sixty (60) days to be considered current,
Nevertheless, due to the sensitive nature of these problems, all complaints will be investigated, regardless
of when they are filed.

Investigation Procedure. The Employer shall conduct an investigation into the harassment complaint to
determine the merits of the allegations. The designated Affirmative Action Officer and/or Chief
Administrative Officer shall designate an objective investigator to determine the validity of any complaint.
The objective investigator may include any third party deemed appropriate.

The investigation shall be completed in a reasonable time to resolve the issue and minimize the effects of
such investigation on the parties involved. The investigation will, at a minimum, include an interview
with the employee bringing the complaint and the accused.

If the Employer determines that the complaint has merit, the accused shall face appropriate disciplinary
action based upon the severity of the complaint and any prior history of past charges against the individual.
Disciplinary action may include a written warning, suspension, demotion, and/or termination of
employment. Any disciplinary action shall be consistent with applicable collective bargaining agreements,




regulations and applicable due process safeguards. Upon completion of the investigation, the entire file
shall be maintained in a secure location with the Employer.

In the event that the Employer determines the complaint to be intentionally dishonest, appropriate
disciplinary action may be taken against the employee who caused the complaint to be filed.

Privacy. To the extent possible, all persons involved in a harassment complaint will be given the utmost
protection of privacy. Specifically, the Employer will strive, both during and after the investigation, to
maintain confidentiality to the fullest extent possible, including confidentiality of the identities of all
persons involved or alleged to be involved in the incident, revealing only those particulars of the matter
to the extent necessary for a thorough investigation. Any employee who unnecessarily compromises the
confidentiality of an investigation will be subject to appropriate discipline.

Responsibility of Supervisory Personnel. Supervisors are to monitor the work environment to ensure that
all subordinates comply with this Policy Against Harassment. When a supervisor learns of a violation of
this policy, the supervisor shall assist the victim in reporting the alleged incident(s) of harassment.

Alternatively, the supervisor shall report the matter to the designated Affirmative Action Officer and/or
Chief Administrative Officer for resolution.

Retaliation Prohibited. The Employer encourages victims of harassment to bring their complaints to
management by ensuring that no reprisals or retaliation will result from the good faith reporting of
harassment, The filing of a complaint, in good faith, shall not, under any circumstances provide cause for
discipline. Additionally, it is a violation of this policy for any personnel to retaliate against another
because he or she filed a complaint or otherwise participated in the complaint procedure.

Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint from any employee must bring it to the attention of
the designated Affirmative Action Officer and/or Chief Administrative Officer for resolution. Supervisors
shall closely monitor the work environment for any forms of retaliation once an allegation has been made.
This will include but not be limited to verbal remarks, irregular assignments or any other activity that may
contribute to a hostile work environment.

Legal Effect. This Policy Against Harassment is to be construed as a unilateral expression of the policy
of the Employer concerning harassment in the workplace, It is not intended to create any contractual
rights or duties and any such infention or effect is hereby disclaimed. This policy may be amended,
supplemented, modified and/or revised at any time. Any employee with questions regarding the
Employer's Policy Against Harassment should contact the designated Affirmative Action Officer and/or
Chief Administrative Officer.

Training. The Employer recognizes the need to reinforce its policies with effective training. Training is
to be provided to all supervisory and non-supervisory employees. Ultimately, the goal of effective training
is to build a culture in which all employees feel safe. Training may be conducted in person or through
electronic means. To the extent economically and operationally feasible, training should be conducted live
whenever possible. Training should empower participants to intervene appropriately when they witness
harassment or discrimination. This means not only training participants on the requirements of the policy
prohibiting harassment and discrimination, but also training participants on tools for response and lodging
complaints. Training should emphasize the negative impact of harassment and discrimination on




employees, workplace productivity, workplace culture, and encouraging those employees who either
experience harassment/discrimination or witness it to report it.

Monitor for Compliance. The Employer acknowledges the importance of ensuring that employers’
policies and procedures are actually working as intended to prevent sexual harassment and other forms of
discrimination from occurring in the workplace. It is the expectation of the Employer that all supervisors
shall enforce anti-harassment policies and that setting the proper example is part of their job description
and part of the evaluation of their job performance. The Employer will engage in proactive efforts to
monitor and ensure compliance with its policies within their workplaces.




HARASSMENT COMPLAINT FORM

*THIS INVESTIGATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND INFORMATION OBTAINED DURING THE
COURSE OF THIS INVESTIGATION MUST NOT BE DISCLOSED#*

Name;

Department:

Job Title:

Supervisor:

Union Representative (if any):

Time Period Covered by Complaint:

Individuals Who Allegedly Committed Harassment:

Name Department Job Title

Describe the dates and the nature of the harassment allegedly committed by each identified individual:

Identify all employees or others with knowledge of the complained of conduct;




Are there any documents which contain information supporting the occurrences described above?

Is there any physical evidence which supports your complaint? If so, please describe:

Have you missed any work time as a result of the alleged harassment? If “yes,” identify the occasions.

Have you incurred any unreimbursed medical expenses as a result of the alieged harassment?

If you previously complained about this or related acts of general harassment to an Employer supervisor or
official, please identify the individual to whom you complained, the date of the complaint, and the resolution of
your complaint:

Are you afraid that someone may retaliate against you because you filed this complaint? If so, please




identify the person(s) and indicate the reasons why you feel the person(s) may retaliate against you.

What is your requested remedy in this complaint?

Acknowledgement:

The information provided above is true and correct.

Signature of Complainant: Date:

To investigate your complaint, it will be necessary to interview you, the alleged harasser(s), and any witnesses
with knowledge of the allegations or defenses, The Employer will notify all persons involved in the investigation
that it is confidential and that unauthorized disclosures of information concerning the investigation could result
in disciplinary action up to and includingtermination.

I am willing to cooperate fully in the investigation of my complaint and to provide whatever evidence the
Employer deems relevant,

Signature of Complainant: Date:




WITNESS STATEMENT FORM

*THIS INVESTIGATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND INFORMATION OBTAINED DURING
THE COURSE OF THIS INVESTIGATION MUST NOT BLE DISCLOSED*

Name: _

Department:

Job Title:

Union Representative (ifany):

Length of Time Known: Complainant Respondent _

Individuals Who Allegedly Committed Harassment:

Name - Department Job Title

Identities of other persons with knowledge of facts relevant to this investigation:

Please provide a detailed description of the events you witnessed. Include the date, time, location and
individuals present.




Any other information which should be considered in evaluating the validity of the complaint in this
case:

Acknowledgment:

I , affirm that the information I have provided istrue and
correct. I acknowledge that the investigation is confidential and that [ am not to disclose information
obtained by me during the course of this investigation. I understand that unauthorized disclosures could
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Signature of Witness: : Date:




POLICY PROHIBITING WORKPLACE VIOLENCE

The Employer has adopted this Zero Tolerance Policy for workplace violence because it
recognizes that workplace violence is a growing problem nationally that needs to be addressed by
all employers. Consistent with this policy, acts or threats of physical violence, including
intimidation, harassment, and/or coercion which involve or affect the Employer, its employees or
which occur on the Employer’s property will not be tolerated.

Threats or Acts of Violence Defined. “Threats or acts of violence” include conduct against persons
or property that is sufficiently severe, offensive, or intimidating to alter the employment conditions
with the Employer, or to create a hostile, abusive, or intimidating work environment for one or
more employees.

Examples of Workplace Violence. General examples of prohibited workplace violence include,
but are not limited to, the following:

o All threats or acts of violence occurring on Employer property, regardless of the
relationship between the Employer and the patties involved in the incident.

o All threats or acts of violence not occurring on Employer property but involving someone
who is acting in the capacity of a representative of the Employer.

o All threats and acts of violence not occurring on Employer property involving an employee
of the Employer if the threats or acts of violence affect the legitimate interest of the
Employer.

¢ Any threats or acts resulting in the conviction of an employee or agent of the Employer, or
of an individual performing services on the Employer’s behalf on a contract or temporary
basis, under any criminal code provision relating to threats or acts of violence that
adversely affect the legitimate interests and goals of the Employer.

Specific Examples of Prohibited Conduct, Specific examples of conduct which may be considered
“threats or acts of violence” prohibited under this policy include, but are not limited to:

» Hitting, fighting, pushing, or shoving an individual or throwing objects;

¢ Threatening to harm an individual or his/her family, friends, associates, or their property;

s The intentional destruction or threat of destruction of property owned, operated, or
controlled by the Employer;

e Making harassing or threatening telephone calls, letters or other forms of written or
electronic communications;

¢ Intimidating or attempting to coerce an employee to do wrongful acts that would affect the
business interests of the Employer;

e Harassing surveillance, also known as “stalking,” the willful, malicious and repeated
following of another person and making a credible threat with intent to place the other
person in reasonable fear of his or her safety;

e Making a suggestion or otherwise intimating that an act to injure persons or propetty is
“appropriate,” without regard to the location where such suggestion or intimation occurs;

¢ Unauthorized possession or inappropriate use of firearms, weapons, or any other dangerous
devices on Employer property.

18




While employees of the Employer may be required as a condition of their work assignment fo
possess fircarms, weapons or other dangerous devices, or permitted to carry them as authorized by
law, employees are to use them only in accordance with departmental operating procedures and
all applicable State and Federal laws.

Application of Prohibition. The Employer’s prohibition against threats and acts of violence applies
to all persons involved in the Employer’s operation, including but not limited to Employer
personnel, volunteer, contract and temporary workers, and anyone else on Employer property.
Violation of this policy by any individual on Employer property, by any individual acting as a
representative of the Employer while not on Employer property, or any individual acting off of the
Employer property when his or her actions affect the public interest or the Employer’s business
mterests will be followed by legal action, as appropriate. Violation by an employee of any
provision of this policy may lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination,

Warning Signs, Symptoms and Risk Factors. The following are examples of warning signs,
symptoms, and risk factors which MAY indicate an employee’s potential for workplace violence:

¢ Dropping hints about a knowledge of firearms;

¢ Making intimidating statements like: “You know what happened at the Post Office,” “I’ll
get even,” or “You haven’t heard the last from me”;

¢ Possessing reading material with themes of violence, revenge and harassment;,

¢ Physical signs of hard breathing, reddening of complexion, menacing stare, loudness, fast
profane speech;

e Acting out either verbally or physically;

* Disgruntled employee or ex-employee who is excessively bitter;

¢ Being a loner;

o Having a romantic obsession with a co-worker who does not share that interest;

¢ History of interpersonal conflict;

» Intense anger, lack of empathy;

» Domestic problems, unstable/dysfunctional family;

* Brooding, depressed strange behavior, “time bomb ready to go off.”

Supervisors should be alerted to and aware of these indicators, If an employee exhibits such
behavior, the employee should be monitored and such behavior should be documented.

Procedures for Dealing with Acts of Workplace Violence. When a violent act occurs in the
workplace: If a violent act or altercation constitutes an emergency, call 9-1-1 or the local police
department. In instances that are not emergency situations, contact your Department Head or the
designated human resources official. If possible, separate the parties involved in the violent
altercation, If the parties cannot be separated, or if it would be too dangerous for the employee to
separate the parties, call 9-1-1 or the local police department, and contact your Department Head
or the designated human resources official. The Department Head will contact the designated
human resource officer, who will take responsibility for coordinating a response to the incident.

In instances that involve criminal situations, the desighated human resources official will contact
the appropriate local police department for assessment, and if necessary, a criminal investigation.

19




Employee Reporting Obligations and Procedure. Each employee and every person on Employer
propetty is encouraged to report incidents or threats or acts of physical violence of which he or she
is aware. In cases where the reporting individual is not an employee, the report should be made to
the local police department. In cases where the reporting individual is an employee, the report
should be made to the employee’s Department Head or the designated human resources official.

Each Department Head shall promptly refer any such incident to the designated human resources
official.

The Employer will promptly and thoroughly investigate all reports of threats of (or actual) violence
and/or suspicious individuals or activities, Any individual determined to be responsible for
conduct in violation of this policy will be subjected to disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment, arrest and prosecution.

Nothing in the policy alters any other reporting obligation established in the Employer’s policies
or in state, federal or other applicable law.

Confidentiality and Retaliation. This policy prohibits retaliation against any employee who, in
good faith, reports a violation of this policy. Every effort to the extent practicable will be made to
protect the safety and identity of anyone who comes forward with concerns about a threat or act
of violence. Employees shall refer any questions regarding his or her rights and obligations under
the policy to the designated human resources official.

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

As a matter of policy, the lEmployer abides by all federal, state, and local lawé, rules, and
regulations applicable to it and has all its employees do the same. Every employee is responsible
for assisting the Employer to implement this policy.

In the ordinary course, a violation of this policy should be reported to an employee's Department
Head in writing, signed by the employee. If that is not practical or if that action is taken but does
not prevent or correct the perceived violations, the employee is to deliver a written statement,
signed and dated to the designated human resources official. The written statement should detail
the specific information the employee possesses so that the Employer may undertake an
investigation.

The Employer or any of its employees will not retaliate against any employee who makes a good
faith report pursuant to this policy; even if an investigation reveals that no violation occurred.
More specifically, neither the Employer nor any of its employees will take any retaliatory action
or tolerate any reprisal against an employee who:

Discloses, or threatens to disclose, to a supervisor or to a public body an activity, policy or practice
of the Employer or another employer, with whom there is a business relationship, that the
employee reasonably believes is in violation of a law, or a rule or regulation issued under the law,
or, in the case of an employee who is a licensed or certified health care professional, reasonably
believes constitutes improper quality of patient care;

Provides information to, or testifies before, any public body conducting an investigation, hearing
or inquiry into any violation of law, or a rule or regulation issued under the law by the Employer

20




or another employer, with whom there is a business relationship, or, in the case of an employee
who is a licensed or certified health care professional, provides information to, or testifies before,
any public body conducting an investigation, hearing or inquiry into quality of patient care;

Provides information involving deception of or misrepresentation to, any shareholder, investor,
client, patient, customer, employee, former employee, retiree or pensioner of the employer or any
government entity;

Provides information regarding any perceived criminal or fraudulent activity, policy or practice of
deception or misrepresentation which the employee reasonably believes may defraud any
shareholder, investor, client, patient, customer, employee, former employee, retiree or pensioner
of the Employer or any governmental entity.

Objects to, or refuses to participate in, any activity, policy or practice which the employee
reasonably believes: (1) is in violation of a law, or a tule or regulation issued under the law or, if
the employee is a licensed or certified health care professional, constitutes improper quality of
patient care; (2) is fraudulent or criminal; or (3) is incompatible with a clear mandate of public
policy concerning the public health, safety or welfare or protection of the environment, See
N.JILS.A. 34:19-3,

Disclosure to the Employer first, however, is not required where (1) the employee is reasonably
certain that the violation is known to one or more officials; (2) where the employee reasonably
fears physical harm; or (3) the situation is emergent in nature. The employee must give the
Employer a reasonable opportunity to correct the activity, policy or practice. It is the Employer's
responsibility to correct or prevent such violations. This is a legal obligation and a practical
necessity. A violation can {aint the credibility of the Employer and cause the Employer and its
employees to be subjected to adverse publicity leading to public distrust.

This policy is important to the Employer. Each employee should seek to resolve any problem
within Employer channeis before reporting it to any outside person or entity.

21




SECTION TWO: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

22



COMPENSATION

The Employer will pay its employees in accordance with the provisions of applicable collective
bargaining agreements, ordinances, and in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act
(“FLSA”) and the New Jersey Wage and Hour Law.

Unless otherwise specified by collective bargaining agreement, the Employer pay period begins
Sunday, and ends Saturday. Paychecks are issued on Thursday. Paycheck are issued bi-weekly
and there are twenty-six pay periods in a year.

No paychecks may be issued in advance of the normal payday, except if approved by the
Department Head and Chief Administrative Officer for special reasons, such as an upcoming
vacation or a holiday falling on payday.

Employees must cash their paychecks on personal time, not during official Employer working
hours. Compensation for all employees will be in concert with the recognized bargaining agents
of the employees, where applicable.

Employees are not entitled to retroactive pay increases if an employee separates employment,
voluntarily or involuntarily, from the employ of the Employer prior to the retroactive payment,
unless otherwise stated in the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

OVERTIME

The Employer complies with all applicable federal and state laws with regard to payment of
overtime work, including the New Jersey Wage and Hour Law and the federal Fair Labor
Standards Act.

Under the Fair Labor Standards Act, certain employees in managerial, supervisory, and
administrative, computer or professional positions are exempt from the provisions of the Act.
There are also employces who may be exempt because their compensation exceeds $107,432 per
year depending upon their job duties. The Chief Administrative Officer shall notify all Exempt
employees of their status under the Act. Exempt employees are not eligible to receive overtime
compensation and are required to work the normal workweek and any additional hours needed to
fulfill their responsibilities. Time off consideration for large amounts of additional hours may be
provided with the Chief Administrative Officer’s prior approval and at the sole discretion of the
Chief Administrative Officer.

Depending on work needs, employees may be required to work overtime. Employees are not
permitted fo work overtime unless the overtime is budgeted and approved by the Department Head
and the Chief Administrative Officer. Employees working overtime without prior approval will
be subject to disciplinary action.

Non-exempt employees are paid overtime at the rate of one and one-half times the regular rate of
pay for all hours worked over forty (40) in a workweek. Employees may choose overtime
compensation in the form of overtime pay or compensating time off. The maximum number of
hours that an employee may accrue for future compensating time off is 480 hours. Once this
maximum has been accumulated, all additional hours will be compensated by ovettime pay.
Employees engaged in police and fire protection work may accrue up to 480 hours of
compensatory time.

23




Employees engaged in fire protection or law enforcement may be paid overtime on a “work period”
basis. A “work period” may be from 7 consecutive days to 28 consecutive days in length, For work
periods of at least 7 but less than 28 days, overtime pay is required when the number of hours
worked exceeds the number of hours that bears the same relationship to 212 (fire) or 171 (police)
as the number of days in the work period bears to 28.

Accrued and taken overtime compensating hours must be noted on the employee’s time sheet.

Previously scheduled vacation time and holiday time are considered time worked for purposes of
determining overtime compensation, but sick time and personal time are not.

PAYROLL POLICY

Salary ranges are established by ordinance, and the salary must fall within the minimum and
maximum ranges for the employee's title. Employees are paid every two weeks.

The Township will not accept responsibility for any employee's personal finances. The Township
will acknowledge judgments against an employee's pay, but will not act as a mediator between the
employee and creditors.

MEDICAL BENEFITS

PLEASE NOTE: FULL DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE'S HEALTH, MEDICAL AND
HOSPITALIZATION PLANS CAN BE FOUND IN THE OFFICIAL INSURANCE PLAN
DOCUMENTS. IF THERE IS ANY CONFLICT OR INCONSISTENCY BETWEEN THE
INFORMATION IN THE POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL AND THE OFFICIAL
DOCUMENTS, THE OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS WILL GOVERN. THE EMPLOYER
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO MODIFY, REVOKE, SUSPEND, TERMINATE OR CHANGE
ANY OR ALL SUCHPLANS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, AT ANY TIME WITH OR WITHOUT
NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. THE EMPLOYER ALSO
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CHANGE INSURANCE CARRIERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPLICABLE LAW,

Part-time and full-time temporary or seasonal employees are not entitled to medical insurance
benefits. Failure to complete all necessary paperwork in accordance with the time frames advised
by the Employer will result in a delay of coverage. Additionally, failure to enroll dependents or
to make other changes or corrections in coverage may jeopardize available benefits. All employees
must notify the Employer of any change in status (i.e., marriage, divorce, birth, adoption, deatl)
within the time frame designed by the health benefit plan that would affect any employer-provided
health insurance. The Employer reserves the right to conduct a coverage audit to verify proper
coverage for employees and eligible dependents.

Dependent Defined. The Employer defines “dependents™ as used in this policy as it is defined
under the State IHealth Benefits Program. Dependents means an employee’s spouse and the
employee’s children under the age of twenty-six (26) years who live with the employee in a regular
parent-child relationship.

24



“Children” includes stepchildren, legally adopted children and foster children provided that they
are reported for coverage and are wholly dependent upon the employee for support and
maintenance. See N.J.S.A. § 52:14-17.26. A spouse or child enlisting or inducted info military
service shall not be considered a dependent during the military service.

The term “dependents” does not include spouses of retired persons who are otherwise eligible for
benefits under the State Health Benefits Program (N.J.S.A. § 52:14-17.25 et seq.) but who,
although they meet the age eligibility requirement of Medicare, are not covered by the complete
federal program.

Medical/Hospitalization Coverage. The Employer provides major medical and hospitalization
insurance for the employee. The Employer may provide major medical and hospitalization
coverage for the employee’s eligible dependents.

Full-time employees working on average thirty (30) hours per week or more and, if applicable,
their eligible dependents become eligible to participate in the Employer’s major medical and
hospitalization insurance plans in accordance with current health plan documents. [NOTE:
Municipalities may have hours’ requirements lower than thirty (30) depending on their specific
health insurance plans.]

Payments of such premiums by the Employer will terminate upon the employee’s separation from
service. Upon separation, the employee may, if eligible, purchase continuation health benefit
coverage to the extent, and for the period, provided by federal law.

Prescription Drug Coverage. The Employer provides prescription drug insurance for the
employee. The Employer may provide prescription drug coverage for the employee’s eligible
dependents.

Employees will be responsible to pay a co-pay on prescriptions, Full-time employees and their
eligible dependents become eligible to participate in the Employer’s prescription insurance plan
in accordance with current plan documents.

Payments of such premiums by the Employer will terminate upon the employee’s separation from
service. Upon separation, the employee may, if eligible, purchase continuation health benefit
coverage to the extent, and for the period, provided by federal law.

Dental Coverage. Full-time employees and, if applicable, their eligible dependents become
eligible to participate in the Employer’s dental plan in accordance with current plan documents.
All full-time employees, and, if applicable, their eligible dependents, shall be eligible for
enrollment in the Employer's dental plan in accordance with the specific requirements of the
insurance plan carried by the Employer.

The Employer provides dental insurance for the employee. Unionized employees receive dental
coverage in accordance with applicable collective bargaining agreements. The Employer may
provide dental coverage for the employee’s eligible dependents.

Payments of such premiums by the Employer will terminate upon the employee's separation from
service. Upon separation, the employee may, if eligible, purchase continuation health benefit
coverage to the extent, and for the period, provided by federal law,

25




Retiree Health Insurance. The Employer provides post-retirement medical health insurance
benefits and prescription benefits, provided the employee qualifies for and has retired through the
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits under the Police and Fireman’s Retirement System
(“PFRS™) or the Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”) and meets at least one of the
following requirements:

(a) Retirement on a disability pension; or

(b) Retirement with twenty-five (25) years or more of service credit in a state or locally-
administered retirement system and at least fifteen (15) years of service with the Employer; or

(c) Retirement at age sixty-two (62) or oider with at least fifteen (15) years of service with the
Employer; or

(d) Retirement with twenty-five (25) years or more of service credit in a state or locally-
administered retirement system, provided the retiring employee was employed by the
Employer as of August 1, 1991.

The Employer reserves its right to change eligibility requirements for retiree health benefits at any
time in accordance with legal requirements, |

Continuation Coverage. An employee and his/her family, if covered by the Employer’s group
health care package, shall have the right to temporarily continue their coverage due under the plan,
paying the group rate themselves, should they lose coverage due to the death of the enrolled
employee or termination for reasons other than gross misconduct on the employee’s part, pursuant
to the federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA). For additional
information, contact the designated human resources official.

Health Insurance Addendum - “When an employee’s spouse works for another employer with
family health benefits, then the employee may waive health insurance coverage under the
Township Plan in favor of the coverage under the spouse’s plan, In this event, the Township shall
compensate the employee at a rate of 25% or $5,000, whichever is less, of the annual amount saved
by the Township, as provided and/or limited by law, because of the employee’s decision to opt out.
An employee who waives coverage shall be permitted to resume coverage under the same terms
and conditions as apply to initial coverage if the employee ceases to be covered through his/her
spouse for any reason, including, but not limmited to, the retirement or death of the spouse or
divorce”. Adopted by Resolution #2016-292 on October 17, 2017

CLASSIFICATION AND PROMOTION

Individuals employed by the Employer fail within the jurisdiction of the New Jersey Civil Service
Cominission (“CSC™), which regulates employment within State, County, and Municipal
governments through a merit system. As an employee of the Employer, you are subject to the
rules and regulations of the CSC.

Classification

Individuals employed by the Employee fall within either “classified” or “unclassified” service.

26




“Classified” employees may be full or part-time, temporary, provisional or permanent. The
classified service is divided into competitive and non-competitive. The competitive division
includes all positions which require special skills, Those in the competitive division are subject to
examinations given under the auspices of the CSC.

“Unclassified” employees are those elected by popular vote, appointees of the governing body,
Department Heads and/or employees for whom the statutes of the State of New Jersey prescribe
fixed terms. These employees are not technically subject to the provisions of the CSC. However,
the Employer’s policy is to grant unclassified employees essentially the same fringe benefits and
procedural rights as their counterparts in the classified service, For any questions as to which
fringe benefits apply to unclassified employees, the Employer’s Human Resource Department
should be contacted.

Employment/Promotional Examinations

Pursuant to N.J.A.C, 4A:1-1 et seq., CSC examination may be written, oral or an evaluation based
on education, training and experience. CSC examinations may be either open competitive or
promotional depending upon the circumstances involved. In either case, a certified list will result.
To be eligible for an open competitive examination, you must meet the qualifications established
by the CSC at the time of filing. Preference in open competitive certification and appointment is
given to those who successfully pass examinations in the following order: (i) disabled veteran; (ii)
veteran; and (iii) non-veteran.

Promotional examinations are competitive and only open to qualified employees within the
department where the promotional opportunity exists. To compete in a promotional examination
and to be eligible for promotion, you nwst have permanent employment status and meet the
specific qualifications established by the CSC, as described in the individual Promotional
Announcement.

Probationaty Period — Employees in all divisions of the classified service must serve a working
test period after regular appointment as delineated by the CSC. This probationary period enables
the Department Head to evaluate the new employee’s conduct and work performance before
permanent status is achieved.

27




HIPAA COMPLIANCE

The Employer is committed to upholding both the letter and the spirit of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) regarding the use, maintenance, transfer, and
disposition of personal health care information. To the extent that the Employer maintains such
information about its employees and others, its elected officials and employees are committed to
protecting the privacy and confidentiality of that information.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION

Employees who suffer job-related injuries and illnesses may be entitled to medical expenses, lost
income and other compensation under the New Jersey Workers’ Compensation Act. Any
occupational injury or illness must be immediately reported to the supervisor or Department Head.
All required medical treatment must be performed by a workers’ compensation physician
appointed by the Employer or workers’ compensation carrier. Workers’ Compensation is not a
leave entitlement but only a wage replacement arrangement.

Payment for unauthorized medical treatment may not be covered. No temporary Workers’
Compensation benefits other than the payment of medical bills shall be paid until the employee
has been disabled for a period of seven (7) calendar days from the work-related injury, unless
otherwise required by law.

While receiving workers’ compensation benefits, the pension portion of an employee’s benefits
will still be paid by the Employer. If, however, an employee is receiving workers’ compensation
with pay, (which is defined as one hundred (100%) percent compensation of salary) the employee
is responsible for all deductions, including pension.

The Employer will not tolerate retaliation or discrimination against an individual because the
individual has filed a claim for workers' compensation benefits. This prohibition includes denying
or limiting any request for leave because an individual asserted a claim for workers' compensation
beneiits.

Workers” Compensation Light Duty Policy. The Employer will endeavor to bring employees with
temporary work-related injuries or illnesses back on the job as soon as possible. The Employer
may recognize a special obligation arising out of the employment relationship and create a
temporary light duty position for an employee when s/he has been injured while performing work
for the Employer and, as a consequence, is unable to perform his/her regular job duties.

The Employer will not treat an employee with a disability less favorably than an individual without
a disability or screen out an individual on the basis of disability in granting such requests for light
duty. The Employer will grant such request, at its sole discretion, and on a case-by case basis in
consideration of the medical report submitted by the workers® compensation physician, the
recommendation of the insuring entity, and staffing needs and requirements. The Employer
reserves the right to grant, refuse or terminate a light duty assignment at any time without cause
unless it is in conflict with the mandates of the ADA, FMLA, or NJFLA or other state or federal
leave laws, where applicable.

28




The employee and/or the Third Party Administrator (“TPA”) ate obligated to inform the Employer
of the employee’s medical progress and the Employer shall have the right to review same
periodically. Light duty assignments may be in any department and not just the employee’s normal
department. Employees on light duty will receive their regular salaries. If light duty is approved,
the employee or TPA must keep the Chief Administrative Officer and/or designated human
resources official informed of the medical progress. If, at the end of light duty period the employee
is not able to return to work without restrictions, the employee should contact the Chief
Administrative Officer and/or designated human resources official to discuss his or her options
under state or federal law.

This policy does not affect an employee’s rights under the Americans with Disabilities Act, the
Family and Medical Leave Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Contagious or Life Threatening
Ilinesses Policy, or other Federal or State law.

PAID HOLIDAYS POLICY

Employees are entitled to the following paid holidays:

New Year’s Day
Martin Luther King’s Birthday
Lincoln’s Birthday
President’s Day

Good Friday

Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day

Columbus Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day

s & & ¢ & ¢ 9

The Employer reserves the right to change or delete the holidays set forth above.

This policy is not intended to conflict with the collective bargammg_greement between the
“Employer and its umomzed emplovees If there is a confllct between this Manual and any

ollectlve bal gammg agr eemeut, the p; owsmns of the collective bargam:ng agr eement w111
o prevall for repr esented employees.

Weekend Holidays. If a paid holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following
Monday. If a paid holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday.
Employees who work on weekends will observe the holiday on the actual day.

Eligibility for Holiday Pay. To qualify for holiday pay, employees must be in pay status the
scheduled workday immediately preceding and immediately following the holiday. Any employee
who is absent without Borough approval on the day before or the day after a holiday shall not

29




receive holiday pay unless the absence was approved in advance. If a paid holiday occurs while
an employee is on approved vacation or sick leave, the employee shall not have that holiday
charged as sick or vacation time.

Religious Holidays. Employees who wish to observe religious holidays not designated as a holiday
by the Employer may do so without loss of pay by using available personal or vacation days, but
only to the extent that the employee has not already used up his or her available personal or
vacation days,

30




SECTION THREE: LEAVES OF ABSENCE

31




VACATION/PERSONAL LEAVE POLICY

Employees will be entitled to vacation and personal leave according to the terms of collective
bargaining agreements. New employees will only receive one working day for the initial month of
employment if they begin work on the 1st through the 8th day of the calendar month, and one-half
working day if they begin on the 9th through the 23rd day of the month. After the initial month of
employment and up to the end of the first calendar year, employees will receive one working day
for each month of service. Thereafter, vacation leave will be credited at the beginning of each
calendar year in anticipation of continued employment, based on their years of continuous service.

Permanent part time employees will be entitled to a proportionate amount of paid vacation leave.

Vacation leave not used in a calendar year will be used during the next succeeding year only and
will be scheduled to avoid loss of leave.

Vacation leave will not accrue during a leave of absence without pay or suspension, An employee
who leaves the Township will be paid for unused earned vacation leave. Vacation leave credits will
not accrue after an employee has resigned or retired although his or her name is being retained on
the payroll until exhaustion of vacation or other compensatory leave.

Employees are liable for vacation leave days taken in excess of their entitlements and will
reimburse the Township for days taken in excess of their prorated and accumulated entitlements,

Requests for vacation and personal leave are to be submitted to an employee's immediate
supervisor on an approved Request for Leave form.

An employee’s supervisor must approve the use of vacation time, in advance. While approval of
vacation leave shall not be unreasonably withheld, the use of vacation leave shall be subject to
staffing levels as solely determined by the supervisor or Department Head. Employees should
submit vacation requests as early as possible to ensure adequate staffing. Absent emergent
circumstances, a request to use vacation leave submitted less than three (3} days prior to the day(s)
off requested shall be granted only at the discretion of the Department Head.

Employees shall be permitted to carry a maximum of one (1) year’s accrued vacation time in
addition to the employee’s allotted time for the current year. No employee may carry more than
one year’s worth of vacation time to the next year without written approval of the Employer.

Employees who have an approved vacation/benefit time scheduled who call in sick the day before
or day following a vacation, holiday and/or leave, and/or any other authorized day of absence may
be required to submit a physician’s statement.

SICK LEAVE POLICY

Employees may accrue up to fifteen (15) working days of sick leave per calendar year. New
employees shall only receive one working day for the initial month of employment if they begin
work on the 1st through the 8th day of the calendar month, and one-half working day if they begin
on the 9th through the 23rd day of the month.

After the initial month of employment and up to the end of the first calendar year, employees shall
be credited with one working day for each month of service. Thereafter, at the beginning of each

32




calendar year in anticipation of continued employment, employees shall be credited with fifteen
(15) sick days. Part-time, temporary and ten (10) month employees shall be entitled to a
proportionate amount of paid sick leave.

An employee who exhausts all paid sick days in any one year shall not be credited with additional
paid sick leave until the beginning of the next calendar year. Paid sick days shall not accrue during
a leave of absence without pay or suspension but shall continue to accrue during a voluntary
furlough or furlough extension leave.

Sick leave credits shall not acerue after an employee has resigned or retired, although his or her
name is being retained on the payroll until exhaustion of vacation or other compensatory leave.

An employee who abuses this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment,

Carry-Over of Sick Time, Unused sick leave shall accumulate from year-to-year without limit.
The accumulation continues indefinitely until the time of the employee’s retirement. For all
employees hired after January I, 1986, they shall be entitled, upon regular retirement, to
compensation for 100 % of unused sick leave, up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) days.

For all employees hired on or after June 18, 2003, the maximum terminal leave benefit will be
$15,000.00.

Permissible Use of Sick Time. Sick time is intended for the following uses:

(D Time needed for diagnosis, care, or treatment of, or recovery from, the employee’s
own mental or physical illness, injury or other adverse health condition, or for preventive
medical care for the emiployee;

(2) To aid or care for a family member during diagnosis, care, or treatment of, or
recovery from, the family member's mental or physical illness, injury or other adverse
health condition, or during preventive medical care for the family member;

3) If an employee or a family member are a victim of domestic or sexual violence, and
are obtaining services from a designated domestic violence agency or other victim services
organization, medical attention, legal services, counseling, or are relocating due to the
domestic or sexual viclence;

4 Closure of an employee’s workplace, or of the school or place of care of an
employee’s child, due to an epidemic or public health emergency, or because of the
issuance by a public health authority of a determination that the presence of the employee
ot their family member in the commmunity would jeopardize the health of others; or

(5) If an employee needs to attend a school-related conference, meeting, function or
other event requested or required by an administrator, teacher, or other professional schoot
staff member responsible for the education of the employee’s child, or to attend a meeting
regarding care provided to the child in connection with the child’s health conditions or
disability.

33




Reporting Sick Time. Employees needing to utilize a sick day shall contact the Department Head
(or his designee) at least thirty (30) minutes prior to the scheduled start of the work day. Upon
request, employees shall be required to produce verification to substantiate the need for and the
appropriate use of sick time. Such shall consist of a note from a heath care professional attesting
to the existence of the employee’s or his or her family member’s illness or injury and/or the
employee's fitness to return to work to their Department Head. Such note shall not include details
regarding the employee or his or her family member’s actual illness.

Employees who must take five (5) or more consecutive sick days may be eligible for benefits under
New Jersey State Disability Benefits or the Workers' Compensation Policy and should contact the
Chief Administrative Officer and/or human resources official. Such absence may also qualify for
leave pursuant to federal, state or local law. If you have questions as to whether your illness or
injury or that of your family member may qualify you for any such leaves, please contact the
human resources official.

Advancement of Accrued Paid Time Prohibited. Employees may carry accrued time forward as
set forth above, but in no case may an employee borrow time from a future year.

Absences Not Covered by this Policy. This policy addresses absences for vacation/sick/personal
leave. It does not cover other absences, such as unexcused absences or absences for family and
medical leave, military service leave, military family leave, short- or long-term disability leave,
workers' compensation leave, bereavement leave, jury duty leave, victims of crime leave or any
other leaves offered by the Employer.

No Accrual of Sick, Vacation or Personal Days During Certain Absences. Employees may not
accrue sick, vacation or personal days during unpaid leaves of absence or other periods of inactive
service unless required by law.

The below policy is applicable only to those employees who do not receive sick time pursuant fo
Civil Service laws or regulations, or pursuant to any other law, rule, or regulation of this Stafe, to
the extent required by the New Jersey Earned Sick Leave Law.

For every 30 hours worked, an employee shall accrue one hour of sick leave. An employee may
accrue or use in any year, or carry forward from one year to the next, no more than 40 hours of
earned sick leave.

The Employer permits an employee, pursuant to N.J.S.A. § 34:11D-3(a), to use the earned sick as
listed above “Permissible Use of Sick Time”.

In regard to the above, the Employer requires three (3) days’ notice for any foreseeable use of
leave. If the use of leave is unforeseeable, the employee should notify the Employer as soon as
practicable of their need to use same. Should an employee need to use three (3) or more consecutive
days of leave, said employee must provide the Employer with reasonable documentation that the

leave is being taken for one of the purposes permitted above. Reasonable documentation shall be
as defined in N.J.S.A. § 34:11D-3(b).

An employee is eligible to use the earned sick leave beginning on the 120th calendar day after the
employee starts work. The employee may subsequently use carned sick leave as soon as it is

34




accrued. Employees will not be paid for any unused sick leave, except as expressly required by
federal or State Laws, or an applicable collective negotiations agreement.

An employee who exhausts all paid sick leave in any one year shall not be credited with additional
paid sick leave until the beginning of the next calendar year.

Employees are required to submit proof of illness after use of 3 consecutive sick days. The
Township may require proof of illness or injury when there is a reason to believe that an employee
is abusing sick leave or has been absent on sick leave for an aggregate of more than fifteen daysin a
12-month period. Abuse of sick leave will be cause for disciplinary action.

' Emplovees Covered under a Collective Bargammg Agl eement The emnlovment details -
“get out in this pohcv work in conlunetien with, and do n not renlaee. amend or supplement _
anv terms or conditions of employment stated in anv cellectwe bm gammg agreement that a
union has with the Emnlover. Wherever employment details in this pellev differ from the
terms expressed ina eolleetlve bargammg agreement with the Emnlover. the speclfic terms -
E ' -~ of the collective bargaining agreement will control. - ' -

EXCHANGE OF TIME

The Township recognizes that some personal matters create a need for time in excess of the
benefits granted by collective bargaining agreements. When an employee is off due to illness or
other problems that are permissible to charge to sick time and the employee has exhausted their
sick time allocation, the time will be charged to the remaining time accrued as vacation, personal or
compensatory time. When requésted, the Township will consider these problems on a case by case
basis.

DONATED LEAVE PROGRAM

[t is the policy of the Township to institute a donated leave program to support employees who are
suffering from a catastrophic iliness or injury or are needed to provide care to an immediate family
member who is suffering from a catastrophic health condition or injury that requires a prolonged
absence from work. The donated leave program is available to all eligible employees and permits
employees to voluntarily donate a portion of their accumulated earned sick, vacation, personal or
compensatory time to other employees who have exhausted their own accumulated earned leave
time and are suffering from a catastrophic health condition or injury or are needed to provide care
to an immediate family member who is suffering from a catastrophic health condition or injury,
requiring an employee's prolonged absence from work.

While using donated leave time, the leave recipient will continue to accrue sick, vacation, holiday
leave and guaranteed overtime and be entitled to retain such leave upon his or her return to work.

Any unused donated leave will be returned to the leave donor or donors on a prorated basis upon
the leave recipient's return to work, except that if the proration of leave days results in less than
one day per donor to be returned, that leave time will not be returned.

A leave recipient must receive at least five days in sick, vacation, personal or compensatory time or
a combination thereof from one or more leave donors to participate in the donated leave program.

35




A leave recipient will receive no more than 260 days leave and will not receive any such days on a
retroactive basis.

A leave donor may donate only whole days and may not donate more than 30 days to any recipient,
A leave donor will have remaining at least 12 days of accrued vacation leave if donating vacation
leave. A leave donor must have remaining at least 20 days of accrued sick leave if donating sick
leave. Aleave donor will not revoke the leave donation.

An employee is prohibited from threatening or coercing or attempting to threaten or coerce
another employee for the purpose of interfering with rights involving donating, receiving or using
donated leave time. Such prohibited acts shall include, but not be limited to promising to confer or
conferring a benefit such as an appointment or promotion or making a threat to engage in, or
engaging in, an act of retaliation against an employee.

Upon retirement, or resignation if applicable, a leave recipient's terminal sick leave payment will be
reduced by the number of days used through the donated leave program.

RECIPIENT ELIGIBILITY

Employees will be eligible to receive donated leave if the employee meets all of the following
criteria:

¢ Must be suffering from a catastrophic health condition or injury that is expected to require a
prolonged absence from work by the employee or is needed to provide care to a member of
the employee's immediate family who is suffering from a catastrophic health condition or
injury.. :

o With respect to an employee, a “Catastrophic Health Condition or Injury” is defined
as "alife-threatening condition of combination of other conditions” or “a period of
disability required by his or her mental or physical health or the health of the
employee’s fetus which requires the care of a physician who provides a medical
verification of the need of the employee’s absence from work for 60 or more work
days.”

o With respect to an employee’s immediate family member, a “Catastrophic Health
Condition or Injury” is defined as “a life-threatening condition of combination of
other conditions” or “a period of disability required by his o1 her mental or physical
health which requires the care of a physician who provides a medical verification of
the need of the employee’s absence from work for 60 or more work days.”

¢ Must produce acceptable medical verification from a physician or other licensed health care
provider. The medical verification must indicate the nature, severity, and anticipated
duration of the disability resulting from the serious health condition or injury involved,

¢ Must have completed at least one year of continuous service.

+ Must have exhausted all accrued sick, vacation, and administrative leave, all sick leave
injury benefits, if any, and all compensatory time off.

¢ Must have received at least 5 donated days from one or more leave donors to participate in
the program.

DONOR ELIGIBILITY

Employees will be eligible to donate leave to another employee if the employee meets the following:

36




e May donate up to 20 days to any recipient. Only whole days may be donated.

¢ Must have remaining to his or her credit following any donations at least 12 days of accrued
vacation, if donating vacation leave, and/or 20 days of accrued sick leave, if donating sick
leave. Donated leave days may not be revoked by the donor.

¢ Must not have solicited or accepted anything of value for the donation.

e Donation of sick time will not affect the donor’s contractual ability to sell back sick time in
accordance with provisions of the current Collective Bargaining Agreement.

PROCEDURE

An Employee must submit a written request to participate in the donated leave program through
their supervisor, at least 20 days before exhausting their accumulated earned leave. Acceptable
medical verification must accompany this request. The employee's supervisor may make a request
on behalf of the employee for his or her participation in the program as a leave recipient. The
supervisor will forward the request and medical verification to the Township Manager for approval.

When an employee is approved as a leave recipient, the Township, with the employee’s consent,
will post or circulate the employee's name in a conspicuous manner to encourage the donation of
leave time, and will provide notice to all Union Representatives. If the employee is unable to
consent to this posting or circulation, the employee’s immediate family members may consent on
his or her behalf.

An employee must sign a Recipient Affidavit consenting to participate in the donated leave
program. Employees wishing to donate leave to another employee must complete a Donor Transfer
Form authorizing the transfer of leave. Recipient Affidavits and Donor Transfer Forms are available
in each department. Completed Donor Transfer Forms should be forwarded to the Township
Manager or his/her designee for processing.

37



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER DONATED LEAVE PROGRAM RECIPIENT AFFIDAVIT

I have read the procedures regarding the donated leave program and [ consent to participation in
this program.

If my participation in this program is approved, I hereby authorize and provide my consent to
permit the Township to post or circulate my name, in a conspicuous manner, in an effort to
encourage the donation of Jeave time,

I understand that the number of days used through the donated leave program will reduce my
terminal sick leave payment at retirement or resignation if applicable.

I hereby request to participate in the donated leave program for the following reason (s}):

| have attached a doctor's certification to this affidavit attesting to the nature of my catastrophic
health condition or injury, According to my doctor, | expect to be absent from work until:

I certify that I have not solicited or accepted anything of value for the donation of paid leave time.

I have not directly or indirectly intimidated, threatened or coerced, or attempted to intimidate,
threaten or coerce any employee for the purpose of obtaining a donation of paid leave.

I have not interfered with any right that another employee may have with respect to contributing,
receiving or using paid leave under this program.

I understand that I cannot receive temporary disability (TDI) benefits for the same period thatI am
paid wages from donated leave or while using any of my own leave time,

[ also understand that the temporary disability benefits law requires that [ use all of the donated
leave before benefits can be paid.

Name (Print) Signature
Social Security Number Home Telephone
Date

38




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER DONATED LEAVE PROGRAM DONOR TRANSFER FORM

I hereby direct the Payroli Department to transfer leave credit as indicated below to be used by the
recipient.

DONATION SECTION:

Name of Recipient:

_ lwishtodonate_____ SICK DAYS - This will not reduce my sick leave below 20 accrued days.
__ Twishtodonate__ VACATION DAYS - This will not reduce my vacation leave below 12
accrued days

_ Iwishtodonate__ PERSONAL DAYS

_ Iwishtodonate ____ COMP DAYS

CERTIFICATION SECTION:

[ certify that I have not solicited or accepted anything of value for the donation of paid leave time.

Signature

39




FOR USE BY TOWNSHIP

Date
o Your request to transfer the above leave is approved,

This is to advise you that your request to transfer the above leave is not approved the following
reason {s):

O Employee has already received the maximum number of 180 donated days.

o Your vacation leave balance is below the required 12 days.

40




FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

In accordance with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), the Employer provides eligible
employees with up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid medical and family leave during any twelve (12) month
period and up to twenty-six {26) workweeks to care for a Covered Service member. At the conclusion of
the leave, subject to some exceptions, an employee generally has a right to return to the same or an
equivalent position. The following outlines employees’ rights and obligations under the FMLA and the
Employer’s policies implementing the FMLA.

Leave Available. Eligible employees may take up to a total of twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave during
any twelve (12) month period for any one or more of the following reasons:

¢ The birth, adoption or placement for foster care of the son or daughter of an employee, and to care for
such child;

» A serious health condition of a spouse, son, daughter or parent of an employee if the employee is needed
to care for such family member; or

e A serious heaith condition of an employee that makes an employee unable to work. Generally, the
incapacity must result in the employee’s inability to work for more than three (3) consecutive days
(although there are certain exceptions to this rule);

e Any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of the employee
is a member of the Regular Armed forces, National Guard or Reserves on active duty status during the
deployment to a foreign country, and or has been notified of an impending call to active duty status as
such in support of a contingency operation.

In addition, eligible employees who are spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin of a Covered Service
member shall be entitled to a total of twenty-six (26) workweeks of unpaid leave during a single twelve
(12) month period to care for the Covered Setvice member. During this single twelve (12) month period,
an eligible employee who qualifies for leave to provide care for the Covered Service member shall be
entitled to no more than a combined total of twenty-six (26) workweeks of leave.

Definitions.

“Covered Service member” means a member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National
Guard or Reserves, or a recent veteran who has been discharged, other than dishonorably, within the five
years preceding the family member’s initial request for leave, who has a serious injury or illness who is
undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise
on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness.

“Lligible Employee” means an individual who has been employed by the Employer for at least twelve
(12) months, has worked at least 1,250 hours during the preceding twelve (12) month period, and is
employed at a worksite with at least fifty (50) employees within seventy-five (75) miles of that worksite,

“Next of kin” means the nearest blood relative of the individual.

41




“Qualifying Exigency” covers a number of broad categories of reasons and activities, including short-
notice deployment to a foreign country, military events and related activities, child care and school
activities, financial and legal arrangements, counseling, rest and recuperation, post-deployment activities,
and additional activities agreed to by the employer and the employee.

“Serious Health Condition” means an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition that
involves either inpatient care or continuing treatment by a health care provider. It generally includes a
period of incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal care, a chronic health condition, a permanent or long-term
health condition, or restorative or preventive treatment.

“Serious Injury or Illness” means an injury or illness incurred by a Covered Servicemember in the line of
duty or on active duty in the Armed Forces, National Guard of Reserves, incurred in the line of duty on
active duty or whose pre-existing condition has been aggravated by his/her active duty service, that may
render the servicemember medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank or
rating.

Eligibility. Any employee who has been employed by the Employer for twelve (12) months or more and
worked 1,250 hours or more in the twelve (12) month period preceding the first day of the requested leave
may be eligible for an unpaid leave of absence of up to twelve (12) weeks during any twelve (12) month
period.

Leave to care for a child after birth, adoption, or foster care must conclude within twelve (12} months of
the child's birth or placement, If both spouses work for the Employer, they may only take a total of twelve
(12) weeks between them during the twelve (12) month period in order to care for a child after birth,
adoption, or foster care or to care for a parent with a serious health condition and a combined twenty-six
(26) weeks in a single twelve (12) month period for military caregiver leave or a combination of military
caregiver leave and other FMLA qualifying reasons. Each spouse may be entitled to additional leave for
other qualifying reasons under the FMLA, such as the employee’s own illness or for the serious illness of
the employee’s child.

Notice. When the leave is foreseeable, at least thirty (30) days’ advance notice to the Employer, in writing,
is required. If thirty (30) days’ notice cannot be provided, as much notice as is practical should be
provided. Failure to give reasonable notice may delay the availability of the leave.

Certification. Where leave is taken to care for a family member with a serious health condition or because
of the employee’s own serious health condition, medical certification is required and periodic
recertification may be required. In addition, where the leave is taken because of the employee’s own
serious health condition, a certification of fitness to return to work will be required.

The Employer, at its expense, may require an examination by a second healthcare provider designated by
the Employer. If the second healthcare provider's opinion conflicts with the original medical certification,
the Employer, at its expense, may require a third, mutually agreeable, healthcare provider to conduct an
examination and provide a final and binding opinion.

42




For military exigency leave, an employee may be required to provide certification that the covered military
member is a member of the regular Armed Forces, National Guard or Reserves who is on active duty or
called to active duty in support of a contingency operation, as well as certification from the employee
about the nature and details of the specific exigency, the amount of leave needed, and the employee’s
relationship to the military member. For military caregiver leave, the employee may be required to provide
information from the health care provider and employee and/or Covered Service member to support such
leave.

dic st ‘eports fr

Failure to provide requested documentation may result in denial of leave. The Employer may attempt to
clarify or authenticate the certification or may require additional certifications to support the need for
leave. When leave is taken to care for a family member, the Employer may require the employee to
provide documentation or a statement of family relationship (e.g., birth certificate or court document) and
proof of the need to care for the family member.

Utilization of Paid Leave. Generally, FMLA leave is unpaid. However, depending upon the
circumstances, employees may be entitled to receive short-term disability, workers’ compensation
benefits, paid family leave benefits, or other state-sponsored wage replacement benefits which pay a
portion of normal compensation. These benefits will run concurrently with the employee’s unpaid leave.
An employee who is eligible for these benefits may also choose to use accumulated paid leave during their
approved unpaid leave. Employees may not receive more than 100% of salary at any time.

Coordination with other Leave Policies. The period of time attributable to the employee’s absence due to
any workers’ compensation, disability, or sick leave, will be counted against available leave under this
policy to the extent permitted by law. In the event that additional family, medical or sick leave is available
pursuant to state laws, this leave will also run concurrently with FMLA leave to the extent permitted by
law.

Intermittent Leave. When medically necessary, leave taken because of a serious health condition of an
employee or family member or to care for a Covered Service member may be taken on an intermittent or
reduced work schedule basis. The employee and employer shall attempt to work out a schedule for such
leave that meets the employee's needs without unduly disrupting the employer's operations, subject to the
approval of the employee’s health care provider. The Employer may require an employee taking
intermittent or reduced work schedule leave to transfer temporarily to an alternative position with
equivalent pay and benefits that is better suited to the leave schedule.

Employment and Benefits Protection. During the leave, health benefits will continue for up to twelve (12)
weeks in each rolling twelve (12) month period under the same conditions as if the employee continued
to work. Employees must, however, pay the same amount for any benefits continued as they do prior to
the leave. Other benefits, if any, will continue during the leave under the same conditions as if the
employee continued to work.

43




If paid leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave, the Employer will deduct the employee’s portion of
the health plan premium as a regular payroll deduction. If the employee’s FMLA leave is unpaid, the
employee must pay his/her portion of the premium in accordance with a payment method that is devised
and mutually agreed upon between the employee and the Employer,

Employees should consult with their Department Head and human resources official prior to taking an
approved leave. If you fail to return to work after your FMLA leave for any reason except for
circumstances beyond your control, you must pay back all unpaid health insurance premiums, With regard
to the employee’s contribution portion of his/her health benefits pursuant to Chapter 78, P.LL 2011 and any
voluntary supplemental benefits that the employee may have, the employee is solely responsible for
making payment arrangements with the Employer or for any voluntary benefits, to the respective insurance
company. Your healthcare coverage may cease if your premium payment is more than thirty (30) days
late. With regard to any pension contribution that you may have, you must contact the human resources
official to make payment arrangements concerning contributions or credits paid toward your pension
benefits. If you fail to return to work after your FMLA leave for any reason except for circumstances
beyond your control, you must pay back all unpaid health insurance premiums.

Before returning to work following a medical leave (except for intermittent or reduced schedule leave)
due to the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee will be required to present a fitness for
duty certification from his/her health care provider that he/she is medically able to resume work. If the
date on which the employee is scheduled to return to work from FMLA leave changes, the employee is
required fo give notice of the change, if foreseeable, to the Employer within two (2) business days of the
change,

Subject to some exceptions, most employees will be returned to the position they left or to a position
equivalent in pay, benefits and other terms of employment. Individuals identified as “key employees”
(the highest paid 10% of salaried employees at the work site or within a seventy-five (75) mile radius of
that work site) at the beginning of their leave may not be returned to their former or equivalent position if
restoration will cause substantial economic injury to the Employer. Employees will be informed of their
key employee status at the beginning of the leave period.

A failure to return from FMLA leave for reasons other than the employee’s own serious health condition
may result in termination of employment. In the event that an employee cannot return to work at the end
of FMLA leave due to a continuation of his/her own serious health condition, they must contact the
Employer before the expiration of the leave to discuss their options under state and federal law. State
leave laws may provide additional leave similar to that provided under the FMLA. The Employer will
comply with these state law provisions to the extent they provide for more generous benefits. State leave
law benefits will run concurrently with FMLA benefits to the extent permitted by law.

Family Temporary Disability. During a period of unpaid leave to care for a family member with a serious
health condition or a newborn or adopted child or child placed into foster care with the employee, the
employee may be eligible for up to twelve (12) weeks of Family Leave Insurance (“FLI”) payments
through the State in a twelve (12) month period. FLI is a monetary benefit paid by the State and not a
separate leave entitlement, and will thus run concurrently with FMLA and/or NJFLA leaves.

44




NEW JERSEY FAMILY LEAVE

The Employer provides eligible employees with up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave
for specified family reasons under the New Jersey Family Leave Act (NJFLA).

Eligible Employees. To be eligible for NJFLA leave, an employee must have worked at least twelve (12)
months for the Employer and have worked at least 1,000 hours for the Employer over the previous twelve
(12) months.

Qualifying Reasons for Leave. An employee may take NJFLA leave to care for:

» A newly born or adopted child or a child placed into foster care with the employee, but the leave must
start within twelve (12} months of the birth of the child or the placement of the child.

¢ A family member (sibling, grandparent, grandchild, child, spouse, domestic partner, civil union partner,
parent-in-law, or parent of a covered individual, or any other individual related by blood to the employee,
and any other individual that the employee shows to have a close association with the employee which is
the equivalent of a family relationship) with a serious health condition.

Leave taken for reasons above must be consecutive and must begin by the end of the twelve (12) month
period after the birth or placement for adoption or foster care.

Leave Benefits. An employee may take up to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks of NJFLA leave in a
twenty-four (24) month period, which is measured as a rolling twenty-four (24) month period that
comunences with the first day of NJFLA leave taken.

You may take NJFLA leave to care for a seriously il family member:
¢ As a single block of time.

¢ By reducing your normal weekly, [but not daily,] work schedule for no more than twenty-four (24)
consecutive weeks in a twenty-four (24) month period.

e Intermittently in increments lasting at least one week, but less than twelve (12) weeks in a consecutive
fwelve (12) month period, when medically necessary.

Employees permitted to take intermittent or reduced-schedule leave must try to schedule their leave so
that it will not unduly disrupt the Employer’s operations. The total time within which an intermittent
leave is taken may not exceed a twelve (12) month period, if such leave is taken in connection with a
single serious health condition.

Intermittent leaves taken in connection with more than one serious health condition episode must be taken
within a consecutive twenty-four (24) month period, or until such time as the employee's twelve (12) week
family leave entitlement is exhausted, whichever is shorter. An employee taking a family leave on a
reduced leave schedule shall not be entitled to such leave for more than a consecutive twenty-four (24)
week period. An eligible employee shall be entitled to only one leave on a reduced leave schedule during
any consecutive twenty-four (24) month period. Any remaining family leave to which the employee is

45




entitled subsequent to the expiration of a leave taken on a reduced leave schedule may be taken on a
consecutive or intermittent basis.

Depending on the purpose of the employee’s leave, the employee may choose to use accrued paid leave,
concurrently with some or all of histher NJFLA leave. The employee will not be eligible to accrue
seniority or benefits, including vacation and holidays, during any period of NJFLA leave. The Employer
will notitfy employees of their options to continue to participate in our group health plans during NJFLA
leave.

Required Notice and Certifications. When requesting NJFLA leave, an employee must provide the
Employer thirty (30) days' advance written notice. If advance written notice is not possibie because of an
emergency, the employee must provide the Employer with reasonable oral notice and then follow up with
written notice,

The employee also must give the Employer a medical certification supporting the need for leave. The
Employer reserves the right to require second or third medical opinions and periodic re-certifications. The
employee must also provide periodic reports during his/her leave regarding the employee’s status and
intent to return to work as deemed appropriate by the Employer. If an employee fails to provide the
required documentation, the Employer may delay the start of the employee’s NJFLA leave, withdraw any
designation of NJFLA leave or deny the leave, in which case the employee’s absences will be treated in
accordance with the Employer's standard leave of absence and attendance policies and the employee may
be subject to discipline up to and including termination of employment.

if an employee provides false or misleading information or omits material information about an NJFLA
leave, the employee will be subject to discipline up to and including immediate termination of
employment, ‘

Benefits Protection. During a family leave of absence, the employee’s health benefits will be maintained
under the same conditions as if the employee continued to work. If the employee decides to return to
work when his/her family leave of absence ends, the employee may be reinstated to the same or equivalent
job with the same pay, benefits, and terms and conditions of employment. If the employee decides not to
return to work when the family leave of absence ends, the employee may be required to reimburse the
Employer for the health insurance premiums paid on his/her behalf during the leave of absence (except if
the failure to return to work was caused by the continuation, recurrence, or onset of serious health
condition which would entitle the employee to a leave of absence under the law or other circumstances
beyond the employee’s control).

With regard to any pension contributions, the employee must contact the human resources official to make
payment arrangements concerning contributions or credits paid toward his/her pension benefits,
Employees should consult with the Employer priot to taking an approved leave.

Returning to Work after NJFLA Leave. On returning to work after NJFLA leave, eligible employees will

typically be restored to their original job or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits and other

employment terms and conditions. Any employee who fails to return to work as scheduled after NJFLA

leave or exceeds the twelve (12) week NJFLA entitlement will be subject to the Employet's standard leave

of absence and attendance policies. This may result in termination if the employee’s continued absence

is unauthorized (for example, if the employee has no other Employer-provided leave available to him/her).
46




Retaliation Prohibited, The Employer and the NJFLA prohibit the interference with, restraint of or denial
of any right provided under the NJFLA and/or discharge or discrimination against any person for opposing
any practice made unlawful by the NJFLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to the
NIFLA. The Employer encourages employees to bring any concerns or complaints about retaliation or
compliance with the NJFLA to the attention of the human resources official.

New Jersey Family Leave Insurance. During a period of unpaid leave to care for a family member with a
serious health condition or a newborn or adopted child or child placed into foster care with the employee,
the employee may be eligible for up to six (6) weeks (twelve (12) weeks, effective July 2020) of Family
Leave Insurance (“FLI”) payments through the State in a twelve (12) month period. FLI is a monetary
benefit paid by the State and not a separate leave entitlement, and will thus run concurrently with FMLA
and/or NJFLA leaves.

An employee’s job is not protected while receiving FLI benefits —unless the employee is eligible for leave
under the FMLA, NJFLA, or is otherwise designated for an approved family leave of absence.

Employees must provide the Employer with advance notice of need for leave, as follows:

e At least thirty (30) days before leave to bond with a newborn or newly adopted child, unless the time of
the leave is unforeseeable or the time of the leave changes for unforeseeable reasons.

e In a reasonable and practicable manner for leave to care for a seriously ill family member on a
continuous, non-intermittent basis, unless an emergency or other unforeseen circumstance precludes
advance notice.

» At least fifteen (15) days before leave to care for a seriously ill family member or leave to bond with a
newborn or newly adopted child on an intermittent basis unless an emergency or other unforeseen
circumstance precludes advance notice.

47




APPLICATION FOR FAMILY AND/OR MEDICAL LEAVE (FMLA) AND/OR NEW JERSEY FAMILY

LEAVE (NJFLA)
Name: Date of Request:
Mailing Address:
Department: Hire Date:
Title:

Start Date of Anticipated Leave:

Expected Date of Return to Work:

Reason for Leave;

o

d

I request family leave to care for my newborn child, newly adopted child, or a newly placed
foster child in my home,

[ request family leave to care for my family member with a serious health condition. 1
request family feave to cate for:

U Spouse U Child U Parent

NJFLA Only: U Parent-in-Law d Civil Union/Domestic Partner

Name: Address:

1 request medical leave to care for my own serious medical condition.
Describe serious health condition:

I request military family leave because of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that my

USpouse L Child Q Parent
is on active duty or called to active duty status in support of a contingency operation as a
member of the National Guard or reserves.

I request military family leave because | am the

Spouse Q Child 0O Parent U NextofKinofa
covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

48




Application for FMLA and/or NJFLA (cont’d)

I understand that if my family or medical leave (total of paid and unpaid time) does not exceed twelve
(12) weeks (twenty-six (26) weeks for military caregiver leave), I will be returned to my same or
equivalent position.

I understand that if my family or medical feave exceeds twelve (12) weeks (twenty-six (26) weeks for
military caregiver leave), the Employer may terminate my employment in accordance with the
applicable law.

If my request for leave is approved, it is my understanding that unless the Employer has authorized an
extension of my leave in writing, I must report to duty on the first workday following the date my leave
is scheduled to end.

I understand that failure to return to work within five (5) consecutive working days following the
expiration of the leave will constitute unequivocal notice of my intent not to return to work and the

Employer may terminate my employment.

Signature of Employee: Date:

Received By:

Employer Representative
Complete and Return To:

Township Manager’s Office

49




RETURN TO WORK MEDICAL CERTIFICATION

Employee Name: Position:

Date leave commenced: Date employee can return to work:

To Be Completed by Health Care Provider:

I have completely examined this employee. In my medical opinion, his/her functional capacity
is limited such that there is no possible way to modify his/her work environment to accommodate his/her
physical and/or mental limitations according to the attached job description that was reviewed by me.

This employee’s condition prevents him/her from safely performing the essential functions of
his/her position and will be unable to return to work.
- O]'—

This employee is unable to return to work at this time and should be out of work until
(please provide date):

[ have completely examined this employee and in my medical opinion, his/her functional capacity
is limited. This employee can continue to work safely if the job, according to the attached job description
that was reviewed by me, is modified to match the modifications stated below:

Modified duty status should continue until

Date

[ have completely examined this employee. In my medical opinion I believe this employee can
resunte/perform all functions of his/her position without restrictions according to the attached job description
that was reviewed by me.

Signature of Health Care Provider: Date:

Name of Health Care Provider: Telephone:
Address:

Type of Practice:

Area of Specialization:

50




MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE POLICY

The Employer provides military leave in accordance with applicable State and Federal law. In all cases
involving military leave, the employee must, as soon as possible, provide his or her Department Head with
a certificate verifying the call to military duty prior to beginning the military leave.

Organized Militia, Any permanent or full-time temporary officer or employee, who is a member of the
organized reserve of the Army of the United States, United States Naval Reserve, United States Air Force
Reserve or United States Marine Corps Reserve, or other affiliated organization, including the National
Guard of other states, shall be entitled to a leave of absence without loss of pay or time on all work days on
which he or she is engaged in any period of Federal active duty, up to thirty (30) work days in any calendar
year, A military leave of absence is in addition to the employees’ regular vacation or other accrued leave.

Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of thirty (30) work days will be without pay but without loss
of time. A full-time temporary officer or employee who has served under such temporary appointment for
less than one year will receive military leave without pay but without loss of time,

New Jersey Organized Militia. New Jersey’s organized militia consists of the National Guard (Army and
Air), the Naval Militia, and the State Guard. Any permanent or full-time officer or employee who is a
member of the New Jersey organized militia shall be entitled, in addition to pay received, if any, as a
member of the organized militia, to a leave of absence without loss of pay or time on all days during which
he or she shall be engaged in State or Federal active duty, up to ninety (90) work days in any calendar year.

Any leave of absence for such duty in excess of ninety (90) work days will be without pay but without loss
of time. A full-time temporary officer or employee who has served under such temporary appointment for
less than one year will receive military leave without pay but without loss of time.

Reinstatement. To be reinstated by the Employer without loss of privileges or seniority, the employee must
report for duty with the Employer within the time required by law following release from active duty under
honorable circumstances.

In accordance with legal requirement, employees who take military leave are required to:
» Provide the Employer with proper notice of the leave;
» Apply for reinstatement within the time required by law;

« Have a creditable military record including completion of all required training and fulltime service and be
discharged under honorable conditions.

Military leave with pay will be granted to an employee in accordance with N.J.A.C, 4A:6-1.11, NLL.S.A.
38:23-1, N.J.S.A, 38a:4-4 and the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act
(“USERRA™).

On return from a military leave of absence, the employee will be reinstated as required by law. See The
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Act (“USERRA”). Failure to comply with the
requirement enumerated above or as required by law will jeopardize an employee’s reemployment rights.

JURY BUTY LEAVE

51



When an employee is called for jury duty and for the duration of such service, the employee shall be entitled
to a temporary leave with pay provided that:

+ The employee submits a written request with a copy of the summons to his or her Department Head within
three (3) business days after receipt of the summons;

* The employee inquires about the anticipated length of service and informs his or her Department Head of
the expected duration in advance of accepting service;

* The employee notifies his or her Department Head as soon as possible if the length of jury duty has been
extended beyond the original return date;

* The employee communicates with their Department Head to determine when they will report to work at
such time as his or her presence as a juror is not required;

+ The employee provides his or her Department Head with an appropriate certification or order from the
assignment judge, clerk of the court or such other officer as shall be appropriate setting forth the period of
such jury duty service to be attached to the weekly time sheet; and

* The employee reimburses the Employer for any payments or fees received as a result of such jury service
less any meal or travel expenses.

The Employer will reassign shift workers to the day shift during jury duty leave.

Witness Duty Leave of Absence. The Employer is awate that employees may be subpoenaed to appear as
witnesses in trials before the court, The Employer will provide employees with a paid leave of absence for
matters stemming from their employment, For personal matters, employees will use available personal
days or vacation days.

52




SECTION FOUR: PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS

53




APPEARANCE

It is the policy of the Township that an employee's dress, grooming and personal hygiene shall be
appropriate to the work situation. Radical departures from conventional dress, grooming and personal
hygiene are not permitted.

Office Appearance - Office workers must comply with the following personal appearance standards:

Employees are expected to dress in a manner that is normally acceptable in an informal business
environment. Employee appearance shall be neat and professional,

Employees shall not wear suggestive attire, jeans, shorts, athletic clothing, novelty T-shirts and
similar items of casual attire.

Professional skirts and "skorts” are permitted and shall be knee length (no cutoffs), Hair shall be
clean, combed and neatly trimmed or arranged. Sideburns, moustaches and beards shall be neatly
trimmed.

Khaki pants and golf shirts are acceptable. Periodically, and on a voluntary basis, orders are taken
for golf shirts embroidered with "Township of Lower." These come in various colors and are paid for
by the employee.

At its discretion, the Township may allow "casual day” when jeans and knee-length walking shorts are
permitted, Currently, "casual day" is Friday unless the Township offices are closed for a holiday, then it is
Thursday. On these occasions, employees are still expected to present a neat appearance and are not
permitted to wear ripped or disheveled clothing, athletic wear, or similarly inappropriate clothing,

Field Appearance - Certain non-uniformed employees may be required to perform field work (such as
inspections, housekeeping, archiving, etc ...} and shall follow basic requirements of safety and comfolt, but
shall still be as neat and professional as working conditions permit.

Uniform Appearance - Certain employees are required by contract to wear uniforms and are expected to
dress appropriately for the job, according to the standards established by their contracts and policies
initiated within their departments, Altering a required uniform is not permitted. Standards shall be
governed by requirements of safety, comfolt and any designated uniform.

All the appearance requirements noted in this policy are minimum requirements. Department heads may
establish more formal restrictions at their discretion if safety or professional situations require it,

If an employee reports for work improperly dressed or groomed, the supervisor shall instruct the employee
to return home to change clothes or take other appropriate corrective action. The employee will not be
compensated during such time away from work and repeated violation of this policy will be cause for
disciplinary action.

ABSENTEEISM AND TARDINESS

Regular attendance at work, reporting on time, and completing the required hours of work are necessary for
each employee so that the Employer may meet its commitments to its residents. Employee absences place
an additional burden on the remaining work force and seriously affect the Employer's ability to service its
residents. Management recognizes that circumstances beyond the employee's control may cause him or her

54




to be absent from work for all or part of a day. The Employer, however, will not tolerate unexcused absence
or tardiness.

All employees are expected to come to work regularly and on time and to prompily notify their immediate
supervisor or other management designee by personal telephone conversation when they are unable to do
so, Unless prevented by specific circumstances, the employee must provide notification at least one (1)
hour prior to the beginning of work for his or her position, In twenty-four (24) hour shift operations, notice
must be given a minimum of one (1) hour before the employee’s starting time, unless extenuating
circumstances prevent such notification.

Attendance and punctuality will be considered, among other factors, in the employee's performance review.
If'an employee needs to leave work early, the employee must receive permission from his or her supervisor
to leave prior to the regularly scheduled departure time. An employee who is absent from duty for five (5)
or more consecutive working days without approval or notification or fails to return to work for five (5) or
more consecutive working days following an approved leave of absence shall be deemed to have voluntarily
resigned from their employment.

To minimize the negative impact on both employees and residents, the Employer will regularly review
employee time records to identify chronic absenteeism and/or tardiness problems. Employees who exhibit
attendance and/or tardiness problems will be subject to established progressive disciplinary procedures.

ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

YOUR ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

The Township of Lower is committed to maintaining a safe, pleasant, and productive working environment.
You have the right to come to work without fear of interacting with someone under the influence of drugs
or alcohol. This is considered a Health & Safety Policy of the Township of Lower. This Policy highlights
the Township of Lower’s New Jersey Drug-Free Workplace Policy. The Township of Lower’s Designated
Employer Representative (DER) is the Superintendent of Public Works. The Alternative DIER is the General
Supervisor of Public Works.

The Township of Lower recognizes the prime importance to the Township of Lower of protecting the safety,

health and welfare of its employees and others with whom we interface such as citizens, contractors and

members of the public. The objective of this policy is to maintain a working environment free from the

adverse effects of substance abuse, While the Township of Lower has no intention of intruding into the

private lives of its employees, the Township of Lower does expect employees to report to work unimpaired

able to perform the duties of their job safely and effectively. In addition to absenteeism and accidents,
55



substance abuse can adversely affect performance, productivity and workplace morale. Co-workers may
feel that they have to cover up, or work harder because of someone’s substance abuse. Ultimately an
employee with an alcohol or drugs problem may lose their job and/or suffer devastating effects on their
health. The Township of Lower has a duty to safeguard its employees and the public from the risk of harm
from employees who work under the influence of alcohol and drugs. Similarly, employees who are working
under the influence, and employees who know that a fellow employee is working under the influence, owe
such a duty. The failure to honour that duty by taking the right steps to prevent this risk can result in legal
liability. All employees and contractors are responsible and accountable for ensuring that they, and their
employees, are not under the influence of alcohol or drugs when carrying out work for the Township of
Lower, Managers and supervisors are responsible for taking appropriate action where they identify
individuals who are at work while under the influence of alcohol or drugs. They should also take appropriate
action to protect the health and safety of individuals who may be affected.

To the extent this Policy supplements, and does not conflict with current collective bargaining agreements,
it is applicable, However, to the extent this policy may conflict with a current collective bargaining
agreement (CBA), the CBA shall prevail.

All testing information is considered confidential information by the Township of Lower and will be
maintained in a separate file along with the employee’s medical records, separate from other personnel files.
An employee has the right to inspect and obtain a copy of his or her drug test results. Drug testing
information will only be released to those employees of the Township of Lower with a job related need to
know, the DER and Alternate DER, to defend against any administrative action brought by the employee
against the Township of Lower, in grievance or arbitration proceeding under the terms of a collective
bargaining agreement, in a court of law under subpoena, as released by the employee in writing, the MRO,
Township of Lower insurers, rehabilitation programs and as otherwise required by law. Our Drug-Free
Workplace Policy does not tolerate the abuse of drugs or alcohol in the workplace. Understand that this
Policy prohibits illegal drug use on or off the job. We encourage any employee suffering from a substance
abuse problem to seek help. If you need help, we can direct you to our Employee Assistance Program (EAP)
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) for a confidential evaluation and referral for substance abuse treatment
if necessary. Notice of the Township of Lower’s New Jersey Drug-Free Workplace testing will be provided
on vacancy announcement and is posted in conspicuous locations on Township of Lower premises,

Our program can help improve your health and help you avoid trouble with the law. Even if you do not use
drugs or alcohol, this program will make your workplace safer and more productive, the Township of Lower
safer, and will help your friends and co-workers get the help they need. Compliance with this policy is a
condition of your hire or continued employment, except to the extent this policy may conflict with a current
collective bargaining agreement (CBA), which CBA shall prevail, The Township of Lower has developed
its drug-free workplace policy in compliance with New Jersey Laws, and the Fourth Amendment to the
United States Constitution as it covers employees of governmental entities. Applicant testing may begin
immediately and sixty (60) days after the effective date of January 1, 2022, all employees are subject to
testing as outlined below. The existing drug and alcohol testing program will remain in place until the
effective date of this program.

WHO DO WE TEST?

All employees performing safety-sensitive functions, and all final applicants for positions where safety-
sensitive functions are performed, and all other employees where reasonable suspicion exists. All DOT

56




regulated employees are also subject to testing under this policy. Using the criteria below, the following
positions have been classified by the Township of Lower as safety-sensitive:

Laborer (temporary and full time)

Equipment Operator

Diesel Mechanic

Mechanic

Mechanic’s Helper

Groundskeeper

Motor Broom Operator

Police Officer (all ranks)

Elected officials who are not otherwise classified as employees are not subject to testing under this Policy.
SAFETY-SENSITIVE CLASSIFICATIONS

Safety-sensitive employees are those employees who discharge duties fraught with risks of injury to others
that even a momentary lapse of concentration can have disastrous consequences. Factors which have been
considered in determining whether a position is safety sensitive include handling of potentially dangerous
machinery, sharp objects, working at heights, positions requiring a high level of cognitive function, mostly
unsupervised responsibility for children, and handling of hazardous substances in an environment where
others could be injured. Positions which have been found to be safety-sensitive include firefighters,
emergency medical technicians, law enforcement officials who carry firearms, fire and police dispatchers,
911 operators, heavy machinery operators, forklift operators, bus drivers, some (but not all) transportation
workers, pipeline operators, gas meter repairmen, jail officers, and those involved in security functions. All
Department of Transportation (DOT) regulated employees are determined to be safety-sensitive by those
regulations. Unless an employee comes under drug testing regulations of some federal agency, each
position, job classification or department, should be individually evaluated to determine whether the
employee is safety-sensitive in accordance with the above guidelines, (Attach safety-sensitive job
classifications on separate sheet if necessary.)

HOW DO WE TEST?

Drug and alcohol testing is done through chemical analysis which determines without question if a person
has drugs or alcohol in his or her system and in conformity with regulations of the New York Department
of Health, New Jersey Department of Health, or CLIA. Specimens subject to testing include urine, breath,
hair, oral fluids, or blood, Specimen collections, chain of custody and drug and alcohol tests will be in
substantial compliance with the U.S, Department of Transportation (DOT) procedures if applicable to the
type of specimen being tested. To ensure accuracy, urine lab test procedures shall include a preliminary
drug screening, two highly sophisticated scientific tests including adulterant detection, and are reported to
an independent certified Medical Review Officer prior to being released to the Township of Lower.
Observed urine collections will only be conducted with the consent of the donor, and the observer will be
by a person whose gender matches the donor's gender as identified by the donor at the beginning of the
observed collection. Observed collections will be conducted in a professional manner that minimizes
discomfort to the donor, and a medical professional may serve as the monitor, regardless of gender. The
Medical Review Officer may recommend the collection of an alternate specimen (e.g., oral fluid) when a
donor is unable to provide a sufficient amount of urine specimen at the collection site. The MRO will verify
that chain of custody procedures were adhered to, use of a certified laboratory and that the test results were

57




valid. The Township of Lower provides reasonable accommodations to employees and/or applicants in the
alcohol and drug testing program whose physical condition prevents them from producing a urine specimen
suifable for testing. You may contact the DER if you wish to make an accommodation request. In
accordance with Township of Lower policy, a fest result reported by the laboratory as a negative dilute
urine test is not considered a negative test but subjects the donor to immediate retesting; and a second
negative dilute urine test will render an applicant ineligible for hire and current employees, where a negative
test is required, not currently fit for duty. FDA approved on-site screening devices may be utilized with all
initial positive results confirmed by faboratory testing,

All positive initial tests are confirmed by GC/MS at established DOT cut off levels. An Alcohol content of
0.04 or higher using a DOT approved alcohol screening device, or breath alcohol device, is classified as a
positive test. The drugs fested for may include all or some of the following: (1) Amphetamines; (2)
Cannabinoids; (3) Cocaine; (4) Phencyclidine (PCP); (5) Opioids, designer drugs, or a metabolite of any of
the above substances and mind altering synthetic narcotics or designer drugs, or impairing effect
medications or substances, taken by employees working in a safety-sensitive classified position, in order
for the employer to fulfill its duty to provide a safe place to work as a safety rule. The term “illegal use of
drugs” includes any controlled or scheduled drug not used in accordance with a health care provider’s lawful
prescription for the user, or any substances banned by Federal or applicable State laws.

WHAT IF YOU TEST POSITIVE?

The Medical Review Officer will contact you confidentially to give you an opportunity to discuss your
results before reporting them to the Township of Lower as a verified positive. You may discuss the result
with the MRO up to seventy-two (72) hours after a positive result and ask questions of the MRO about
prescription and non-prescription medications, rebut or explain the test results to the MRO, and provide
supporting documentation. During this 72-hour period, any applicant or employee may request that their
split specimen be tested at a second laboratory and if positive, they will be responsible for that expense and
that cost may be deducted from their paycheck, depending upon the result and, if negative, the employee
will be reimbursed by the Township of Lower for the cost of the test and any lost time. Under federal
regulations, the MRO has the discretionary authority to notify the Township of Lower that an employee is
temporarily medically disqualified from the performance of safety-sensitive work during this evaluation
petiod and also has the duty to notify the Township of Lower if the employee is taking an impairing effect
medication, A positive drug or alcohol test is classified as willful misconduct and a violation of the
Township of Lower’s Policy. Any employee who tests positive, or refuses to be tested, may be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action for engaging in willful misconduct connected with work, up to and including
immediate termination, for gross misconduct connected with work, and violation of a safety rule for those
employees working in a safety-sensitive position and/or forfeit eligibility for Worker’s Compensation
benefits N.J. Stai. Ann. § 34:15-7 if post-accident and may adversely affect an employee’s eligibility to
receive Unemployment Compensation benefits. Any applicant made a conditional offer that tests positive,
or refuses to be tested, will be denied employment or have their offer withdrawn,

WHAT IF YOU FAIL TO FOLLOW SAFETY GUIDELINES?

Often times, impairment from drugs or alcohol will cause an employee to fail to adhere to safety guidelines
and other common sense safe working practices. Failure to wear a seatbelt, failure to use Township of
Lower provided or required safety equipment, failure to follow safety guidelines, or removal (or disabling)
of a safety guard will be willful misconduct connected with work, and subject the employee to discipline,
up to and including discharge for violation of Township of Lower Policy.

58




WHAT ABOUT IMPAIRING EFFECT MEDICATIONS OR SUBSTANCES?

Any employee working in a safety-sensitive position as defined by Township of Lower Policy is required,
as a safety rule, to pre-duty disclosure that they are taking or using ANY impairing effect prescription,
including medical marijuana, over-the-counter medications, mind altering synthetic or designer drugs or
other substance which may have an effect on performance of safety-sensitive duties. This includes medical
and recreational Marijuana, the use of which the Township of Lower, for safety reasons, will not be able to
accommodate employees working in safety-sensitive positions. However, for employees who are qualifying
medical marijuana cardholders reporting to work in those states which have statutory anti-discrimination
against the use of medical marijuana laws, qualifying employees, and applicants, may request a reasonable
accommaodation by contacting the DER and such request will be considered. If the fact that the employee
is taking or using an impairing effect medication or substance is not disclosed pre-duty by a safety-sensitive
employee and the employee tests positive, is otherwise determined to be taking or using such, or is
determined by the MRO to be a potential safety risk due to taking or using an impairing effect medication
or substance, that employee will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination, for violation of
this safety rule. If disclosure is made, the Township of Lower reserves the right to send the employee for a
Fitness-for-Duty evaluation to evaluate the medication or substance and its effects on the performance of
safety-sensitive duties. In advance of testing, employees are encouraged to have their own doctor make an
individualized assessment of any safety-related risks of the medications or substances which they are taking
or using, providing the doctor a copy of their job description and having the doctor render an opinion on
the safety-related risks. The employee need not disclose to the Township of Lower the medication or
medical condition involved to fulfill the disclosure obligation of this Policy. All information provided will
be kept separate from personnel files and in a confidential manner. The MRO, or another Medical
Professional selected by the Township of Lower, will make the final determination on the safety-related
risks of any particular medication or substance.

WHAT IF AN ADULTERANT IS FOUND?

The use of an adulterant (something added to a specimen {o attempt to hide drug use) is considered a refusal
to test and a violation of the Policy. The same would be true if you attempted to substitute a specimen. Any
employee who is found to have violated this Policy by attempting to defraud a drug or alcohol test may be
subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination for willful misconduct connected
with work, or withdrawal of a job offer. No last chance opportunity is available under such a circumstance.
It is a criminal offense to substitute or adulterate a test specimen. It also is a criminal offense in New Jersey
{0 manufacture, sell, give away, or possess any device or substance designed or commonly used to substitute
or adulterate a test specimen. N.J. Stat. Ann. § 2C:36-10. The MRO may declare a urine specimen to be
adulterated or substituted based on the laboratory repot.

WHAT IF I REFUSE?

A refusal to provide a specimen for testing, unless the MRO agrees a medically valid reason exists for your
inability, will be considered willful misconduct connected with work. Such willful misconduct connected
with work will cause an applicant’s offer to be withdrawn and will subject an employee to immediate
termination for cause, Under New Jersey law, unemployment compensation benefits may not be available
in such a circumstance. Failure to report for specimen collection within a reasonable time, two (2} hours,
of being directed to do so is also classified as a refusal under the Township of Lower Policy.

59




DRUG EDUCATIONAL INFORMATION

Attached to this Policy you will find drug educational information to assist you in recognizing the impairing
effects of drug use. The Township of Lower will conduct employee education of substance abuse education
and awareness and supervisor training on how to recognize signs of abuse, how to document and collaborate
signs of employee substance abuse, and how fo refer substance abusing employees to the EAP.

WHAT IF YOU HAVE A SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROBLEM?

The Township of Lower will provide support for employees who need support and help with alcohol or
drug dependency via confidential Employee Assistance Program (EAP), Substance Abuse Professional
(SAP) or Medical/Occupational Health support services. Employees who proactively seek treatment will
be treated sympathetically and in a confidential manner. In certain cases, this may require a transfer to other
duties (e.g. where a person is working in a safety critical role) while the individual is receiving {reatment.
However, the fact that an employee is seeking or undergoing treatment will not be a defence to a charge of
wilful misconduct if the employee reports for work under the influence of alcohol or drugs. Our Policy
encourages any employee with a drug or alcohol problem to voluntarily and confidentially seek help through
our EAP/SAP program. Coming forward after you have been notified to report for testing is not considered
a voluntary report, For confidential help with a substance abuse problem, contact the DER or the EAP/SAP.
Counseling and rehabilitation for alcohol or substance abuse is available through the EAP, and may also be
available under the health and welfare benefit program for employees, only to the extent of the current
benefits package. The Township of Lower will assume no direct financial responsibility for counseling or
rehabilitation costs of an employee, not covered by the EAP. Any costs in addition to or in excess of any
available health benefits are the employee’s responsibility. A list of state and national Substance Abuse
Resources is a part of this Policy. ‘ '

WHAT ABOUT A LAST CHANCE OPPORTUNITY?

No last chance opportunity is available to a probationary, part time or temporary employee, or in the case
of refusal, attempted adulteration, substitution, switching, tampering with, or diluting of a specimen or
attempt to defraud a drug test. Employees who receive an EAP/SAP evaluation favorable for rehabilitation
may be offered a last chance agreement which will subject the employee to unannounced follow-up testing
for up to 12 months, together with other educational and counseling requirements as recommend by the
EAP/SAP. A negative return to duty test is required to be placed back on active duty. A positive test, refusal
or failure to comply with any term of the last chance agreement during this follow-up period will subject
the employee to immediate termination.

WHY AND WHEN DO WE TEST?

e Pre-employment: Drug testing will be performed on all final applicants for safety-sensitive positions,
or who transfer into a safety-sensitive position, as a condition of their employment.

* Routine Fitness-for-Duty: Safety-sensitive employees may be required to submit to a drug test as part
of a routine Fitness-for-Duty examination and may be based on a particular job classification.

o Reasonable Suspicion: All employees will be required to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test if the
Township of Lower has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is under the influence of drugs or
alcohol, which adversely affect or could adversely affect the employee's job performance. Employees

60




selected for testing shall be suspended until a negative drug/alcohol screen or laboratory test result is
received. If a negative result, the employee will not suffer a loss of pay.

Post-Accident/Incident Testing: Testing of a safety-sensitive employee may be conducted under any of
the following circumstances: 1) the employee involved in the incident/accident was actively engaged in
the activity which objectively could have caused or contributed to the injury or damage; or 2) the
employce was operating, controlling, or repairing any machinery, tool, device, equipment or vehicle
that was involved in the incident/accident; or 3) the employee’s action or inaction was likely a
contributing factor to the incident/accident or cannot be completely discounted as a contributing factor
based on current info; or 4) testing is being conducted as part of the Township of Lower’s Post
Incident/Accident Investigation related to possible Workers” Compensation Disqualification; or 5)
testing is being conducted for other non-injured employees whose actions, or inaction, could have
contributed to the incident/accident as part of a root cause investigation; or 6) post-accident drug testing
is required by the Workers” Compensation Carrier or Fund.

Random: Employees in safety-sensitive positions are subject to random drug testing. Those subject to
testing are randomly selected, using scientifically valid methods, from a “pool” of covered employees.
Non-DOT safety-sensitive employees may be included in a Non-DOT testing “pool.” DOT regulated
employees should only be placed in a DOT testing “pool.”

Rehabilitation/Follow-up: An employee who has voluntarily requested rehabilitation prior to a positive
drug test may be subject to unannounced drug and/or alcohol testing under a work continuation
agreement, to determine whether he or she is under the influence of alcohol or drugs after successful
completion of the rehabilitation program. The testing will be without notice in conjunction with a
referral for treatment. | '

POLICY PROHIBITIONS

Employees, applicants and Contractors for the Township of Lower are strictly prohibited from engaging in
the following conduct:

1.

With respect to illegal drugs, employees and applicants violate this Policy by engaging in the
following conduct, whether or not during work tinme or on Township of Lower premises or property
and are subject to discipline up to and including discharge, or rejection of the application for
employment, or cancellation of contractual agreements;

a, Testing positive in a confirmed drug or alcohol test, or refusing to be tested.

b. Bringing and/or storing (including in a desk, locker, automobile, or other repository)
illegal drugs or drug paraphernalia on Township of Lower premises or property, including
Township of Lower-owned or leased vehicles, or vehicles used for Township of Lower

purposes,

¢. Having possession of, being under the influence of, testing positive for, or being in close
proximity to persons using illegal drugs, or otherwise having in one’s system illegal drugs.

61




d. Using, consuming, transporting, distributing or attempting to distribute, manufacturing,
selling, or dispensing illegal drugs. In addition, the Township of Lower will refer such
matters to the appropriate police authority.

e. A conviction or plea of guilly relative to any criminal drug offense occurring in the
workplace. All employees must notify Township of Lower in writing of any criminal drug
conviction no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction. Drug use off-the-job
which adversely affects an employee’s performance on the job, or which has the potential to
jeopardise the health or safety of other employees, the public or the Township of Lower’s
equipment or function, shall be cause for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.
Action will be taken against employees who are convicted for an off-the job drug offence.
In deciding what action will be taken, the incident will be evaluated in terms of the nature
of the conviction, the employee’s job assignment, the employee’s record with the Township
of Lower and other factors related to the impact of the employee’s conviction on the
‘Township of Lower.

f. Abuse of prescription drugs which includes exceeding the recommended prescribed
dosage or using others’ prescribed medications. Such prescriptions brought to work should
remain in the original labeled container and show both the prescribing doctor’s name and
the prescription’s expiration date.

g, Switching, tampering with, diluting, or adulterating any specimen or sample collected
under this Policy, or attempting to do so.

h. Refusing to cooperate with the terms of this Policy which includes submitting to
questioning, drug testing, medical or physical tests or examinations, when requested or
conducted by Township of Lower or its designee, is a violation of Township of Lower Policy
and may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. A refusal to test
includes conduct obstructing testing such as failure to sign necessary paperwork or failing
to report to the collection site at the appointed time.

i, Failure to advise pre-duty the Township of Lower of the use of a prescription or over-the-
counter drug which may alter the employee’s ability to safely perform the essential functions
of his or her job.

j. Failure of an employee to notify his or her supervisor before reporting to work if he or
she believes that he or she is under the influence of drugs.

k. We stricily prohibit employees from using hemp products, which some within the
medical community have indicated may cause a positive marijuana test result. We will not
generally consider use of hemp products a valid medical explanation for a positive marijuana
test result.

2. With respect to alcohol, employees violate this Policy by engaging in the following conduct during
work time or on Township of Lower premises or property:

62



a. Bringing and/or storing (including in a desk, locker, automobile, or other repository)
alcohol on Township of Lower premises or property, including Township of Lower owned
or leased vehicles, or vehicles used for Township of Lower purposes.

b. Having possession of, being under the influence of, testing positive for or having in one’s
system, alcohol, Using, consuming, transporting, distributing or attempting to distribute,
manufacturing, selling, or dispensing alcohol, Exceptions to the policy concerning alcohol
consumption or possession may be made only upon the prior explicit approval of senior
management for specifically identified circumstances.

c. A conviction or plea of guilty relative to any criminal alcohol offense occurring in the
workplace. All employees must notify Township of Lower in writing of any criminal alcohol
conviction not later than five calendar days after such conviction. Alcohol use off-the-job
which adversely affects an employee’s performance on the job, or which has the potential to
jeopardise the health or safety of other employees, the public or Township of Lower’s
equipment or function, shall be cause for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.
Action will be taken against employees who are convicted for an off-the job alcohol offence.
In deciding what action will be taken, the incident will be evaluated in terms of the nature
of the conviction, the employee’s job assignment, the employee’s record with the Township
of Lower and other factors related to the impact of the employee’s conviction on the
Township of Lower.

d. Switching, tampering with, or adulieraiing any specimen or sample collected under this
Policy, or attempting to do so.

e. Refusing to cooperate with the terms of this Policy which includes submitting to
questioning, alcohol testing, medical or physical tests or examinations, when requested or
conducted by Township of Lower or its designee, is a violation of Township of Lower Policy
and may tesult in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, A refusal to test
includes conduct obstructing testing such as faiture to sign necessary paperwork or failing
to report to the collection site at the appointed time.

f. Failure of employee to notify his or her supervisor before reporting to work if he or she
believes that he or she is under the influence of alcohol.

HOW CAN YOU HELP?

L If you are doing drugs — STOP!

1I. iIf you need help — ASK!

I, If you know someone at work who is doing drugs — TAKE ACTION!

IV.  Don’t let someone else’s drug or alcohol problem be the cause of an ON THE JOB INJURY'!

Only with your help can we truly have a gafe, pleasant, and productive environment at the Township of

Lower,

63



Township of Lower
2600 Bayshore Road
Villas, NJ 08251
Phone: 609-886-2005
Fax: 609-886-1232

64




DRUG EDUCATIONAL INFORMATION

Alcohol (Depressant)

Common Forms: Beer, wine, hard liquor
How Used.: Oral ingestion, patterns of use vary.
Desired Effect: People drink to relax, to socialize, as a part of a religious ceremony, for the

conirol of physical and emotional pain, or for a variety of other reasons. Its depression
of the central nervous system is progressive and continuous. It is a mood-modifying drug
that usually provides a temporary feeling of mild euphoria and stimulation, This is a
result of the initial depression of the higher centers of the brain which control inhibition.
The more you drink, the more sedated you then become.

Time in body: Depends on many factors, such as body size, amount of alcohol consumed within an
hour, and other individual factors. Performance is effected in relation to the amount
consumed. Generally, a medium-sized person eliminates the equivalent of one drink per
hour, However, "hangover" effects of alcohol have been documented for as long as 14
hours after consuming an intoxicating dose, well after the blood alcohol iever have
returned to zero.

Observable effects:  Staggering gait
Slurred speech
Odor of alcoholic beverage
Shaky hands
Poor eye-hand coordination
Slowed reaction time
Eyes react slowly to light - wears sun glasses

‘Work behavior: Aurrive late, leave early, mis-outs
Neglect of physical appearance
Restlessness
Tremors (hands, face, fingers, lips tongue)
Slurred speech
Uninhibited - makes inappropriate rematks

Material Empty liquor bottles, cans, often in pa‘Jgar bags
Indicators; Flasks, sometimes disguised as other things

Slang Terms Booze, juice, hooch, grape, eye-opener, hair-of-the-dog, brew, suds, etc

Amphetamines (Amphetamine and Methamphetamine)

Stimulant
Common forms: Amphetamine - usually capsules or white, flat, double-scored pills.
Methamphetamine - white or granular powder, often packaged in aluminum foil or
plastic bags.
How used: Orally, sniffed up the nose, or injected.

Desired effects:Most commonly sought after effects include euphoria, postponement of fatigue,
increased energy, alertness and feelings of personal power. Repeated or chronic use often
causes a strong dependence reaction and a schizophrenic loss contact with reality. Users
coming off the drug experience extreme fatigue-induced sleep ("crash"), often followed
by continued fatigue and depression.

Time in body: Injection or sniffed up the nose; "rush” felt within I minute, Orally, effects felt within
about ¥ hour. Single doses detectable for about 48 hours,

65




Observable

effects: Dilated pupils. Flushed face, rapid respiration, profuse sweating. Hyper-
excitability, talkativeness, restlessness. “"Stereotypic" behavior often seen: person
engages in repetitive tasks or mannerisms for extended periods of time. In large doses,
inability to concentrate, confusion, panic.

Work behavior: Try to do _{(ob beyond competence level. Impaired ability to operate equipment,
Takes chances, risks,

Mafterial Pills, capsules, white powder, granular crystals

Indicators: Foil wrapped tubes, baggies. Hypodermics and paraphernalia for injections

Slang terms:  Defies, bennies, speed, crank, ice, crystal, white crosses, black beauties

Cocaine - A Stimulant

Common forms: Cocaine - White crystalline powder. Free-base cocaine (crack) - white granular
L n
rocks

How used: Cocaine--usually snorted up the nose through a straw or from a "coke spoon"
after being chopped to a fine powder with a razor blade. "Crack" -- freebase cocaine--is
a processed version which is vaporized in a pipe and inhaled. Either form may also be
injected.

Desired

effect; Most commonly sought after effects are euphoria, stimulation, postponement of
fatigue and feelings of personal power. The "high" lasts approximately one hour, with a
"down" follow-on period. Psychological and physical dependence to “crack" after one
to two uses; dependency to snorted coke takes longer to develop.

Time in Body: Single doses detectable for 12-24 hours

Observable

effects: Dilated pupils. Talkativeness, restlessness. Sniffing, runny nose, irritated or
bloody nose. Dramatic mood swings, from "down" to "up” in minutes, Sense of power
sometimes manifested in aggressiveness

Work issues:  Frequent t}‘;ps "to the restroom"—secluded place. Frequent sick-outs and unexplained
absences, Hyper-excitability and over-reaction to stimulus. Isolation/withdrawal from
friends and activities. Financial problems--borrows, steals and/or sells to support habit,
Insomnia, restlessness, lack of sleep

Material

Indicators: Small folded paper envelopes (bindles), plastic bags, small vials used to store
drug. Razor blades, mirrors, cut off straws, coke spoons. Small glass pipes, and heat
sources used to volatilize crack. .

Slang terms: Coke, snow, toot, crack, blow, happy dust, "C"

66




Marijuana

Conumon forms: Dried green-brown flowers and leaves of the hemp (cannabis) plant--also as
com;)relssed tar like lumps (hashish) and sometimes as an oil to be spread on cigareftes
(hash oil).

How used: . Generally smoked in hand-rolled cigareites (joints) or a smali pipe, sometimes
eaten in baked goods or steeped to make a tea.

Desired

effects: Effects are somewhat dependent on the user and potency of the plant. Low doses

tend to produce a dreamy state of relaxation and euphoria with changes in sensory
Elerceptions (usually intensified) and alteration in thought formation and expression.

igher doses intensify these reactions with fragmentation of thought, memory
impairment, shortened attention span, and illusions of insight. Marijuana currently sold
on the street is 10 times more potent today than in past years.

Time in body: Marijuana dissolves in body fat cells and is detectable for extended periods of time--up
to seven {7) days for occasional users and four (4) weeks or longer for chronic users

Observable

effects: Red blioodshot glassy eyes (users often wear dark glasses and use eye drops to
combat). Poor muscular controi. Rambling, disconnected speech patterns. Euphoria--as
laughing out of context. Getting "hung up" - i.e. going into the bathroom to comb your
hair ancF coming out two hours %ater. Distinctive odor i ait and/or on clothing.

Work issues: Lack of attention, vision and auditory changes, and poor muscular control. Inability to
respond to emergencies and sudden situational changes. Frequent sick-outs and mis-
outs. Lackadaisical "I don't care" attitude about person and work. Chronic health
problems for frequent users--persistent cough, fatigue, frequent sickness.

Material

indicators: Baggies of green-brown vegetable matter; rolling papers; small pipes (for
marijuana) and very small pipes (for hashish); "roach clips” to hold the burned end of
the marijuana cigarette; “roaches" discarded on the floor or in ash trays; distinctive odor
of marijuana in the air,

Slang termis:  Dope, grass, reefer, weed, ganja, pot, etc,

Opioids (Morphine and Codeine)--Narcotic Depressants

Common forms: Street forms are pills, liquids and powders, Morphine is derived from opium.
Opium dissolved in alcohol, containing 10% morphine, is legally available in many
states as "paregoric.”

Morphine and codeine are widely used medicinally. Morphine is a naturally
occurring alkaloid, and is also found in products containing poppy seeds. Heroin is a
semi-synthetic derivative of morphine.

How used: _ Opium js usually smoked. Codeine is most commonly taken orally. Heroin
and morihme are injected; powders can be snorted; cigarettes can be dipped in paregoric
and smoked,

Desired effects:Most commonly effects include euphoria, relief from pain, and a feeling of dissociated
well-being., Low maintenance doses allow the addict to function on a daily basis. The
heroin user experiences a "rush" described as a very pleasurable whole body reaction
lasting 5-10 minutes, followed by several hours of mental and physical relaxation.

Time in body: Single doses are usually detectable for 48-72 hours.

67




Observable
effects:

Work issues:

Material
indicators;

Slang terms:

Pinpoint pupils. Sweating, nausea, vomiting in novice users. "Nodding off"--the
head drooping toward the chest, then bobbing up. Overly calm, detached facial
expression. Confusion, mental dullness and slurred speech, Needle marks over veins,

Increased sick-outs, mis-outs. Lack of interest in work, no attention to detail. Sharing of
needles brings a high risk of confracting hepatitis and/or AIDS. High cost of the
addiction may lead to borrowing money, stealing and selling (on or off the premises).

Foil or paper "bindles" for holding the drug. Charred spoons or bottle caps, used
to cook the drug. Multiple burned matches used to cook the drug. Needles, syringes, eye
droppers used for injection. Balloons or prophylactics used to hold drug. Bloody tissue
papers, blood on shirt sleeves.

Heroin, dope, smack, shit, hard stuff, "H", china, monkey dust, china white, etc.

Phencyclidine (PCP)

Common forms:

How used:

Desired
effects:

Time
in body:

Observable
effects:

High doses:

Work issues:

Material
indicators;

Slang terms:

Pills, liquid, powder, and PCP cigarettes

Usually smoked with tobacco or marijuana, but may be injected, swallowed,
eaten or snorted.

Users report desirable feelings of immobility, numbness, and detachment. Other
sought-after effects include feelings of strength, Fower, and invulnerability, a dream-like
detachment from reality (often coupled with lack of coordination).

Usually detectable 1- 8 days, but chronic users may test positive for several
weeks following the last dose.

Low doses: Sedated, euphoric, uncoordinated behavior. Wide mood swings.
Sparse and purposeless speech. Muscle rigidity and jerky eye movements (nystagmus).

Coma-like states with muscle rigidity and staring, haif-closed eyes. Sudden stimuli may
send the user info a psychotic state, with extreme agitation, violent behavior, abnormal
strength, and inability to speak or comprehend.

Wide mood swings, unpredictable behavior, aggressive. Tremendous liability in the
work force.

Cigarettes that look as if they have been wet. Crystals, liquids or powders in
small vials. Folded aluminum foil or paper packets.

PCP, angel dust, hog, dust, DOA, shermans, sherins, peace pills, dummy, etc.

68




SUBSTANCE ABUSE PROFESSIONALS

NATIONAL RESOURCES
A27 Alcohol & Drug Abuse-Addiction ... 1-800-274-2042
Al-Anon/Alateen Family Group Headquarters..........cocovviiiiiiiniiniin, 1-800-356-9996
Alcoholics Anonymous World Service ..o, 1-212-870-3400
American Council on Alcoholism Helpline.......coccoviciiininnininnnin, 1-800-527-5344
800 Cocaine--An Information and Referral Hotline.......ooivniiinincninninns 1-800-262-2463
Nar-Anon Family Group Headquarters ..o, [-310-547-5800
NAFCOICS ATOIYIIOUS .uevieaivecreareriercerirrretreareseessarsssserennesressnesasesussns st sissnsies 1-818-773-9999
National Association of Alcoholism (NAADACY .......ccccnmiciriecarenrconnnnenns 1-800-548-0497
www .naadac.org AKX i e 1-800-377-1136
National Association of Addiction Treatment Professionals....c.ovieriininn, 1-717-581-1901
WAVW.Naalp.org
National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence, Inc.......ociviivvcraenne 1-212-269-7797
www.neadd.org
Hope Line (24-hour affiliate referral)......coooiiiicniiiiciin, 1-800-NCA-CALL
Center for Substance Abuse Prevention’s Workplace Hotline..........ocoee 1-800-WORKPLACE
National Clearinghouse for Alcohol & Drug Information.........cccevvieeviiivernin, 1-800-729-6686
Center for Substance Abuse Prevention’s Drug Information,
Treatment & referral Hotline ,...cooovvvicrniniiernie s 1-800-662-HELP
(Spanish-ESpanol)........c.ciiimiii s 1-800-66-AYUDA

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Cape Assist
3819 New Jersey Ave.
Wildwood, NJ 08260

609-522-5960
www.capeassist.org

69




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER
ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY
NEW JERSEY NON-DOT

NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES AND APPLICANTS

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

The Township of Lower is committed to maintaining a safe, pleasant, and productive working environment.
You have the right to come fo work without fear of interacting with someone under the influence of drugs
or alcohol. This Policy highlights the Township of Lower’s New Jersey Drug-Free Workplace Policy. The
Township of Lower’s Designated Employer Representative (DER) is Superintendent of Public Works. The
Alternative DER is the General Supervisor of DPW,

The Township of Lower recognizes the prime importance to the Township of Lower of protecting the safety,
health and welfare of its employees and others with whom we interface such as citizens, contractors and
members of the public. The objective of this policy is to maintain a working environment free from the
effects of substance abuse. While the Township of Lower has no intention of intruding into the private lives
of its employees, or preventing them from taking the medicine that they may need to stay safe and heaithy,
the Township of Lower does expect employees to report to work unimpaired able to perform the duties of
their job safely and effectively. In addition to absenteeism and accidents, substance abuse can adversely
affect performance, productivity and workplace morale. Co-workers may feel that they have to cover up, or
work harder because of someone’s aicohol or drug use, Ultimately an employee with an alcohol or drugs
problem may lose their job and/or suffer devastating effects on their health. The Township of Lower has a
duty to safeguard its employees and the public from the risk of harm from employees who work under the
influence of alcoho! and drugs. Similarly, employees who know that a fellow employee is working under
the influence owe a similar duty. The faifure to honour that duty by taking the right steps to prevent this risk
can result in legal liability.

To the extent this Policy supplements, and does not conflict with current collective bargaining agreements,
it is applicable.

Notice of the Township of Lower’s New Jersey Non-DOT Drug and Alcohol testing will be provided on
vacancy announcement and is posted in conspicuous locations on Township of Lower premises.

Our program can help improve your health and help you aveid trouble with the law. Even if you do not use
drugs or alcohol, this program will make your workplace safer and more productive, the Township of Lower
safer, and will help your friends and co-workers get the help they need. Compliance with this policy is a
condition of your hire or continued employment. The Township of Lower has developed its drug-free
workplace policy in compliance with New Jersey Laws, and the Fourth Amendment to the United States
Constitution as it covers employees of governmental entities. Applicant testing will begin immediately and
sixty (60) days after the effective date of January 1, 2022 all employees are subject to testing as outlined
below. The existing drug and alcohol testing program will remain in place until the effective date of this
prograni,

70



DESIGNATED EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVE (DER) GUIDELINES
ON USE OF FORM TOOLKITS

The following are helpful tips the DER and/or alternate DER may wish to consult
in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities:

Getfing Started:

Populate the Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy Development Worksheet with the
information specific to your entity and have this reviewed by legal counsel. As part
of this process, you should complete the Determination of Safety-Sensitive
Positions [DEFWO04]. That is a significant role in designating those as safety-sensitive
in your policy.

Establish date for infroduction of the Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy to employees.
This Policy includes the following parts: (1) Policy, (2) Drug Education Information,
(3) Substance Abuse Professionals resource list, You should secure a drug and alcohol
awareness video for the meeting and send out notice of meeting date and time. Make
a copy of the Policy for each employee. Note: the Forms Toolkit and DER
Guidelines are not to be given to the employees at the meeting but can be viewed by
them at any time.

On the date of the employee awareness training, have an Employee Awareness
Training Session Log out for employees to sign. Distribute to each employee the
following 4 part Policy: Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy, Drug Education
Information, Substance Abuse Professional resource list, and the Active
Employee Certificate of Agreement, Receipt of Drug-Free Workplace Policy
Consent Form, Then walk through significant Policy provisions. At the end of the
program have each active employee sign the Active Employee Certificate of
Agreement Receipt of Employee Policy Statement Consent Form [DFW01] and
place in their personnel file.

Establish a time and date to conduct reasonable suspicion training for supervisors.
This training should be one hour for alcohol and one hour for drugs and conducted by

someone who can issue certifications of such training.

Prepare file folders for your Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy records retention and
maintain these files separate from personnel files as you would medical records.

Select a Certified Medical Review Officer, Laboratory, collection site and Third
Party Administrator to assist with your program.

71




Applicant/Employee Testing

Have all applicants sign the Pre-Employment Substance Testing, Consent and
Release Form [DFW02] before you schedule them for a pre-employment drug test.

If the employee fails to show for testing on time, you should receive a call from the
collection site. Failure to show up on time is usually determined to be a “refusal to
test” subjecting the employee to discipline or rejection of application under your
Policy. If there is a refusal, you may wish to consider faxing an Acknowledgment of
Consequences of Refusal to Participate in Drug or Alcohol Testing [DFWO03] to
the collection site while the employee is still present.

CMRO Report

You should get to know your Certified Medical Review Officer (CMRO) and
request that he/she explain their role and answer your questions.

Post-Accident
In the event the employee is involved in a work place accident, check that the
employee is drug tested in accordance with your Policy and worker’s compensation
requirements. :

Reasonable Suspicion
The trainer that you have selected for Supervisory Reasonable Suspicion training
should be able to provide you both Contemporaneous and Long-term Observation
checklists.

Refusal to Submit to Testing

Use Acknowledgment of Consequences of Refusal to Participate in Drug or
Alcohol Testing [DFW03] and have two (2) supervisors sign verifying that refusal.

Removal from Safety-Sensitive Duty on a Verified Positive or Refusal

Do not wait on the CMRO’s written report but act upon the CMRO’s oral report of
verified positive drug test, adulterated or substituted drug test.

72




ACTIVE EMPLOYEE CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT [DFWO01]

I do hereby certify that [ have received and read the New Jersey Drug-Free Workplace Policy, which explains the
Township of Lower’s adherence to New Jersey Laws. I have had the terms and conditions of the Township of
Lower's Drug and Alcohol Testing policy explained to me relative to screening or tests by the Township of Lower,
for the purpose of determining the presence of, and content of, any or all of the following substances under
circumstances as set forth in the Township of Lowet's Policy:

1. Amphetamines 4, Phencyclidine (PCP)
2. Cannabinoids 5. Cocaine
3. Opioids

Testing may also include a metabolite of any of the above substances and mind altering synthetic narcotics or
designer drugs. The term “illegal use of drugs™ includes any controlled or scheduled drug not used in accordance
with a health catre provider’s lawful prescription for the user, or any substances banned by Federal or applicable
State laws.

I understand that any employee who tests positive, or refuses to be tested, may be subject to appropriate
disciplinary action for engaging in willful misconduct connected with work, up to and including immediate
termination, and/or forfeit eligibility for Worker’s Compensation benefits N.J. Stat. Amn. § 34:15-7 if post-accident
and may adversely affect an employee’s eligibility to receive Unemployment Compensation benefits.

POSITIVE DRUG OR ALCOHOL TEST, OR REFUSAL CONSEQUENCES:
1)Classified as a positive test or refusal to test

2)Discharge from employment

3)Possibie disqualification from Workers' Compensation Benefits

4)Possible disqualification from Unemployment Compensation Benefits

I also understand that it is not the purpose of this test to identify any disability I may have and that all activities
will be condueted in accordance with ADA regulations.

I also understand that the Township of Lower and/or its designated representative will collect specimens for testing
for the purpose of determining the presence of, and content of, drug and alcohol substances, as well as to obtain
results from any alcohol or drug test administered post-accident by law enforcement and release of the results of
said tests to the Township of Lower, its DERSs, to the Township of Lower's Medical Review Officer, and as set
forth in the Policy.

Employee Printed Name:

Employee Signature: Date:

Witness Printed Name: Witness Signature:

(This form is to be signed by employee and retained in personnel file.)

73




PRE-EMPLOYMENT SUBSTANCE TESTING
CONSENT AND RELEASE FORM [DFWO02]

I do hereby certify that I have been given notice of the Township of Lower's pre-employment
substance abuse testing policy; that T have been provided with access to a copy of the Township of
Lower's New Jersey Drug-Free Workplace Policy and have been made a conditional offer of
employment, [ hereby freely and voluntarily consent to submit to tests as shall be determined by
the Township of Lower in the selection process of final applicants for employment, for the purpose
of determining the presence of, and content of, any or all of the following substances:

i. Amphetamines 4, Phencyclidine (PCP)
2. Cannabinoids 5. Cocaine
3. Opioids

Testing may also include a metabolite of any of the above substances and mind altering synthetic
narcotics or designer drugs. The term “illegal use of drugs” includes any controlled or scheduled
drug not used in accordance with a health care provider’s lawful prescription for the user, or any
substances banned by Federal or applicable State laws.

I agree that the employer representative, collection site, physician, or clinic may collect these
specimens for screening or testing and may screen them or forward them to a testing laboratory for
analysis.

I further agree to and hereby authorize the release of the results of said tests to the Township of
Lower, its DERs, and to the Township of Lower's Medical Review Officer and its agents as
provided in the Policy.

I understand that a negative test is a pre-condition of employment with the Township of Lower
and that refusal to submit to testing, or a positive test result will result in the rejection of my
application, or the rescinding of a conditional offer of employment. I also understand that it is not
the purpose of this screen or test to identify any disability I may have and that pre-employment
screening and testing activities are conducted in compliance with ADA requirements.

1 further agree that a reproduced copy of this pre-employment consent and release form shall have
the same force and effect as the original and shall continue while my application is being
considered and during any post-consideration proceedings. | have carefully read the foregoing and
fully understand its contents. I acknowledge that my signing of this consent and release form is a
voluntary act on my part and that I have not been coerced into signing this document by anyone.

Applicant: Print name: SS#
Applicant Signature: Date
Witness Printed Name: Witness Signature:

74



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CONSEQUENCES FOR REFUSAL OF DRUG TEST [DFW03]

L , an employee of Lower Township, acknowledge that T am refusing
fo report for Drug and Alcohol testing in accordance with the requirements of Lower Township, New Jersey
Drug-Free Workplace Policy. I am aware that I am in violation of the Policy. | am aware that [ am subject
to certain adverse consequences as a result of my choice.

REFUSAL CONSEQUENCES:

1) Classified as a refusal to test

2) Possible Discharge from employment

3) Possible Disqualification from Workers' Compensation Benefits

4) Possible Disqualification from Unemployment Compensation Benefits

I have read this Acknowledgment of Consequences of Refusal to Participate in Drug Testing and
understand it,

Employee Signature Date

Witness Signature Witness Address (city, state, zip)

(If employee refuses to sign, please have two witnesses sign below)

Witness 1 Signature Witness 2 Signature

Witness 1 Address {city, state, zip) Witness 2 Address {city, state, zip)

75




Determination of Safety-Sensitive Positions [DFW04]

To: Superintendent of Public Works
From:  Safety-Sensitive Evaluator

Re: Determination of Positions Classified as Safety Sensitive

I have reviewed the job descriptions and duties for the following positions and have determined that they
meet the criteria for a safety-sensitive position as set forth in the Policy, in that:

Safety-sensitive employees are those employees who discharge duties fraught with risks of injury to others
that even a momentary lapse of concentration can have disastrous consequences. Factors which have been
considered in determining whether a position is safety sensitive include handling of potentially dangerous
machinery, sharp objects, working at heights, positions requiring a high level of cognitive function, mostly
unsupervised responsibility for children, and handling of hazardous substances in an environment where
others could be injured. Positions which have been found to be safety-sensitive include firefighters,
emergency medical technicians, law enforcement officials who carry firearmis, fire and police dispatchers,
911 operators, heavy machinery operators, forklift operators, bus drivers, some (but not all) transportation
workers, pipeline operators, gas meter repairmen, jail officers, and those involved in security functions. All
Department of Transportation {DOT) regulated employees are determined to be safety-sensitive by those
regulations. Unless an employee comes under drug testing regulations of some federal agency, each
position, job classification or department, should be individually evaluated to determine whether the
employee is safety-sensitive in accordance with the above guidelines.

Using the above criteria, the following positions have been classified by the Township of Lower as safety-
sensitive:.

Laborer (temporary and full time)
Equipment Operator

Diesel Mechanic

Mechanic

Mechanic’s Helper
Groundskeeper

Motor Broom Operator

Police Officer (all ranks)

Elected officials who are not otherwise classified as employees are not subject to testing under this Policy.

Safety-Sensitive Evaluator

Date

76



CHANGING VITAL INFORMATION

It is the responsibility of each employee to notify the human resources official and the payroll office
promptly, in writing, of any changes of vital information including but not limited to:

Name Address

Telephone Number

Marital Status

Dependent Children

Change in status for health care programs Change in status for dental coverage

Change of beneficiary on pension or life insurance policies Change in tax status
for tax withholding purposes
Persons to notify in case of emergency

Changes may be accomplished by completing and filing an Employee Information Change Form with the
human resources official and by completing the necessary insurance and pension forms with the payroll
office. When necessary, the payroll office will provide the employee with additional proper forms to
change beneficiary, income tax deductions, etc.

77



EMPLOYEE INFORMATION CHANGE FORM

Employee Name: Department:

Indicate the change you are reporting by checking the appropriate line:
Name

Address

Phone Number

Birth of Child

Death of Covered Family Member

Marriage

Divorce

Child's Status as Dependent (for tax or insurance coverage benefits)

Please provide details relating to the change you have check above, including the date of the change.

I authorize these changes to be effective

Signature of Employee: Date:

78




COMPUTER USE, ELECTRONIC MAIL, AND INTERNET POLICY

The Employer’s e-mail, voicemail, computer systems and Internet service are for official Employer business
and use for all other non-business purposes during working time is prohibited. “Working time” shall be
defined as any time in which the employee is engaged in or required to be performing work tasks for the
Employer. Working time excludes times when employees are properly not engaged in performing work tasks,
including break periods and meal times. This inctudes, but is in no way limited to, the use of computers or
Employer-issued mobile devices, use of social networking, gaming or TV/video.

internet messages are official documents subject to the
1.S.A, 47:1A-1 et seq.

The Employer operates in an environment where the use of computers, e-mail and the Internet are essential
tools for certain employees. Those employees are encouraged to use computers, e-mail and the Internet;
however, it is the responsibility of the employee to guarantee that these systems are solely used for business-
related purposes during working time, (as defined above) and are used in a proper and lawful manner at all
times.

¢ Employees are advised that all computers owned by the Employer are to be used for business purposes only
during working time (as defined above), and that they have no expectation that any information stored on an
Employer computer is private. Because e-mail messages are considered as business documents, the Employer
expects employees to compose e-mails with the same care as a business letter or internal memo.

e Downloading or misusing software available through the Internet could violate copyright laws or licensing
requirements.

“e Personal use of any computer during working time (as defined above) is prohibited, unless expressly
authorized by the employee’s supervisor.

¢ The Employer reserves the right to block or cancel an employee’s access to Internet sites or the Internet as
a whole while using business computers or on the Employer’s time.

¢ The e-mail, telephone, and Internet systems, as well as the messages thereon, are the property of the
Employer.

¢ The Employer reserves its right to monitor its computer systems, including but not limited to, e-mail
messages, compuler files and Internet usage, with or without notice, at any time, at the Employer's discretion.
The Employer also reserves the right to access and disclose such communications and recordings to third
parties in certain circumstances. Therefore, employees shall have no expectation of privacy in any
fransmissions made or received using Employer computers or email accounts.

¢ Employees must be aware that the mere deletion of a file or message may not fully eliminate that file or
message from the system.

e The existence of personal access codes, passwords and/or "message delete functions," whether provided by
the Employer or generated by the employee, do not restrict or eliminate the Employer's access to any of its
electronic systems as the employees shall be on notice that they should not have any expectation of privacy
when using these systems.

79




¢ Employees shall not share personal access codes or passwords, provide access to an unauthorized user, or
access another's e-mail or Internet account without authorization.

» The Employer's network, inciuding its connection to the Internet, is to be solely used for business-related
purposes during working time (as defined above). If permission is granted, an employee’s personal use of the
Employer's computer, e-mail and connection to the Internet shall not interfere with the employee’s duties and
shall comply with the Employer’s policies and all applicable laws,

¢ Any messages ot transmissions sent outside of the organization via e-mail or the Internet will pass through
a mamber of different computer systems, ail with different levels of security. Accordingly, employees must
not send privileged and/or confidential comimunications (i.e. Social Security numbers, medical and/or HIPAA
protected information, dependent information or other information protected from unlawful disclosure), via
e-mail or the Internet unless the message is properly encrypted, and should consider a more secure method of
communication for such data.

¢ Because postings placed on the Internet may display the Employer’s address or other Employer-related
information, and thus reflect on the Employer, make certain before posting such information that it exhibits
the high standards and policies of the Employer. Under no circumstances shall data of a confidential nature
(i.e. Social Security numbers, medical and/or HIPAA protected information, dependent information or other
information protected from unlawful disclosure) be posted on the Internet,

¢ [f you identify yourself as an employee in any manner on any internet posting or blog, comment on any
aspect of the Employer’s business or post a link to the Employer, you must include the following disclaimer
in an openly visible location: "the views expressed on this post are mine and do not necessarily reflect the
views of the Employer or anyone associated/affiliated with the Employer."

e Subscriptions to news groups or mailing lists are permitted only when the subscription is for a work-related
purpose and authorized by Employer. Any other subscriptions are prohibited.

o All files downloaded from the Internet, e-mail attachments or the like should be checked for possible viruses.
If uncertain whether your virus-checking software is current, you must check with the Employer's Network
Administrator before downloading.

e Any "unauthorized use" of e-mail or the Internet is strictly prohibited while at work or while using an
Employer computer, "Unauthorized use" includes, but is not limited to: connecting, posting, or downloading
obscene, pornographic, violent, sexually suggestive, or discrimination based material; attempting to disable
or compromiise the security of information contained on the Employet's computer systems; or sending or
receiving obscene, violent, harassing, sexual or discrimination based messages. If an employee receives a
message that is representative of an "unauthorized use" of the Employer's electronic media from someone
outside of the Employer, it is the employee's duty to immediately inform the sender of such materials that he
or she must refrain from sending such materials.

¢ Your Internet postings SHOULD NOT VIOLATE ANY OTHER APPLICABLE EMPLOYER POLICY,
including, but not limited to, the following: the Employer’s Anti-Harassment and Discrimination Policies,

¢ Employer business which is conducted by an employee on his or her personal computer or device is subject
to this policy and may be subject to the provisions of OPRA.

Any employee who violates this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.
This policy shall not be construed to restrict employees' rights to share information about their employment

80




terms and conditions communicate with each other; or engage in other concerted activities for their mutual
aid and protection,

Social Network Postings

For purposes of this policy, a social network is defined as a site that uses internet services to allow individuals
to construct a profile within that system, define a list of others users with whom they share some connection,
and view and access their list of connections and those made by others within that system. The type of network
and its design vary from site to site. Examples of the types of internet based social networking activities
include: blogging, networking, photo sharing, video sharing, microblogging, podcasting, as well as posting
comments on the sites. The absence of, or lack of explicit reference to a specific site or activity does not limit
the extent of the application of this provision.

The use of the internet and social networking sites, including but not limited to Snapchat, Facebook, and
Twitter, is a popular activity; however, employees must be mindful of the negative impact of inappropriate or
unauthorized postings upon the Employer and its relationship with the community. This provision identifies
prohibited activities by employees on the internet where posted information is accessible to members of the
general public, including, but not limited to, public postings on social networking sites.

Specifically, the Employer reserves the right to investigate postings, private or public, that violate work-place
rules, such as the prohibition of sexual harassment and other discriminatory conduct, where such postings
lawfully are made available to the Employer by other employees or third parties. Employees should use
common sense in all communications, particularly on a website or social networking site accessible to anyone,
If you would not be comfortable with your supervisor, coworkers, or the management team reading your
words, you should not write them.

Be advised that employees can be disciplined for commentary, content, or images that are defamatory,
pornographic, proprietary, harassing, libelous, or that can create a hostile work environment. You can also be
sued by agency employees or any individual who views your commentary, content, or images as defamatory,
pornographic, proprietary, harassing, libelous or creating a hostile work environment. What you say or post
on your site or what is said or posted on your site by others could potentially be grounds for disciplinary
action, up to and including termination. However, nothing in this social networking policy is designed to
interfere with, restrain, or prevent social media communications during non-working hours by employees
engaging in protected concerted activities regarding wages, hours, or other terms and conditions of
employment pursuant to the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act or to prevent communications
which are protected by the First Amendment freedom of speech clause, unless such communications are made
as part of the employees’ official job duties,

TELEPHONE AND PERSONAL COMMUNICATION USAGE POLICY

Land-line Telephones. Employer telephones are for official business use only during working time. Charges
for all other usage, including personal calls and unauthorized use of such devices, must be reimbursed to the
Employer. Working time shall be defined as any time in which the employee is engaged in or required to be
performing work tasks for the Employer, and excludes times when employees are properly not engaged in
performing work tasks, including break periods and meal times.

Employer-Issued Mobile Phones/Devices. Employer-issued mobile devices may be issued to certain
employees in the course of their employment with the Employer. Such Employer-issued devices are the sole
and exclusive property of the Employer and are only to be utilized by employees in the course and scope of

81




their employment during working time (any time in which the employee is engaged in or required to be
performing work tasks for the Employer not to include times when employees are properly not engaged in
performing work tasks, including break periods and meal times.) Employees will be charged for costs incurred
due to their personal use of such devices. Accordingly, the Employer reserves the right to monitor the use of
the Employer-issued cell-phones without notice, at any time, and any such data collected from the mobile
device equipment is the sole and exclusive property of the Employer to be used for any purpose.

Similarly, the Employer reserves the right to review the manner and use of these mobile devices and physically
inspect the equipment at any time with or without notice. Accordingly, the employee shall have no reasonable
expectation of privacy in any transmissions made or received using an Employer-issued mobile device.

Employees are expected, at all times, to respect the integrity of the Employer-issued mobile devices and to
maintain the equipment in proper working condition. If an employee discovers or recognizes that the mobile
device is not in proper working condition, it is the employee’s responsibility to bring this fact to the attention
of his or her supervisor immediately.

Upon termination of employment or in the instance of an upgrade to the employee’s phone or service, the
employee must return the Employer-issued device to the Employer.

Prohibited Use of Personal Communication Devices. To alleviate distraction and distuption of regular work
routines, personal communication devices are strictly prohibited from use during working time {any time in
which the employee is engaged in or required to be performing work tasks for the Employer not to include
times when employees are properly not engaged in performing work tasks, including break periods and meal
times.) while in work areas, except where the Employer has provided such device(s) to employees for business
use, or in case of an emergency (such as illness, accident, and calls of a similar emergent nature),

Employees are prohibited from using their personal communication device to copy and/or upload any,
confidential information (i.e. Social Security numbers, medical and/or HIPAA protected information,
dependent information or other information protected from unlawful disclosure). Employees must make
reasonable efforts fo obtain supervisor approval prior to making emergency calls during working time.
Personal communication devices are defined as, but not limited to, cellular or two-way phones, text-messaging
devices, iPhones, Android-enabled devices, BlackBerrys and pagers.

Other Personal Electronic Devices. Employees are not permitted to utilize electronic devices such as personal
laptops, game systems, MP3 players, portable DVD players or any other type of personal entertainment
systems while at work.

Violation of this policy may subject an employee to disciplinary action up to and including termination,

CONDUCT OF EMPLOYEES

Employees are expected to conduct themselves in a manner which exhibits a respect for the rights and property
of the Employer, fellow employees, and residents. While many of these behaviors are addressed under specific
policies, the following list, while not all inclusive, further identifies examples of inappropriate behavior:

+ Insubordination or the refusal by an employee to follow management’s instructions concerning
job-related matters

+ Serious breach of discipline

*  Neglect of duty

+ Incompetency or inefficiency or incapacity

82




Fighting or creating a disturbance among fellow employees

Using obscene, abusive, or threatening language or gestures

Sleeping on duty

Use or possession of intoxicants, narcotics or controlled substances without a prescription,
being intoxicated or narcotized while on duty

Absence without leave or failure to report after authorized leave has expired or after such leave
has been disapproved or revoked; provided that any regular member or officer of the police
department who shall be absent from duty without just cause for a period of five days shall
cease to be a member of the police department, as provided by N.I.S.A. 40A:14-122, as
amended.

Using leave for purposes other than for which it was granted

False statements, misrepresentation, or fraud in application form or any other matter
concerning employment

Chronic or excessive absenteeism

Disorderly or immoral conduct

Theft, bribery or unauthorized use or possession of the Employer, co-wotker or resident
property

Disregarding safety or security regulations

Falsifying or otherwise altering Employer records or reports, such as applications for
employment, medical reports, production reports, time records, expense accounts, absentee
repotts, or shipping and receiving records

Negligence or willful damage to public property or wasteful, unnecessary or unauthorized use
of Employer supplies, especially for personal purposes

Conviction of a crime

Failure to maintain confidentiality of employer information

The use or attempted use of one's authority or official influence to control or modlfy the
political action of any employee or engaging in any form of political activity during working
hours

Infringement of policies defined in this manual or failure to comply with departmental rules
and regulations

Rude or disrespectful conduct toward the public

Failure to maintain workplace and area cleanliness and orderliness

Smoking where prohibited by ordinance, law or Employer rules

Improper attire or inappropriate personal appearance

Engaging in any harassment or discrimination based upon a protected class

Violation of Employer policies on solicitation or distribution

Possession of firearms or other weapons on Employer property or while on official business,
unless otherwise authorized by the Employer

Other actions disruptive to the effective, efficient, economical operation of the Employer’s
affairs

Conduct unbecoming a public employee. It is important that all employees perform to the best
of their abilities at all times.




CONFIDENTIALITY OF PERSONNEL RECORDS

The human resources official will ensure that adequate personnel records are maintained for each employee
in accordance with applicable Federal and State requirements. These records shall include: dates of
appointments, transfers, promotions and terminations, job titles, salaries, commendations, complaints,
performance evaluations, disciplinary actions, amount of leave accrued and used, a record of the employee's
training and other related matters, and attendance records.

A new employee's employment application, letters of reference, reference verification and any other
supporting documents will be included in the personnel file. Confidential medical records are maintained in
a separate file.

Personnel records, other than name, title, salary, compensation, dates of service, reason for separation, and
information on specific educational or medical qualifications required for employment, are confidential and
are available only to the employee, an authorized representative of the employee, and the human resources
official. Personnel records may also be available to the Chief Administrative Officer, other members of
management, the Employer's legal counsel, and members of the governing body on a need-to-know basis in
connection with official duties. Additionally, the Employer will make the records available as required by
law.

Employees are entitled to review the contents of their personnel folder, except for reference checks and other
information provided to the Employer in the hiring process, but may not review the contents of other
employees' personnel file, Employees who want to review their own personnel folder should request an
appointment with the human resources official. Employees should provide the Employer with at least twenty-
four (24) hours advance notice of his or her need for an appointment to review his or her personnel file. To
protect the integrity of the personnel files, the employee will review the personnel file in the presence of the
human resources official or his/her designee. Employees will not be permitted to photocopy the contents of

their folder, take personnel folders outside of the human resources office or remove any documents from the
folder.

Employees whose duties require access to personnel documents or information must maintain their
confidentiality. Violators of this confidentiality will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

84




CONTAGIOUS/LIFE THREATENING ILLNESS POLICY

The Employer is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safety work environment which allows
all employees to perform their jobs in a safe and productive manner. The Employer respects the dignity and
worth of every employee through its Equal Opportunity Employment statement, which explains its policy and
practice with respect to prohibiting discrimination in every phase of employment. The Employer provides
support for individual employees who may be facing the {rauma of a life-threatening or catastrophic illness.
The purpose of this policy is to support the physical and emotional health of all employees, minimize
disruptions of productivity and morale caused by the presence of a worker with a life-threatening illness, and
demonstrate the Employer's continued commitment to its affirmative action goals related to physically
disabled employees.

If an employee has learned that he or she has a contagious or life threatening illness the employee should take
all steps to protect further spread of the disease or illness. When appropriate, the employee’s Department
Head should be notified of any illnesses that may affect the health, safety, and welfare of any co-employee or
member of the general public. Employees with such conditions, who are able to meet appropriate standards
and whose continued employment does not pose a threat to their own health and safety or that of others, are
assured equal employment opportunities and reasonable accommodations in their employment. If an employee
is able to work, he or she is expected to be productive. If the individual cannot work, then he or she may be
eligible for disability benefits.

Consistent with the concern for employees with life-threatening illness, the Employer offers the following
resources through the human resources official:

1) Employee education and information on terminal illnesses and specific life-threatening illnesses.
2) Referral to agencies and organizations which offer supportive services for life-threatening illnesses.
3) Consultation in assisting employees in efficiently managing health, leave and other benefits. The Employer

encourages employees who need these resources to contact the human resources official.

DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION POLICY

Corrective disciplinary action, as appropriate, will be taken against any employee found to be in violation
of established procedures. All disciplinary action shall be based upon total concern for the employee, the
employee's relationship with his/her fellow workers, the employee's relationship with his/her supervisor,
and the best interest of the Employer. Such disciplinary action shall be of a positive, educational and
corrective nature, and shall not be used in an abusive or vindictive manner.

Discipline is considered to be major or minor. Major discipline shall include:

e Removal
¢ Disciplinary demotion
¢ Suspension of greater than five (5) days

Minor discipline is a formal written reprimand or a suspension or fine of five (5) or less days.

This policy covers non-union employees. It also covers union employees to the extent that their collective
bargaining agreements do not cover this subject matter,

85




Procedure in Major Disciplinary Actions — Generally, an employee will be served with a "Preliminary Notice

of Disciplinary Action" ("PNDA") setting forth the charges against the employee and affording a hearing
opportunity at a specified date, time and location. The employee must respond with a request for a hearing
within five (5} days of the receipt of PNDA; otherwise, the hearing is waived. After the hearing (or a waiver
of a hearing), a decision is made and within twenty (20) days, unless additional time is agreed to by the parties.
Written notification to the employee shall be made by issuing a “Final Notice of Disciplinary Action” form.

An immediate suspension may be imposed prior to a hearing when:

L.

The employee is unfit for duty or presents a hazard to any person if permitted to remain on
the job or the suspension is necessary to maintain safety, health, order or effective direction
of public services. However, a PNDA with opportunity for a hearing must be served in
person or by certified mail within five (5) days following the immediate suspension; or

The employee is suspected/charged with an act of misdemeanor, felony or any form of
malicious mischief which leads to amest and/or incarceration and fails to notify his
Department/Division Head or Designated Superior immediately. This failure could result
in disciplinary action, up to and including termination; or

The employee has been formally charged with a crime of the First, Second or Third Degree
or a crime of the Fourth Degree directly related to the employee's job.

Where a suspension is immediate, and is without pay, the employee must first be apprised either orally or in
writing regarding the charges, the reason why an immediate suspension is sought, and a general description
of the evidence in support of the charges. The employee will be provided an opportunity to respond to the
charges before a representative of the Employer. The response may be oral or in writing.

An employee may be subject to discipline, including termination, for any of the following reasons:

Incompetency, inefficiency or failure to perform duties;

Insubordination;

Inability to perform duties;

Chronic or excessive absenteeism or lateness;

Conviction of a crime;

Conduct unbecoming a public employee;

Neglect of duty;

Misuse of public property, including motor vehicles;

Discrimination that affects equal employment opportunity, including sexual harassment;
Violation of federal regulations concerning drug and alcohol use by and testing of employees
who perform functions related to the operation of commercial motor vehicles, and state and
local policies issued thereunder;

Falsification of public records, including attendance and other personnel records;

Failure to report absence;

Harassment of co-workers and/or volunteers and visitors;

Theft or attempted theft of property belonging to the Employer, fellow employees, volunteers
or visitors;

Unauthorized absences and/or chronic or excessive absences;

Fighting on Employer’s property at any time;

Being under the influence of infoxicants (e.g., liquor) or illegal drugs (e.g., cocaine or
marijuana) on Employer property and at any time during work hours;

Failure to report to work on the day or days prior to or following a vacation, holiday and/or

86




leave, and/or any other unauthorized day of absence;

+ Possession, sale, transfer or use of intoxicants or illegal drugs on Employer property and at any
time during work hours;

+ Entering the buiiding without permission during non-scheduled work hours;

+ Soliciting on Employer premises during work time. This includes but is not limited to
distribution of literature or products or soliciting membership in fraternal, religious, social or
political organizations, and for sales of products, such as those from Avon, Amway, etc.;

+ Carcless waste of materials or abuse of tools, equipment or supplies;

+ Deliberate destruction or damage to Employer property or the property of other employees;

+ Sleeping on the job;

« Carrying weapons of any kind on Employer premises and/or during work hours, unless
carrying a weapon is a function of your job duties;

» Violation of established safety and fire regulations;

+ Unauthorized absence from work arvea, and/or roaming or loitering on the premises, during
scheduled work hours;

+ Defacing walls, bulletin boards or any other property of the Employer or other employees;

+  Unauthorized disclosure of confidential Employer information;

+  Gambling on Employer premises;

» Horseplay, disorderiy conduct and use of abusive and/or obscene language on Employer
premises;

« Deliberate delay or restriction of your work effort, and/or incitement of others to delay or
restrict their work effort;

« Conviction of a crime or disorderly persons offense;

» Violating any Employer rules, procedures, regulations or policies;

+  Unauthorized use of computers, Internet, email, voicemail, telephone and cellular phone; and

+  Other sufficient cause.

essive discipline. Emplo

with or without cause or reason by the employee ¢

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE POLICY

PURPOSE

The purpose of the State of New Jersey Domestic Violence Policy for Public Employers (herein "policy”) is
to set forth a uniform domestic violence policy for all public employers to adopt in accordance with N.J.S.A.
11A:2-6a. The purpose of this policy is also to encourage employees who are victims of domestic violence,
and those impacted by domestic violence, to seek assistance from their human resources officers and provide
a standard for human resources officers to follow when responding to employees.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms are defined solely for the purpose of this policy:

Domestic Violence - Acts or threatened acts, that are used by a perpetrator to gain power and control over a
current or former spouse, family member, household member, intimate partner, someone the perpetrator
dated, or person with whom the perpetrator shares a child in common or anticipates having a child in common
if one of the parties is pregnant. Domestic violence includes, but is not limited to the foilowing: physical

87




violence; injury; intimidation; sexual violence or abuse; emotional and/or psychological intimidation; verbal
abuse; threats; harassment; cyber harassment; stalking; economic abuse or control, damaging property to
intimidate or attemipt to control the behavior of a person in a relationship with the perpetrator; strangulation;
or abuse of animals or pets.

Abuser/Perpetrator - An individual who commits or threatens to commit an act of domestic violence,
including unwarranted violence against individuals and animals. Other abusive behaviors and forms of
violence can include the following: bullying, humiliating, isolating, intimidating, harassing, stalking, or
threatening the victim, disturbing someone's peace, or destroying someone's property.

Human Resources Officer (HRO)— An employee of a public employer with 2 human resources job title, or
its equivalent, who is responsible for orienting, training, counseling, and appraising staff. Persons
designated by the employer as the primary or secondary contact to assist employees in reporting domestic
violence incidents.

Intimate Partner - Partners of any sexual orientation or preference who have been legally married or formerly
married to one another, have a child or children in common, or anticipate having a child in common if one
party is pregnant. Intimate partner also includes those who live together or have lived fogether, as well as
persons who are dating or have dated in the past.

Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) - A civil court order issued by a judge to protect the life, health or well-
being of a victim. TROs can prohibit domestic violence offenders from having contact with victims, either
in person or through any means of commumication, including third parties. TROs also can prohibit offenders
from a victim's home and workplace. A violation of a TRO may be a criminal offense. A TRO will last
approximately 10 business days, or until a court holds a hearing to determine if a Final Restraining Order
(FRO) is needed. In New Jersey, there is no expiration of a FRO.

Victim - A person who is 18 years of age or older or who is an emancipated minor and who has been subjected
to domestic violence by a spouse, former spouse, or any other person who is a present household member or
was at any time a household member, A victim of domestic violence is also any person, regardless of age,
who has been subjected to domestic violence by one of the following actors: a person with whom the victim
has a child in common; a person with whom the victim anticipates having a child in common, if one of the
parties is pregnant; and a person with whom the victim has had a datingrelationship.

Workplace-Related Incidents - Incidents of domestic violence, sexual violence, dating violence, and stalking,
including acts, attempted acts, or threatened acts by or against employees, the families of employees, and/or
their property, that imperil the safety, well-being, or productivity of any person associated with a public
employee in the State of New Jersey, regardless of whether the act occurred in or outside the organization's
physical workplace. An employee is considered to be in the workplace while in or using the resources of the
employer. This includes, but is not limited to, facilities, work sites, equipment, vehicles, or while on work-
related travel

PERSONS COVERED BY THIS POLICY

All employees are covered under this policy, including full and part time employees, casual/seasonal
employees, interns, volunteers and temporary employees at any workplace location.

88




RESPONSIBILITY OF EMPLOYERS TO DESIGNATE A HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER

The Employer hereby designates the following employee as the Primary HRO to assist employees who ate
victims of domestic violence.

Acting Primary HRO:

Michael Laffey, Township Manager
609-886-2005, ext. 132
Mlaffey@townshipoflower.org

The designated Primary HRO shall have the ability to appoint designated employees for each instance, which
may require training on responding to and assisting employees who are domestic violence victims in
accordance with this policy.

Managers and supervisors are often aware of circumstances involving an employee who is experiencing
domestic violence. Managers and supervisors are required to refer any employee who is experiencing
domestic violence or who report witnessing domestic violence to the designated HRO. Managers and
supervisors must maintain confidentiality, to the extent possible, and be sensitive, compassionate, and
respectful to the needs of persons who are victims of domestic violence.

The name and contact information of the designated HRO will be provided to all employees.

This policy does not supersede applicable laws, guidelines, standard operating procedures, internal affairs
policies, or New Jersey Attorney General Directives and guidelines thatimpose a duty to report. For example,
if there is any indication a child may also be a victim, reporting is mandatory to the Department of Children
and Families, Child Protection and Permanency, under N.J.S.A.9:6-8.13,

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE REPORTING PROCEDURES

Employees who are victims of domestic violence are encouraged to seek immediate assistance from the
Manager. Employees who have information about or witness an act of domestic violence against an
employee, are encouraged to report that information to the designated HRO, unless the employee is required
to report the domestic violence pursuant to applicable laws, guidelines, standard operating procedures,
internal affairs policies, or New Jersey Attorney General directives and guidelines that impose a duty to
report, in which case the employee must so report to the appropriate authority in addition to reporting to the
designated HRO. Nothing in this policy shall preclude an employee from contacting 911 in emergency
situations. Indeed, HRO shall remind employees to contact 911 if they feel they are in immediate danger.

The designated HRO shall:

A. Immediately respond to an employee upon request and provide a safe and confidential location to
allow the employee to discuss the circumstances surrounding the domestic violence incident and
the request for assistance.

B. Determine whether there is an imminent and emergent need to contact 911 and/or local law
enforcement.

C. Provide the employee with resource information and a confidential telephone line to make
necessary calls for services for emergent intervention and suppottive services, when appropriate.
The HRO or the employee can contact the appropriate Employee Assistance Program to assist with

89




securing resources and confidential services.

D. Refer the employee to the provisions and protections of The New Jersey Security and Financial
Empowerment Act, N.J.S.A, 34:11C-1 et seq. (NJ SAFE Act), referenced in this policy.

E. In cases where domestic violence involved a sexual touching or sexual assault between state
employees, the HRO is also required to report the incident to their agency’s EEO Officer or Title
IX Officer,

I, Ifthere is a report of sexual assault or abuse, the victim should be offered the services of the Sexual
Assault Response Team,

G. Maintain the confidentiality of the employee and all parties involved, to the extent practical and
appropriate under the circumstances, pursuant to this policy.

H. Upon the employee's consent, the employee may provide the HRO with copies of any TROs, FROs,
and/or civil restraint agreements that pertain to restraints in the work place and ensure that security
personnel are aware of the names of individuals who are prohibited from appearing at the work
location while the employee who sought the restraining order is present. All copies of TROs and
FROs shall be maintained in a separate confidential personnel file.

CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY

In responding to reports of domestic violence, the HRO shall seek to maintain confidentiality to protect an
employee making a report of, witnessing, or experiencing domestic violence, to the extent practical and
appropriate under the circumstances and allowed by law. Thus, this policy does not supersede applicable
laws, guidelines, standard operating procedures, internal affairs policies, or New Jersey Attorney General
Directives and guidelines that impose a duty to repott. '

This confidentiality policy shall not prevent disclosure where to do so would result in physical harm to any
person ot jeopardize safety within the workplace. When information must be disclosed to protect the safety
of individuals in the workplace, the HRO shall limit the breadth and content of such disclosure to information
reasonably necessary to protect the safety of the disclosing employee and others and comply with the law.
The HRO shall provide advance notice to the employee who disclosed information, to the extent possible, if
the disclosure must be shared with other parties in order to maintain safety in the workplace or elsewhere.
The HRO shall also provide the employee with the name and title of the person to whom they intend to
provide the employee's statement and shall explain the necessity and purpose regarding the disclosure. For
example, if the substance of the disclosure presents a threat to employees, then law enforcement will be
alerted immediately.

This policy does not supersede applicable laws, guidelines, standard operating procedures, internal affairs
policies, or New Jersey Atiorney General Directives and guidelines where mandatory reporting is required
by the appointing authority or a specific class of employees.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF EMPLOYEE RECORDS

To ensure confidentiality and accuracy of information, this policy requires the HRO to keep all documents
and reports of domestic violence in confidential personnel file separate from the employee's other personnel
records. These records shall be considered personnel records and shall not be government records available
for public access under the Open Public Records Act. See N.J.S.A. 47:1A-10.

90




THE NEW JERSEY SECURITY AND FINANCIAL EMPOWERMENT ACT

The New Jersey Security and Financial Empowerment Act, N.J.S.A. 34:11C-1, et seq. (NJ SAFE Act), isa
law that provides employment protection for victims of domestic or sexual violence.

The NJ SAFE Act altows a maximum of 20 days of unpaid leave in one 12-month period, to be used within
12 months following any act of domestic or sexual violence. To be eligible, the employee must have worked
at least 1,000 hours during the 12-month period immediately before the act of domestic or sexual violence.
Further, the employee must have worked for an employer in the State that employs 25 or more employees
for each working day during 20 or more calendar weeks in the current or immediately preceding calendar
year. This leave can be taken intermittently in days, but not hours.

Leave under the NJ SAFE Act may be taken by an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, as that
term is defined in N.J.S A, 2C:25-19 and N.J.S.A. 30:4-27.6, respectively. Leave may also be taken by an
employee whose child, parent, spouse, domestic partner, civil union pattner, or other relationships as defined
in applicable statutes is a victim of domestic or sexual violence.

Leave under the NJ SAFE Act may be taken for the purpose of engaging in any of the following activities,
for themselves, or a child, parent, spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partner, as they relate to an incident
of domestic or sexual violence:

1) Seecking medical attention;

2) Obtaining services from a victim services organization;

3) Obtaining psychological or other counseling;

4) Participating in safety planning, temporarily or permanently relocating, or taking other actions to
increase safety;

5) Seeking legal assistance or remedies to ensure health and safety of the victim;or

6) Attending, participating in, or preparing for a criminal or civil court proceeding relating to an
incident of domestic or sexual violence.

PUBLIC EMPLOYER DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ACTION PLAN

The Employer has developed the following action plan to identify, respond to, and correct employee
performance issues that are caused by domestic violence, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 11A:2-6a, and in
accordance with the following guidelines:

A. Designate an HRO with responsibilities pursuant to this policy.

B. Recognize that an employee may need an accommodation as the employee may experience temporary
difficulty fulfilling job responsibilities,

C. Provide reasonable accommodations to ensure the employee's safety. Reasonable accommodations
may include, but are not limited to, the following: implementation of safety measures; transfer or
reassignment; modified work schedule; change in work telephone number or work-station location;
assistance in documenting the violence occurring in the workplace; an implemented safety procedure,
or other accommodation approved by the employer.

D. Advise the employee of information concerning the NJ SAFE Act; Family and Medical Leave Act
(FMLA); or Family Leave Act (FLA); Temporary Disability Insurance (TOI); or Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA); or other reasonable flexible leave options when an employee, or his or her
child, parent, spouse, domestic partner, civil union partner, or other relationships as defined in

91




applicable statutes is a victim of domestic violence.

3. Commit to adherence to the provisions of the NJ SAFE Act, including that the employer will not
retaliate against, terminate, or discipline any employee for reporting information about incidents of
domestic violence, as defined in this policy, if the victim provides notice to their Human Resources
Office of the status or if the Human Resources Office has reason to believe an employee is a victim of
domestic violence.

F. Advise any employee, who believes he or she has been subjected to adverse action as a result of making
a report pursuant to this policy, of the civil right of action under the NJ SAFE ACT. And advise any
employee to contact their designated Labor Relations Officer, Conscientious Employees Protection
Act (CEPA) Officer and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Officer in the event they believe the
adverse action is a violation of their collective bargaining agreement, the Conscientious Employees
Protection Act or the New Jersey Law Against Discrimination and corresponding policies.

G. Employers, their designated HRO, and employees should familiarize themselves with this policy. This
policy shall be provided to all employees upon execution and to all new employees upon hiring.
Information and resources about domestic violence are encouraged to be placed in visible areas, such
as restrooms, cafeterias, breakrooms, and where other resource information is located.

RESOURCES

This policy provides an Appendix listing resources and program information readily available to assist
victims of domestic violence, These resources should be provided by the designated HRO to any victim of
domestic violence at the time of reporting,

DISTRIBUTION OF POLICY

The Township Manager will be responsible for distributing this policy to employees, volunteers, and other
employees identified above.

The Township Manager will be responsible for updating this policy at least annually to reflect
circumstances changes in the organization,

The Township Manager will be responsible for monitoring The Civii Service Commission and the Division
of Local Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs for modifications thereto, to public
employers.

OTHER APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

In addition to this policy, the HRO and the public employet's appointing authority must follow all applicable
laws, guidelines, standard operating procedures, internal affairs policies, and New Jersey Attorney General
Directives and guidelines that impose a duty to report. Additionally, to the extent that the procedures set
forth in this policy conflict with collective negotiated agreements or with the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA), the provisions of the negotiated agreements and the provisions of FERPA
control,

POLICY MODIFICATION AND REVIEW

g2




A public employer may seek to modify this policy, to create additional protocols to protect victims of
domestic violence but may not modify in a way that reduces or compromises the safeguards and
processes set out in this policy.

The Civil Service Commission will review and modify this policy periodically and as needed.

POLICY ENFORCEABILITY

The provisions of this policy are intended to be implemented by the Civil Service Commission. These
provisions do not create any promises or rights that may be enforced by any persons or entities.

POLICY INQUIRIES & EFFECTIVE DATE

Any questions concerning the interpretation or implementation of this policy shall be addressed to the
Chair/Chief Executive Officer of the Civil Service Commission, or their designee. This policy shall be
enforceable upon the HRO's completion of training on this policy.

a3




LAYOFE

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 4A: 8-1.1 the Township may institute layoff actions for economy, efficiency or other related
reasons, but will first consider voluntary alternatives. {Seniority, lateral or other re-employment rights for
employees in Career Service titles will be determined by the New Jersey Department of Personnel.)

The Township may implement pre-layoff actions in order to lessen the possibility, extent or impact of layoffs.
These pre-layoff actions may include but are not limited:

¢ Instituting temporary hiring or promotion freeze;

e Separating temporary, provisional, and unclassified employees;

¢ Returning provisional to permanent titles in affected department;
¢ Reassigning employee;

¢ Assisting employees with transfers or other jobs.

The Township will post a general notice of a layoff in all affected departments and distribute individual notices
of a layoff to affected employees at least forty-five days prior to the effective date of a layoif.

The New Jersey Department of Personnel will advise employees of appeal rights, layoff rights and identify
employment opportunities available to the employee based on permanent title and seniority. Layoff rights may
include lateral, demotion, and special re-employment rights.

The Township will consult with all affected unions prior to offering any alternatives to employees or initiating
any pre-layoff actions.

EMPLOYEE DATING POLICY

The Employer strongly believes that an environment where employees inaintain clear boundaries between
employee personal and business interactions is most effective for conducting business. Although this policy
does not prevent the development of friendships or romantic relationships between coworkers, it does establish
very clear boundaries as to how relationships will progress during working hours and within the working
environment. Individuals in supervisory relationships or other influential roles are subject to more stringent
requirements under this policy due to their status as role models, their access to sensitive information and their
ability to influence others.

Procedures.

1. During working time and in working areas, employees are expected to keep personal exchanges limited so
that others are not distracted or offended by such exchanges and so that productivity is maintained.

2. During non-working time, such as lunches, breaks and before and after work periods, employees are not
precluded from having appropriate personal conversations in non-work areas as long as their conversations
and behaviors could in no way be perceived as offensive or uncomfortable o a reasonable person.

3. Employees are strictly prohibited from engaging in physical contact that would in any way be deemed
inappropriate by a reasonable person while anywhere on Employer premises, whether during working hours
or not.

4, Employees who allow personal relationships with coworkers to affect the working environment will be
subject to the appropriate provisions of the Employer disciplinary policy which may include counseling for
minor problems, Failure to change behavior and maintain expected work responsibilities is viewed as a serious
disciplinary matter.

94




5. Employee off-duty conduct is generally regarded as private, as long as such conduct does not create
problems within the workplace. An exception to this principle, however, is romantic or sexual relationships
between supervisors and subordinates.

6. Supervisors, managers, executives or anyone else in sensitive or influential positions must disclose the
existence of any relationship with another coworker that has progressed beyond a platonic friendship.
Disclosure may be made to the immediate supervisor or the Department Head. This disclosure will enable
the Employer to determine whether any conflict of interest exists because of the relative positions of the
individuals involved.

7. Where problems or potential risks are identified, the Employer will work with the parties involved to
congider options for resolving the problem. The initial solution may be to make sure that the parties involved
no longer work together on matters where one is able to influence the other or take action for the other. Matters
such as hiring, firing, promotions, performance management, compensation decisions, financial transactions,
etc. are examples of situations that may require reallocation of duties to avoid any actual or perceived reward
or disadvantage.

8. In some cases, other measures may be necessary such as transfer to other positions or departments.
9. Refusal of reasonable alternative positions, if available, will be deemed a voluntary resignation.

10, Continued failure to work with the Employer to resolve such a situation in a mutually agreeable fashion
may ultimately be deemed insubordination and therefore serve as cause for immediate termination. The
organization’s disciplinary policy will be consulted to ensure consistency, however, before any such extreme
measures are undertaken.

11. The provisions of this policy apply regardless of the sexual orientation of the parties involved.

12, Where doubts exist as to the specific meaning of the terms used above, employees shouid make judgments
on the basis of the overall spirit and intent of this policy.

13. Any employee who feels they have been disadvantaged as a result of this policy, or who believes this
policy is not being adhered to, should make their feelings known to the human resources official or other
designated individual.

EMPLOYMENT REFERENCES

To ensure that individuals who work for the Employer are well-qualified and have a strong potential to be
productive and successful, it is the policy of the Employer to check the employment references of all applicants
at the Employer’s discretion,

Employees should not, under any circumstances, provide another individual with information regarding a
current or former employee. Any employee, including Department Heads, who receives a request for
reference information should forward the request to the human resources official. Generally, unless otherwise
required by law, the Employer will only confirm employees® name, title, salary, compensation, dates of
service, reason for separation, if applicable, and specific educational or medical qualifications required for
employment. The Employer’s response to a request for reference information shall be communicated in
writing only. The Employer does not honor oral requests for employment references.

95




A current or former employee may also authorize the Employer to release additional information. Unless
otherwise required by law, the Employer will only release additional information if the current or former
employee provides authorization, in writing,

ANTI-NEPOTISM POLICY

Nepotism: the practice of giving preferential treatment to family members in areas of employment, including but
not limited to: hiring, promotion, transfer, compensation, evaluation and discipline.

The employment of relatives in the same area of the organization may cause serious conflicts and problems
with favoritism - or the perception of such - and negatively impact morale. Decisions concerning the
employment, evaluation, promotion and compensation of personnel should be based on considerations of
individual merit. It is the Township of Lower's policy to hire, promote and transfer employees based on
individual merit.

Family members for the purpose of this policy shall include: employee’s spouse or ex-spouse, children, step-
children, parents, step-parents, siblings, niece or nephew, grandparents, step-grandparents, grandchildren,
step-grandchildren, and like relations of the employee’s spouse (in-law family members).

Family members shall not directly supervise another Family Member, and shall not be directly supervised
by a Family Member.

No employee shall be involved in any part of the process of influencing or controlling the terms and
condition of another Family Member’s employment including: hiring, evaluation of work performance,
establishing or changing work assignments, making recommendations for compensation or salary adjustments,
promotions or other personnel decisions

Township employees conducting interviews for the purpose of hiring a new employee shall inquire of all
interviewees or applicants whether the individual has a Family Member that is employed hy the Township, along
with the name of the Family Member employee. This information shall be utilized to determine if hiring the
prospective employee would resuit in a violation of this policy.

Any pre-existing family relationships between employees of any Township Department that predates this
policy shall be exempt under this policy. However, if the existing employment relationship is changed so that the
conflict no longer exists, this Policy would apply in future employment decisions affecting employee Family
Members,

The Township recognizes that employee Family Member conflicts may arise when one Family Member
gains an elected office where another Family Member already is employed. In such cases, the Township Manager
may work with the Department where the conflict exists to reduce any real or perceived conflict,

The requirements set forth in this Policy may only be overturned on a case-by-case basis with the approvatl of
the Township Manager, with consent of the Lower Township Council, upon a finding that there would be no
adverse impact on the operation of the Township and/or that the greater interests of the Township would be
furthered by not following the Policy.

96




PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Employer recognizes that an employee job performance evaluation system is the basis for assisting in
employee growth and development. The Employer requires supervisors o conduct performance appraisals to
ensure that:

(1) each employee receives feedback on objectives, accomplishments, strengths, and areas for improvement;

(2) each employee receives advice from his or her supervisor on ways to improve performance and has the
chance to identify with his or her supervisor areas where greater contribution is possible, or where either feels
more development would be beneficial; and

(3) essential information is recorded concerning strengths and weaknesses of all employees in relation to
career development, including potential for advancement and suitability for other positions and training.

The performance evaluation provides the vehicle for a dialogue between the employee and the supervisor and
ensures shared expectations of the requirements for the employee's job and the employee's performance in the
job. Accordingly, the Employer will use a performance review/evaluation system for all employees.

During performance reviews, supervisors will consider, among others:

* Initiative, dependability and effort
» Knowledge of work

« Attitude and willingness

* Quantity and qualify of work

* Disciplinary record

+ Attendance and tardiness

A copy of an employee performance evaluation shall be maintained in the employee’s personnel file,

POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Employees have exactly the same right as any other citizen to join political organizations and participate in
political activities, as long as they maintain a clear separation between their official responsibilities and their
political affiliations. In accordance with State law, employees are prohibited from engaging in political
activities while performing their public duties and from using the Employer’s time, supplies or equipment in
any political activity. Political activities include, but are not limited to, advocating the election or appointment
of any candidate for office, verbally or otherwise, and soliciting funds for campaigns or campaign materials.

Additionally, State law precludes employees from directly or indirectly using their position to control or affect
the political action of another person. In accordance with the Hatch Act and Federal regulations, an employee
whose principal employment is with a program financed in whole or in part by Federal funds or loans shall
not:

* be a candidate for public office in a partisan election. (This provision does not apply to the elected head of
an executive department or an individual holding elective office, where that office is the sole employment
connection to federally funded programs.)

» use his/her official authority to influence, to interfere with or affect election results or nominations for office.

97



» directly or indirectly coerce contributions from any employee to support a political party or candidate. See
The Hatch Act, S U.S.C. § 1501 et seq.

Violations of either State or Federal laws are serious matters and such violations should not be taken lightly.
Any employee engaging in such political activities during working hours will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment. Employees who engage in political activities during their
non-working hours must not represent themselves as spokespersons for the Employer. Employees should
report any violation of this policy to their supervisor or Department Head.

SAFETY POLICY

The Employer endeavors to provide a safe and healthy work environment for all employees and shall comply
with the requirements of the Public Employees Occupational Safety and Health Act (“PEOSHA”). The
Employer is equally concerned about the safety of the public,

Consistent with this policy, employees will receive periodic safety training and will be provided with
appropriate safety equipment. Employees are responsible for observing safety rules and using available safety
devices including personal protective equipment. Failure to do so constitutes grounds for disciplinary action.

Any occupational or unsafe public condition, practice, procedure or act must be immediately reported to the
supervisor or Department Head. Any on-the-job accident or accident involving the Employer’s facilities,
equipment, or motor vehicles must also be immediately reported to the supervisor or Department Head and
the Chief Administrative Officer. Failure to do so constitutes grounds for disciplinary action. Employees are
encouraged to discuss safety concerns with supervisory personnel.

SECURITY POLICY

The Employer makes every effort to provide for employees’ safety and security while at work. The Employer,
however, does not accept responsibility for the protection of employees’ personal property. The Employer is
not liable for loss or damage to personal property.

The Employer maintains a work environment that is free of illegal drugs, alcohol, unauthorized firearms,
explosives, or other improper materials, To this end, the Employer prohibits the possession, transfer, sale, or
use of such materials on its premises. The Employer requires the cooperation of all employees in
administering this policy. Desks, lockers, other storage devices, and Employer vehicles may be provided for
the convenience of employees, but remain the sole property of the Employer. Accordingly, they, as well as
any articles found within them, can be inspected by any agent or representative of the Employer at any time,
either with or without prior notice. The Employer may conduct video surveillance of Employer property to,
among other things, identify safety concerns, detect theft, and discourage or prevent acts of harassment and
workplace violence. Additionally, the Employer may monitor employee e-mails.

Security is everyone’s responsibility. If any employee sees or suspects that an individual is breaching security,
it is the employee’s responsibility to notify his or her supervisor or Department Head immediately. In the
event a serious incident occurs, employees must report it to their Department Head promptly. The following
are examples of serious incidents that should be reported immediately:

1. Any accident which results in the injury of a third party while on the premises.
2. Any incident in which physical force is either used by or against an employee.

98




3. Any incident which involves a crime, or an attempt to commit a crime, such as robbery or the theft of
money.

4. Any incident in which a serious unfavorable reaction from the public might be expected.
5. The loss of Employer keys.

6. Any other incident, which an employee believes is of a nature that it should be brought to the attention of
the Department Head without delay.

Employees are encouraged to make any reports, in writing, so that they may be properly addressed by the
Employer,

STATE RESIDENCY REQUIREMENT

Every employee shall have his/her principal place of residence in the State of New Jersey. New hires shall
have one year from the time of taking office, employment or position to satisfy the requirement of principal
residency. Failure to satisfy this requirement shall render the employee unqualified for holding office,
employment or position with the Employer,

If, however, an employee holds an office, employment, or position with the Employer as of Sept. 1, of 2011
(the effective date of P.1..2011, ¢.70), but does not have his or her principal residence in this State on that
effective date, he/shall will not be subject to the residency requirement while that employee continues to hold
office, employment, or position without a break in public service of greater than seven (7) days.

POLICY FOR USE OF EMPLOYER VEHICLES (NON-LAW ENFORCEMENT)

The Employer owns and maintains a fleet of vehicles ("Employer Vehicles") that are used in furtherance of
the business of the Employer. The following policy governs the use of all Employer Vehicles (with the
exception of vehicles utilized for law enforcement purposes), and supersedes all other vehicle policies
previously in effect. Any employee violating the provisions contained herein will be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Violations of this
policy may also result in the denial of indemnification and/or defense by the Employer to the employee in any
civil or criminal matter brought in any Court arising from improper use of an Employer vehicle. The Employer
also expressly reserves its right to seek indemmification and/or contribution from employees (including their
personal automobile insurance policies) found to have acted in violation of this policy to the maximum extent
permitted by law, Personal use of Township vehicles is strictly prohibited.

Driving Privileges and Licensure. The use of an Employer Vehicle by an employee is subject to the approval
and discretion of the Chief Administrative Officer. Any employee operating an Employer Vehicle must have,
in his or her possession, a valid driver's license issued by a state regulatory body within the United States.
Licenses issued by any territory or possession of the United States, the District of Columbia, or any
international agency (including any province of the Dominion of Canada) must be expressly approved by the
Employer’s insurance carrier before an employee will be permitted to operate an Employer Vehicle.

A. Employees are required to file a copy of a valid driver's license with the Employer prior to the use of an
Employer Vehicle.

1. Upon request, an employee must provide a copy of their driver’s license or other required documents
within twenty-four (24) hours of said request.
99




2. Employees shall inform the Employer within twenty-four (24) hours of any changes in the status of
their driving privileges.

3, Failure to comply with the requirements of this section will result in an immediate suspension of an
employee's privilege to operate an Employer vehicle and may also result in the denial of
indemnification and/or defense by the Employer to the employee in any civil or criminal matter
brought in any Court arising from the use of an Employer vehicle while said employee's driving
privileges were suspended or revoked.

B. The Employer reserves the right to obtain a driving abstract record from the New Jersey Motor Vehicle
Service Commission or other regulatory and law enforcement agencies.

1. The Employer reserves the right to suspend an employee's Employer driving privileges if the
Employer deems necessary based on the employee's driving record.

2. The Employer shall utilize information obtained pursuant to this section only for the purposes of
farthering the objectives of this Policy and for no other reason, and will not reveal personal or other
information contained in an employee's driving abstract record to any party except where required by
applicable law.

C. The Employer occasionally offers safe driving courses and reserves the right to compel employee
attendance at such courses.

D. If requested by the Chief Administrative Officer or human resources official, the employee must agree to
consent to a simulated road test to determine his/her fitness to safely operate a vehicle.

E. In the event that the employee is under the influence of any medication (prescribed or over-the-counter)
that might impair his/her ability to safely operate a vehicle, he/she must refrain from driving until he/she
notifies the Employer and await clearance to resume driving.

Official Use Only, The use of Employer Vehicles is restricted to official Employer business only. Employees
shall not be permitted to use Employer vehicles for travel or activity unrelated to Employer business.
Likewise, no supervisor may authorize such use or any use of an Employer Vehicle for other than Employer
business or use which is otherwise inconsistent with this policy.

Employer Vehicles assigned to employees under this policy are to be operated only by the employee while
acting within the scope of their employment. No employee shall authorize or permit any other non-Employer
employee, including but not limited to family members of the employee, to operate or ride as a passenger in
an assigned Employer Vehicle, unless said passengers are assisting in the official business of the Employer.

Accidents and Incidents. Prior to operation of any Employer vehicle, employees must consult their
Department Head as to the appropriate steps to take if they become involved in an accident (filling out accident
reports, obtaining witness names, etc.)

A. In the event of an incident or accident involving the use of an Employer Vehicle, employees must
immediately contact their supervisor and/or Department Head. All required reports and documentation
must be submitted to the Chief Administrative Officer within two (2) business days of receipt.

B. An employee may be required to submit to an alcohol or drug screening test following an accident
or incident if there is a reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee’s use of drugs or alcohol may

100




have contributed to the cause of the accident or as otherwise required by law or other policy of the
Employer.

Citations and Violations. Operators of Employer Vehicles are expected to follow all laws, regulations and
rules proscribed by the Motor Vehicle Commission. Drivers are responsible for paying any moving violation
tickets and MUST notify the Employer of said violations within forty-eight (48) hours of receipt of said ticket
(regardless of the employee's decision to contest such ticket in municipal court). Drivers are responsible for
paying all parking tickets incurred. The Employer should be notified of the receipt of a parking ticket within
48 hours of receipt of said ticket.

Drivers are responsible for all "Notice of Delinquent Toll Payment Violations™ (including but not limited to
EZ-Pass), Upon having been notified of said violation, either by direct mail or notice from the Employer, an
employee shall, within ten (10) business days of such notice, provide acceptable proof to the Employer that
the outstanding toll and any related fees have been paid.

General Policies and Procedures. Employees authorized to use an Employer Vehicle for official business
must adhere to the policies and procedures set forth in this Policy. Failure to comply with the provisions
below will result in a loss of privileges:

A. Drivers must ensure that all required documents (driver's license, LD. badge/card, registration,
insurance card) are in their possession while operating the vehicle. Vehicle registration and insurance
cards should be kept in a locked compartment of the vehicle when not in use.

B. Employees assigned exclusive use of an Employer Vehicle are responsible for scheduling all repairs
and manufacturer recommended maintenance with the Employer, in order to maintain all
manufacturers' warranties (including routine oil changes).

C. Vehicles are to be kept clean at all times, and should be washed and vacuumed regularly (unless

prohibited by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection or other similar regulatory
body).

D. No smoking is allowed in Employer Vehicles at any time.

E. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 39:4-97.3 and any other applicable statutes and regulations, the use of
hand-held phones or electronic devices (BlackBerry, navigation systems, etc...) while driving
Employer Vehicles is prohibited, This prohibition includes the sending or reading of e-mails, text
messages and other similar communications.

F. All occupants must wear seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in use and observe all road safe
rules and regulations, such as "Wipers On, Lights On.”

G. Employees are expected to operate vehicles in a safe and courteous manner at all times and are
expressly reminded to avoid tailgating or other unsafe practices.

H. Employees are reminded of the risks inherent from driving while drowsy. In the event that a driver
becomes tired while operating a vehicle, they should pull off the road and seek appropriate assistance.

Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including the suspension of the employee’s

privilege to operate an Employer Vehicle and/or termination.

TRANSITIONAL DUTY POLICY
101




1. Purpose: To establish guidelines and procedures for transitional duty work assignments to employees
who are recovering and recuperating from a work-related injury or illness, with temporary physical work
restrictions or limitations, as diagnosed by a treating physician. Transitional duty assignments are temporary
in nature.

2. Policy and Benefits: According to a report authored by the American College of Occupational and
Environment al Medicine, unnecessary, prolonged work absence can cause significant harm to a worker's
well-being. Workers who are on extended disability often lose social relationships with co-workers, as well
as the self -respect and self-esteem that comes from earning a living. For many workers, their job is part of
their identity, and being kept away by iliness or injury is a very stressful experience. By allowing a more
accelerated return to work and more significant support during recovery, tfransitional duty programs can help
employees reduce the stress and disruption that injuries or illness cause in their daily lives, leading to better
recovery, Transitional Duty programs offer time-limited, modified and meaningful work assignments to
employees who, due to an on the job injury or illness, have been rendered temporarily incapable of meeting
the physical demands of their usual duties, These assignments are modified to accommodate the physical
limitations imposed by injury or illness, as determined by medical professionals involved in the care of the
worker.

The Employer is committed to providing opportunities for employees who have been injured on the job to
return to the workforce as soon as possible. The Employer views the Transitional Duty Program as a
partnership with the employees who have been injured, with the sole objective of enhancing the recovery of
employees to facilitate their return to work in their previous position as soon as possible.

The Employer will make every effort on a case by case basis to accommodate an employee under the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) absent an undue hardship by the Employer.

Benefits of an effective transitional duty program include:

¢ Greater control and monitoring of worker's compensation claims, and an increased
chance for a positive resolution of those claims.

¢ Retaining the services of trained and valuable employees.
¢ Avoidance of replacement and {raining costs of hiring a new employee.

o Faster recovery by injured employees, both physically and psychologically.
¢ Discouragement of fraudulent claims.
» Enhancement of employee morale.

o Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) by accommodating
disabilities and avoiding costly and unnecessary lawsuit s.

o Identification of cross-training opportunities.

o Enhanced awareness of safe work practices and injury prevention.

3. Definitions:

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): Federal legislation passed in 1990 that prohibits discrimination
against people with disabilities. The ADA makes it unlawful to discriminate against a disabled person in terms
of employment opportunities, access to transportation, public accommodations, communications, and
government activities. The law prohibits state and local governments from discriminating against the disabled.
Employers are required to make reasonable accommodations in order for a disabled person to perform their
job function.

102



Fair Labor Standards Act (FL.SA): Federal legislation enacted in 1938, and subsequently amended, setting
forth the standards for minimum wage requirements, overtime payments, necessary recordkeeping provisions,
and child labor in the U.S,, which affect those employees working both on a full- time and part-time basis in
the federal, state, and local government as weil.

Functional Capacity Evaluation (FCE): A series of tests used to evaluate an injured employee's work-
related physical abilities. A functional capacity evaluation is designed to be safe and to provide impartial
information about an injury or illness. The tests in an FCE are performed by an evaluator certified to conduct
these examinations.

Injured Worker (IW): Anemployee (including persons on probationary, regular, casual or temporary status)
of the Employer who, due to an on the job injury or illness, has been rendered temporarily incapable of meeting
the physical demands of their usual duties

Job Bank: A listing of the job assignments available to injured employees under the Transitional Duty
Program compiled, update and maintained by, the Transitional Duty Coordinator. The assignments may be in
ANY department of the Employer, and not necessarily in the department where the injured employee works

typically.

Maximum Medical Improvement (MMI): The point at which the Treating Physician determines that (1) the
condition resulting from the injury or illness is stable, (2) additional medical treatment or physical therapy
will not improve the patient's condition or (3) the patient has reached the medical plateau of recovery.

Meaningful Work: Work assigned under the transitional duty program which in the judgment of the
Employer, has a serious, meaningful or useful quality and purpose. A written description of the work to be
performed and the expected outcome shall be provided to each employee assigned meaningful work.

Nurse Case Manager (NCM): The medical professional assigned to each worket's compensation case who,
along with the Treating Physician, works with the employee and the Employer in directing the care of the
injured employee.

Transitional Duty Assignment: A temporary work assignment that does not exceed an employee's medical
work restrictions during a period of recovery from a work-related injury or illness. A transitional duty
assignment does not evolve at any time into a permanent position, and the injured employee is returned to
work on a regular full-time basis as soon as possible.

Transitional Duty Program Coordinator (IDC): An employee of the Employer who has been duly
assigned the responsibility of managing and directing the Transitional Duty Program by the Chief
Administrative Officer or governing body of the Employer.

Treating Physician (TPJ): The authorized medical professional assigned to each worker's compensation case
by the Employer’s insurance professionals who, along with the Nurse Case Manager, works with the employee
and the Employer in directing the care of the injured employee. The Treating Physician is ultimately
responsible for recommending an injured employee's ability to return to work under the transitional duty
policy, and what restrictions should be imposed.

4. Transitional Duty Program Guidelines:

The Employer has established the following guidelines for the Transitional Duty Program:

103




a. Transitional Duty assignments are temporary in nature, and made at the sole discretion of the
Employer Transitional Duty Coordinator (TDC).

b, In order for transitional duty to be offered to an employee, the employee must be qualified to
perform the transitional duty assignment. If the employee is not qualified to perform the assignment (or cannot
be trained by the Employer to perform the assignment), the transitional duty assignment may be refused by
the Employer.

c. Transitional Duty is temporary, lasting no more than 90 calendar days, This time frame may
be extended at the sole discretion of the Employer Transitional Duty Coordinator (TDC). (NOTE: THE
TYPICAL RANGE IS FROM 45 TO 90 DAYS FOR THE INITIAL ASSIGNMENT, WHICH MAY BE
EXTENDED)

d. All employees who are receiving Workers’” Compensation indemnity payments and
working Transitional Duty assignments must follow the restrictions imposed by the Treating Physician
(TP) while engaging in all activities. PLEASE NOTE: It is recommended that local units seek the advice
of their municipal attorney or labor counsel prior to seeking to bar injured workers who are receiving
indemnity payments from engaging in outside employment.

e. The Transitional Duty policy does not affect the rights and privileges of employees under the
provisions of the, Fair Labor Standards Act OR Americans with Disabilities Act or other federal or state law
or regulations.

f. Refusal of a transitional duty assignment may adversely affect the employee's worker's
compensation temporary disability benefits. ‘

g As long as the assignment involves "meaningful work" (as defined herein), and it falls within
the physical restrictions established by the medical professionals, the employees may be assigned transitional
duty work in ANY department of the Employer.

h. Employees shall follow the policy of the Employer regarding time off to attend medical
appointments and physical therapy sessions which have been scheduled by the Nurse Case Manager. However,
the employee is responsible for notifying the Employer when they are unable to report to their transitional
duty assignment due to a scheduled medical appointment.

i. Transitional duty assignments are not guaranteed. Each assignment is reviewed on a case by
case basis in accordance with the procedure set forth herein.

] The Employer reserves the right at any tinie to request a functional capacity evaluation (FCE)
of the injured employee to determine their fitness for assignment.

' Employees will be paid in accordance with applicable policies, salary ordinances, and
collective bargaining agreements while on Transitional Duty. Employees patticipating in Transitional Duty
agsignments shall receive the full salary as long as they are working a full work day. (NOTE: THE
EMPLOYER WILL DETERMINE IF THIS PROVISION IS APPLICABLE. TYPICALLY, THE
EMPLOYER WILL PAY THE INJURED WORKER THE BALANCE OF HIS/HER FULL SALARY,

LESS THE AMOUNT OF TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY BENEFITS PAID IF THE WORKER
104




PARTICPATES IN THE TD PROGRAM.) All overtime assignments must be approved in advance by the
department head, and must be in accordance with the transitional duty assignment and limitations set forth by
the Treating Physician.

L. The employee's time card or work hours shall be maintained by the department to which the
employee is regularly assigned.

5. Creation of the Job Bank:

In order to set up the "Job Bank," the Transitional Duty Coordinator (TDC) will contact all of the department
heads in Employer, and encourage each to fill out the Form found in the Appendix entitled, "Possible
Transitional Duty Assignments." Based on the input from Department Heads, the TDC will establish a "Job
Bank," which will be used for the assignments under the Transitional Duty program, The TDC will update the
Job Bank assignments as frequently as necessary. In addition, the TDC will collaborate with the Nurse Case
Manager assigned to the Employer, and formulate brief job descriptions for each of the assignments, including
any medical restrictions that may be accommodated (i.e. standing, sitting, lifting, driving, bending, etc.).

6. Transitional Duty Program Procedure:

Transitional duty assignments are the collective responsibility of the employer, (specifically the Transitional
Duty Coordinator), along with the Claims Administrator, Treating Physician and Nurse Case Manager. The
Transitional Duty Coordinator shall pay particular attention to the following:

e The TDC will make assignments with the goal of returning the employee to full duty as soon as
possible. This may require the adjustment or modification of duties in the assignment as the employee's
medical condition progresses (or regresses).

¢ The TDC shall maintain the confidentiality of all medical information related to the transitional duty
assignments. Only individuals with an administrative "Need to Know" shall be included in discussions
on transitional duty,

s The TDC shall contact upper management and the Claims Administrator if he or she becomes aware
that an injured employee may have permanent medical restrictions. Permanent restrictions must be
treated differently than temporary restrictions, and must be evaluated in accordance with possible
implications under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

The Transitional Duty assignment process is as follows:

A, An initial medical assessment of the injured employee is completed by the Treating Physician in order
to determine (1) the work restrictions imposed, and (2) the estimated duration of the recovery period. The
results of the written medical assessment are provided to the Nurse Case Manager for review. The Nurse Case
Manager will consult the Treating Physician if any clarification is necessary. The Employer will maintain an
updated copy of all job descriptions and will forward job descriptions to the Nurse Case Manager for review
as part of the assessment process.

B. The NCM will contact the TDC to discuss the results of the initial medical assessment, and whether
or not the injured employee is a candidate for a Temporary Duty assignment, and, if so, what Temporary Duty
assignments are available. The TDC will consider the employee's skills, knowledge, abilities, risks (if any) to
the motoring public or other employees, in addition to the physical limitations set forth by the TP. The
foilowing skills may be necessary to participate in a transitional duty assignment:

105



Sit or stand for some tasks

Understand and follow directions and procedures

Accept direction and function cooperatively

Communicate effectively and coherently using telephone, or when initiating or responding to
verbal communication

Read and understand documents

f.  Exercise independent judgment.

ae o

o

If the injured employee is not a candidate for an assignment, the NCM will review the case after each medical
appointment with the Treating Physician to determine if the injured worker's status has changed, and if so, the
NCM will contact the TDC,

It is extremely important for the TDC to communicate with the NCM regarding the employee's disposition
relative to a Temporary Duty assignment.

C. If a work assighment is available, prior to an assignment, the injured worker will meet with the TDC
to go over the work assignment, what the expectations are, and any other concerns the injured worker may
have. If necessary, the TDC shall arrange for training for the IW. During that meeting, the IW will be given
the Letter Offering Transitional Duty Assignment. The IW will be asked to sign the letter acknowledging
his/her acceptance OR rejection of the work assignment, If the W declines the assignment, he/she will be
directed to state the reasons in writing on the letter, and the TDC shall notify the IW that failure to accept the
TD assignment may adversely affect his/her ability to collect worker s’ compensation temporary disability
benefits. If the injured worker's objection is based on a disagreement with the Treating Physician's or Nurse
Case Manager's work-related restrictions, the TDC shall discuss the case with the NCM and, if necessary the
TP, prior to making a final decision. The decision of the TDC will be final, and shall be communicated to the
IW and NCM.

D. The TDC will review ALL assignments in 14 day intervals, and, if necessary meet with the injured
worker. The NCM shall update the TDC on the employee's medical status after each medical visit. If it appears
as if the ITW will not be able to return to work after the initial 60 fo 90 day (NOTE: CHOICE OF THE
EMPLOYER) limit, the TDC will consult with the NCM, and, if necessary, the TP, to determine whether the
assignment should be continued until the employee reaches maximum medical improvement (MMI) OR until
the employee can return te work to his/her former position without restrictions.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

Employees including Township officials must conduct business according to the highest ethical standards of
public service. Employees are expected to devote their best efforts to the interests of the Township. Violations
of this policy will result in appropriate discipline including termination.

The Township recognizes the right of employees to engage in outside activities that are private nature and
unrelated to Township business. However, business dealings that appear to create a conflict between the
employee and the Township's interests are unlawful under the New Jersey Local Government Ethics Act, Under
the Act, certain employees and officials are required to annually file with the Township Clerk a state mandated
disclosure ferm. The Township Clerk will notify employees and Township officials subject to the filing
requirements of the Act. '

A potential or actual conflict of interest occurs whenever an employee including a Township official isin a
position to influence a Township decision that may result in a personal gain for the employee or an immediate
relative including a spouse or significant other, child, parent, stepchild, sibling, grandparents, daughter-in-law,

106




son-in-law, grandchildren, niece, nephew, uncle, aunt, or any person related by blood or marriage residing in an
employee’s household. Employees are required to disclose possible conflicts so that the Township may assess
and prevent potential conflicts. If there are any questions whether an action or proposed course of conduct
would create a conflict of interest, immediately contact the Manager or the Township Solicitor to obtain
clarification.

Employees are allowed to hold outside employment as long as it does not interfere with their Township
responsibilities. Employees are prohibited from engaging in outside employment activities while on the job or
using Township time, supplies or equipment in the outside emiployment activities, The Manager may request
employees to restrict outside employment if the quality of Township work diminishes. Any employees who
holds an interest in, or is employed by, any business doing business with the Township must submit a written
notice of these outside interests to the Manager.

Employees may not accept donations, gratuities, contributions or gifts that could be interpreted to affect their
Township duties. Under no circumstances accept donations, gratuities, contributions or gifts from a vendor
doing business with or seeking to do business with the Township or any person or firm seeking to influence
Township decisions. Meals and other entertainment valued in excess of $5.00 are also prohibited. Employees
are required to report to the Manager any offer of a donation, gratuity, contribution or gift including meals and
entertainment that is in violation of this policy.

JOB DESCRIPTION POLICY

A job description including qualifications shall be maintained for each position pursuant to New Jersey
Department of Personnel guidelines. job titles are based on job qualifications, level of responsibility, difficulty,
working conditions, skill, hazard, and amount of supervision required for the specific job title. Job
specifications are used to describe examples of work for a particular title that are for illustrative purposes only
and include a descriptive summary of duties and responsibilities of the position.

Job specifications are distributed to new employees or whenever there is a change in title. Since the job
specifications do not describe ali duties performed, assignments of specific duties are the responsibility of the
supervisor. Copies of job specifications are available upon request

NO SMOKING POLICY

The New Jersey Legislature has declared that in all governmental buildings the rights of non- smokers to
breathe clean air supersedes the rights of smokers. In accordance with State law, the Township has adopted a
smoke-free policy for ali buildings. Township facilities shall be smoke- free and no employee or visitor wilf be
permitted to smoke anywhere in Township buildings. Employees are permitted o smoke only cutside
Township buildings and such locations as not to allow the re-entry of smoke into building entrances. Smoking
inside vehicles owned by the Township and near equipment that may be sensitive to smoke is also prohibited.
This policy shall be strictly enforced and any employee found in violation will be subject to disciplinary action.

VIDEO SURVEILLANCE

The Township may install video surveillance camera systems within public buildings and throughout public
areas within the Township, primarily as visual deterrents of criminal behavior and for the protection of
employees and municipal assets. In implementing these video camera systems, the Township will ensure
compliance with federal, state and local laws governing such usage.

107



The Township's video surveillance camera systems are a significant tool to which the employees of the
Township will avail themselves in order to complete the goals and objectives of the Township. Employees are
only permitted to use the video surveillance camera systems for a legitimate purpose and with proper
authorization. The Manager's designee will be responsible for authorization of users. The improper use of these
systems can result in discipline up te and including termination.

No employee is permitted to view, continually watch, search, copy or otherwise use one of the Township's
video surveillance camera systems or tamper with access, archive, alter, add to, or make copies of any data that
has been recorded and stored within any of these systems without a specific legitimate purpose and {2)
permission form the Township Manager.

The Manager shall designate a person to be responsible for the maintenance and administration of the video
surveillance camera system. Such designee will be responsible for maintaining a user access log detailing the
date and name of individuals who view/access a stored recording.

Any employee who becomes aware of any unauthorized disclosure of a video record in a contravention of this
policy and/or a potential privacy breach has the responsibility to ensure that the Township Manager is
immediately informed of such breach.

The bulletin boards located in the Township administrative building and other facilities are intended for official
notices regarding policies, procedures, meetings and special events. Only personnel authorized by the Manager
may post, remove, or alter any notice,

EMPLOYMENT APPLICATION FORM POLICY

The Township will provide a standardize employment application to be utilized for all job applicants. The
Township considers applicants for all positions without regard to race, color, religion, creed, gender national
* origin, age, disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, or any other legally protected status.

The Township relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment application. A Background
check is mandatory upon offer of employment for all positions, Any misrepresentations, falsifications, or
material omissions in any of this information or data may result in the exclusion of the individual from further
consideration for employment or, if the person has been hired, termination of employment.

TRAINING/EDUCATION/TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

The Township will provide training to all employees in the proper use and safety of any equipment required in
the performance of job duties. The Township encourages employees to attend seminars, conferences and
courses providing information and instruction relative to the performance of duties including administrative
and statutory requirements. The employee must receive approval from the department head prior to
submitting an application to attend any aforementioned program, The “Seminar/Conference Request” form
must be submitted prior to commitment. Said form must be approved by the Department Head and the
Township Manager

The Township will pay for the cost of approved program fees subject to available budget appropriations. Use of
a Township vehicle for transportation to an approved program is allowed, with prior approval.
Reimbursement for travel expense is available for the following:

¢ Mileage - when personal vehicle is used, at the current IRS rate, with mileage worksheet
e Tolls -amount paid, with receipt

¢ Parking - amount paid, with receipt

e Meals - up to the following amounts:

108




o $7.00 breakfast, with detailed receipt -for classes which require overnight accommodations
only:

o $10.00 lunch, with detailed receipt -

o $17.00 dinner, with detailed receipt ~ when class is scheduled for 8 hours or more out of
County for classes which require overnight accommodations only

Overnight accommodations may be reimbursed in certain circumstances, with prior approval from the
Township Manager. All reimbursements are subject to available budget appropriations and prior approvatl
from the department head.

Payment to eligible employees for approved college credits is covered in the collective bargaining
agreement(s), if applicable.

Township sponsored and required training shall generally be arranged during regularly scheduled work hours.
A departinent head may change the standard work hours to accommodate or require attendance at such
training activities.

Such required training shall be recorded as "training" time worked.

When Training for a certification or other training in addition to required training, at a college or certified
training facility that requires payment for said training, it shall be the responsibility of the Township Employee
receiving the training to complete the course with a passing grade. If the employee does not receive a passing
grade, it is the responsibility of the employee to reimburse the Township for all costs associated with the
training unless their direct Supervisor and the Township Manager have agreed to an exception. (10/01/2007)

For fraining/educational programs that are sponsored by someone other than the Township, an application is
submitted to the department head for approval. It is the responsibility of the department head to determine
adequate budget appropriations, personnel scheduling and appropriateness of program content when
authorizing application. If application is approved, a requisition is submitted by the department head to
appropriate the funds necessary to pay program fees. The purchase order is signed by the Treasurer and the
Township Manager and returned to the department. The application may then be sent to the appropriate
vendor.

The Township will permit employees attending authorized training/educational programs to count those hours
as "training" time worked.

If overtime is earned due to training, the employee should notify the department head as soon as possible.
Every effort should be made to use the time earned prior to the end of that pay period.

For reimbursement of travel expenses, submit a completed reimbursement worksheet signed by the
department head along with receipts and a completed requisition.

RESIGNATION POLICY

An employee who intends to resign must notify the Department Head in writing at least two weeks in advance,
After giving notice of resignation, employees are expected to assist their supervisor and co-employees by
providing information concerning their current projects and help in the training of a replacement. During the
last two weeks, the employee may not use paid time off except paid holidays. The payroll department will
prepare an Employee Action form showing any pay or other money owed the employee. The Manager or
his/her designee will conduct a confidential exit interview to discuss benefits including COBRA options,
appropriate retirement issues and pay due. A COBRA notification letter will be sent to the employee's home
address. The exit interview will also include an open discussion with the employee. On the iast day of work, and
prior to receiving the final paycheck, the employee must return the Employee Identification Card, all keys and

109




equipment. At this time, the employee will sign the termination memo designating all money owed and this
memo will be retained in the official personnel file.

RETIREMENT POLICY

Under State law, all employees must enroll in the New Jersey Public Retirement System, DCRP or the Police and
Fire Fighters Retirement System as applicable. The employee’s contribution to the Plan will be deducted from
the employee's pay. An employee who has completed the required number of years and who has reached the
required age under the Plan may retire hy notifying the Department Head in writing. The State retirement
plans request six months advance notice to process the application. After giving notice of retirement,
employees are expected to assist their supervisor and co-employees by providing information concerning their
current prejects and help in the training of a replacement. The Payroll Department will prepare an Employee
Action form showing any pay or other money owed the employee. The Township Manager, or his designee, will
conduct a confidential exit interview to discuss benefits including COBRA options, appropriate retirement
issues and pay due. A COBRA notification letter will be sent to the employee’s home address. The exit interview
will also include an open discussion with the employee. On the last day of work, and prior to receiving the final
paycheck, the employee must return the Employee Identification Card, all keys and equipment. At this time, the
employee will sign the termination memo designating all money owed and this memo will be retained in the
official personnel file.

OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT PROCEDURE CONCERNING PERSONNEL MATTERS (RICE
NOTICE)

Discussions by the governing body of the Township of Lower concerning appointment, termination, terms and
conditions of employment, performance evaluation, promotion or discipline of any current or prospective
officer or employeeshall be in closed session unless the individual requests in writing that the discussion be
held in open session. Such request must be granted. Prior to the discussion by the governing body of the
Township of Lower concerning such matters, the Clerk shall notify the affected person(s) of the meeting date,
time and place, the matters to be discussed and the person’s right to request that the discussion occur in open
session. In the event more than one persen is affected by the discussion and one of the affected persons does
not request that the discussion be in open session, then the discussion shall be in closed session. If the
individual(s) does not request that the discussion be held in open session, the governing body of the Township
of Lower may at its sole discretion invite the affected individual(s) to attend the applicable portion of the closed
session.

110




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER
NOTICE OF PERSONNEL DISCUSSION

RICE NOTICE

To:

Address:

This is to notify you, pursuant to the Open Public Meeting Act, that the (body name) plans to discuss the subject
matter(s) checked below relating to your employment.

¢ Application for Employment
¢ Promotion or Transfer
Compensation

Performance Evaluation
Special Leave Request
Grievance

» Discipline

e Possible Termination

e Other(Specify}):

The discussion will take place at the following meeting(s}:

Date of Meeting(s):

Time:

Location:

The discussion will be in closed session, not open to the public, unless before the meeting the Township, the
Township Clerk receives a request, in writing, in which you ask that the discussion be held in public, If the
discussion will affect other employees or potential employees, it may be closed to the public unless all such
affected persons submit such signed requests. You are not required to attend this meeting.

Notice Dale:

Signed: Date:

111




INITIAL EMPLOYMENT PERIOD PROCEDURE

Except where State Requirements direct otherwise, new employees {or present employees transferring to new
positions) will be hired subject to a three month working {(provisional) test period specified in the Employee
Evaluation Policy. The working test period shall begin on the date of regular employment. During the working
test period, an employee shall perform the duties of the title for which appointment was made with training
and guidance from the supervisor. At the end of the working test period, the supervisor will conduct an
employee evaluation. New employees may be discharged at any time during this period if the Township
Manager concludes that the employee is not progressing or performing satisfactorily.

112



LIGHTNING AWARENESS SAFETY PROGRAM

Purpose

To reduce the risks of outdoor employees to lightning exposure while working in the field. Jobsite
safety and that of the employees of the Township of Lower are addressed through education,
affirmative weather planning, and the active use of available weather monitoring technology and
devices.

Scope

This written program identifies policies and practices that apply to all employees and all facilities
owned or operated by the Township of Lower, with a special focus on outdoor workers.

Training

Lightning Safety awareness training will be provided within two weeks of the date of hire for all
outdoor personnel and must be repeated if there are any changes to the workplace, methods,
technology, or devices.

In the absence of a triggered mandatory update training, refresher training in lighting safety shall
occur annually at the end of the first quarter of the calendar year to coincide with the historic high
lightning incidence summer moiths.

Initial and refresher training in lightning Safety is mandated for all job assignments with primary
outdoor job functions to include all directly ascending organizational chart supervisory levels of
outdoor employees, - :

Policies and Practices

Personnel will continue to use their senses and will take cover whenever lightning and or thunder is
observed.

Sensars are a supplement to personal visual and auditory observations as the initial geographic
lightning strike in each area cannot be predicted by any available technology.

Crew leader and/or individual shall check the daily weather forecast for lightning and note the time
of the forecast.

Crew leader and/ or individual shall anticipate forecast weather and determine a plan to seek cover in
advance.

The Crew leader and/or individual will use the smartphone lightning app set at a 10-mile radius.
Crews will use the vehicle mounted device when present, in all excavating equipment set at a 10- mile
radius.

Work shall resume 30 minutes after the last lightning strike warning within a 10-mile radius.

For further information, please refer to the Lightning Awareness Safety Program.

113




EMERGENCY ACTION & FIRE PREVENTION PLAN

Purpose

New Jersey public employee occupational safety and health (PEOSH) requires each facility to
maintain an Emergency Action Plan (EAP) under 406CFR 1910.38. This EAP must be in writing and
must at a minimum, contain the following:

»

Procedures for reporting a fire or other emergency.
Procedures for emergency evacuation, including type of evacuation and exit route assignment.

Procedures to be followed by employees who remain to operate critical plant operations
before they evacuate.

Procedures to account for all employees after evacuation.
Procedures to be followed by employees performing rescue or medical duties

The name or job title of every employee who may be contacted by employees who need more
information about the plan or an explanation of their duties under the plan.

Employees will be instructed in evacuation procedures and of the provisions if this emergency
action plan when they are first assigned, when an employee's responsibilities under the plan
change, or when the plan itself changes.

Emergencies require the participation of all staff, with certain responsibilities assigned to ensure
smooth operations. Everyone must be familiar with emergency operations. The plan shall be
readily available, posted/kept in Lower Township. Lowe Township anticipated emergencies may
arise from the following

¢ Fire

¢ Severe storm/natural disaster
¢ Manmade disaster

e Workplace Violence

e Terrorism

As a result, Lower Township designed an EAP to attempt to consider all possible emergency
scenarios and plan accordingly.

For more information, please refer to The Emergency Action & Fire Prevention Plan

114




LEAVE REQUEST

LOWER TOWNSHIP
LEAVE REQUEST/REPORT

HAME
DAYE: TYPE OF AEQUESTIREPORT

VACATION LEAVE REQUEST [ SICK LEAVE REPORT 'l
TOTAL TIME: SPECIAL LEAVE REQUEST [ LINE OF DUTY INJURY ]
START: END: RETURN TO WORK DATE: SHIFT:
KMONTH S M IT W [T |F |8 8§ (M IT |WIT IF |8
HOURS
HOURS
HOURS
REASON FOR SPECIAL LEAVE: PERSONAL DA OTHERLJ
EXPLANATION:
EMPLOYEE SEGMNATURE: RECOMMEND APPROVAL

APPROVALIDISAPPROVAL
DISAPPROVAL

COMMENTE:

Addest to Employee’s Record |

Bt Leeee Roquest

115




Name; Date of Request:

Depariment:

Seminar/Conference Name: Dates: From to

Location: Number of Work Days out of the Office

My attendance at this seminar/conference will benefit the Township in the following manner:

Seminar/Conference Cost: Budget Appropriation:

Township Vehicle Requested: Yes No

ANY ADDITIONAL COSTS MUST BE APPROVED BY TOWNSHIP MANAGER PRIOR TO COMMITMENT

** Training Request: Name ¢f Class Date:

Location of Class:
** Training will be covered per the Personnel Policy

| acknowledge that | am voluntarily attending this seminar for information gathering and educational
training. | will not receive any overtime compensation or additional days off for my attendance. |also
acknowledge that any Training Request will be covered per the Personnel Policy

Employee Signature:

Department Head Signature Approved Not Approved

Manager Signature: Approved Not Approved
116




CONSCIENTIOUS EMPLOYEE PROTECTION ACT

_Conscientious Emp!oyee Protectlo 1 Act

_ “Whistleblower

Employer retaliatery action; protected employee actions; employee responsibilities

1.

2,

New Jersay law prohiits an emplayer from taking any retaliatory action against en amplayee bacauaa tha employes
does any of the following:

6. Dieclosea, or thraaians ta disclosa, 1o a supenvizor of fo a public body an activity, policy of practies of the
amployar or another employer, with whomm there is a buaineas ralationahip, that the smployes reasonably halleves:
iain viola!mn_o! a law, or a nils or regulation jzsued wnder the law, or, in the case of an employss who ia a
liceneed of certified health care profesalonal, reasonably belisves conatittes improper guality of patient cars;

b. Providea information to, or featifies before, any public body conducting an Inveatigation, hearing or inguiry into any
vialation of law. or a nile of regulation issuad unde! the law by the employer or another employer, with whom there
is o businass relationahip, or, in the case of an employsa wha ia a licensed of certified health cars profezsional,
provides infomation ip, of testifies before, any public body conducting an inveatigation, hearing or inguiry into
quality of patient cara; of '

e. Providaa information involving daception of, or mizrepresentation to, any shareholdes, investos, clisnt, patiant,
cuatomer, amplayea, former employse, retitee or pansioner of the employer of eny govemnmeantal entity,

d. Provides information regarding any perceived criminal or raudulent sotivity, poliey o1 praciice of daception or
misrepraseniation which the amployes reasonably believes may detioud any sharaholder, inveslor, clisnt, patisnl,
customer, employea, formar employes, retites or pensionsr of the employer or any govémmanial entity, '

a. Objeets to, of reluses o participaie in, any antivity, policy of practica which tho employee (easonably belisves;
(1.)' is in violation of @ law, of @ rule of reguiation issued undsr the faw or, if the emiployes is a feensad or
certified health care professional, constitutea improper quality of patisnl care;
{2) ia fraudulent or eriminal; of

" {8) la Incompatible with a cleai mandate of public poficy concerning the public health, acfety or watfare of
pratection of the swironmant. NJS.A_ 34193

The protection against retaliation, when a disclosure Iz mads 1o a public body, doss not apply unieas the employes
husg brought the astivity, palicy or practics to the attention of a auparvizor of the employee by writtan notice and given
the smplayer & reasanshle opportunily ta cowect tha activity, policy or prastice. Howsver, disclosure s not required
whera the smployes reasonably believes that the antivity, poficy or practice is known to ona of more auperviaors of
ths emplayer ot where the employee faara physical haim az a resuli of the disclosure, provided that the situaton ia
emsrgency in nature,

CONTACT INFORMATION

Your employer has designated the folfoving contact parson
1o recaive written nofications, pursiiant to pasagraph 2 ahove {N.J.S.A. 34:18-4)
Michael Laffey

Name:
ZEWrHayEhoTe Rd

Addreas:

Villas, NJ 082514
Talephone Number;_609-886-2005 ext, (33

This notice must be consplcuously displayed.

Once aach year, smpkyers with 10 or more employaes must distibute notice of this law 1o thair amployeas,
H you naed this document in a lunguage other than English or Spaniah, plense call 609-202-7832.

ABLETH (AR

117




FAMILY LEAVE INSURANCE

New Jersey law provides up to 6 waeoks of family leave insurance banefits. Beginning July 1, 2020, the law will
afiow up to 12 weaka of continuous family leave or 56 days of intermittent Ieave. Employess who are coverad by
family leave insurance can apply for banafits to:
» bond with a child within 12 months of the child’s birth or placement by adoption or foster care. The
applicant, or the applicant's spouse or domastic or civil union partner, muat be the chitd’s biologital,
adoptive or foster parant, unless a surrogate camed the child,

« care for & family membsr with a serious health condition. Suppaning documentation from a health care
provider is mandatory.

+ care for a victim of domestic violence or a saxually violent offence of for a victim's family member.

“Farmnily member® means a child, parent, parent-in-faw, sibling, grandparent, grandchild; spouss, domastic

partner, civil unfon panner, and any other parson related by blood to the amployea or with whom the

employes has a close association that is the equivalant of a family relationship.

“Child” means o biological, adoptad, or foster chitd, stepchild or legal ward of a parent. A child gained by way

of a valid writtan contract between the parent and o sunrogate (gestational camier) is includad in this definition.

State Family Leave Insurance Plan (“state plan”)

You can get program information and an application for family leave bensfits (form FL-1} onlina at
mylsavebsnefits.n.gav, by phone at 603-292-7060, or by mail: Division of Family Leave Insurance, PO. Box
887, Tronton, NJ 08625-0387.

New mothers who receiva temporary disability benefits through the state plan for their pregnancy will get
instructions on how to Kie for family leave benefits after the child is bom.

Private Family Leave Insurance Plan {"private plan®)

An employer may provide family leave insurance through a private Insuranice carier, i this Division opproves the
plan. if your employer has an appraved private plan, your employer must provids information about coverage
and provids the forms to apply for benefits.

Who pays for Femily Leave Insurance?

Payroll contributions from employess finance this program. Family lsave insurance coverage under the state
plan will require contributions to be deducted from employee wages. The deductions must be noted on the
employes's pay envelope, paycheck, or on soma other form of notice. In 2018, tha taxable wage base for family
{oava insurance benefits is the same as the taxable waga base for unemployment and tamporary disabifity

insurance.
Enforead y: N Departmant ot Labor and Workiores Developrnent HE® JEHSEY PEPAATUERT of
Division of Temporary Disalitity Insurance, PO Box BS7, Trenfon, M. G85626-0387
This and other required employer posIErs are avaialne ree onling al nf greaviabor, of from
the Ofkce of Constituent Reiations, PO Bex 110, Trenton, NJ 08826-0410 » 8DD-777-8200.

The New Jersey Department of Laber and Workiornce Development 5 an equal ooy ‘
enpicyer with &l OPpOrtunily Frograms. Awdlary akis and sarvices re avalable upon LERAD m’“ﬁ‘*““{)‘“‘"’
request t0 individuals with disablities. ) nj.-gow anor

Display this poster in a conspicitous place PR32 (4115)

118



GENDER EQUALITY

Right to be Free of Gender Inequity

or Bias in Pay, Compensation, Benefits
or Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

New Jersey and federal laws prohibit employers from discriminating against an individual with
respect to hisfher pay, compensalion, benefils, or terms, conditlons or privilages of employment
because of the individual's sex.

FEDERAL LAW

Tithe Vil of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibils ernployment disciimination based on, among ather things,
an individual's sex. Tetle Vi claims must be filed with the United States Equal Employment Cpportunity
Commission (EEOC) belote they can be brought in court. Remedies under Tiile VIEmay include an order
restzaining unlawiul discrimination, back pay, and compensatory and punitive damages.

The Equal Pay Act of 1963 (EPA) prohibits discrimination in compénsation based on sex. EPA claims can be
filed either with the EEOC or directly with the cout. Remadies under the EPA may include the amount of the
salary or wages due l[rom the employer, plus an additiona) equal amount as liquidated damages.

Please be mindful that in order for a disparity in compensation based on sex to be actionable under the EPA,
it must be for equal work on jobs the performance of which requlres equal skill, effort, and tesponsibility, and
which are performed under simila working conditions.

There ate atict time limits for filing charges of employment discrimination. For fuither information, contact the
EEQC at 80{-669-4000 o7 &t vAYW EEOC GOV,

NEW JERSEY 1 AW

The New Jeisey Law Against Discrimination (LAD} prohibits employment discrimination based on, among other
things, an individual's sex. LAD claims can be fled with the New Jersey Division on Civil Rights (NJDCR} ot
directly in court, Remedies under the LAD may inclide an ordes restraining unlawiul disciimination, back pay,
and compensatory and punitive damages.

Another State law, N.LB.A 34:11-56.1 et seq., prohibits disctimination in the rate or msthed of payment of
wages to an employee because of his of her sex. Claims under this wage discrimination law may be filed with
the New Jersey Departmant ol Labor and Workforce Development (NJDLWD) or directly in cowit. Remedies
under this law may include the full amount of the salary or wages owed, plus an additional equal amount as
liquidated damagas.

Please be mindiul thal under the State wage discrimination law a difierential in pay between employees based
on a reasonable factor ot factors other than sex shall not constitute discrimination.

Thete ate slrict time limits for filing charges of employment discrimination. For mors information regarding LAD
clalms, contact the NJDCR at §09-202-4605 or at www.nicivilrights.goy. For information concermning N.J.B.A.
34-11-56.1 et seq., contact the Divislon of Wage and Hour Compliance within the NJDLWD at-609-292-2305 or

at . &1

This notice must be conspicuously displayed.

HFW ZEAREY EERAR THERT OF

ND

AR ML CRRE TR OF TV 0P REHE

AD-Z00 (1114) Hj.goev/itabor

119




EMPLOYER OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN AND REPORT RECORDS

New .J:e:'rs'__ey 'Dépértment of Labor énd_Workforce Deveiopm_ent

Chapter 194, Laws of New Jersey, 2009, Relating to

Employer Obligation to' Maintain _a_nd_fRe_zport: _R_eco_rds

Wage Payment Law (N.J.S.A, 34:11---4.1 et seq.) and Wage
and Hour Law (N.J.S.A. 34:11---56a et seq.]

Each employer must keep a record of each employee which contains the following information:

The name of the employee;

. The address of the employee;

. The birth date of the employee if the employee is under the age of 18;

. The total hours worked by the employee each day and each workweek;

. The earnings of each employee, including the regular hourly wage, gross to net amounts with itemized

deductions, and the basis on which wages are paid;

6. Regarding each employee who receives gratuities, the total gratuities received by the employee during the
payroll week;

7. Regarding each employee who receives gratuities, daily or weekly reports completed by the employee containing
the following information: (a) the employee’s name, {b} the employee’s address, (c) the employee’s social
security number, {d} the name and address of the employer,

8. The calendar day or week covered by the report, and (f) the total amount of gratuities received; and

9. Regarding each employee for whom the employer claims credit for food or lodging as a cash substitute for the

employee who receives food or lodging supplied by the employer, information substantiating the cost of

furnishing such food or lodgings, including but not limited to the nature and amount of any expenditures entering
into the computation of the fair value of the food or lodging and the date required to compute the amount of the
depreciated investmaent in any assets allocable to the furnishing of the lodgings, including the date of acquisition
or construction, the original cost, the rate of depreciation and the total amount of accumulated depreciation on
such assets.

The employer may use any system of time keeping provided that it is a complete, true and accurate record.

The employer must keep the wage and hour records described above for a period of six years.

The employer must keep the wage and hour records described above at the place of employment or in a central office
In New lersey.

Prevalling Wage Act (N.J.S.A. 34:11--56.25 et seq.)

The Prevailing Wage Act applies to employers only under certain circumstances.

Specifically, it applies only when an employer enters into a contract in excess of the prevailing wage contract
threshold amount for any public work {as the term “public work” is defined at N.1.S.A. 34:11---56.26) to which any

120




public body is a party or for public work to be done on a property or premises owned by a public body or leased or to
be leased by a public body.

Fach public works contractor must submit to the public body or lessor which contracted for the public works project a
certified payroll record containing the following employee information:

Name;

Address;

Social security number;

Craft or trade;

Actual hourly rate of pay;

Actual daily, overtime and weekly hours worked in each craft or trade;
Gross pay;

{temized deductions;

. Net pay paid to the employee;

10. Any fringe benefits paid to approved plans, funds or programs on behaif of the employee; and
11. Fringe benefits paid in cash to the employee.

W No R LN

Each public works contractor must, within 10 days of payment of wages, submit the certified payroll record to the
public body or the lessor which contracted for the public works project.

Each public works contractor which employs one or more apprentices on a public works project must maintain with
its records written evidence that the apprentice or apprentices are registered in an approved apprenticeship program
while performing work on the project.

Unemployment Compensation Law (NJ.S.A. 43:21-—1 et seq.),
TemporaryDisability Benefits Law(N.J.5.A.43:21---25etseq.)and

Family Leave insurance Benefits Law, P.L. 2008, c. 17.

Payroll records: Each employing unit must maintain a record for each worker engaged in employment, which record
must contain the following information about the worker:

1. Fuli name, address and social security number;

2. Total remuneration paid in each pay period showing separately cash, including commissions and bonuses; the
cash value of all compensation in any medium other than cash; gratuities received regularly in the course of
employment if reported by the employee, or if not so reported, the minimum wage rate prescribed under
applicable laws of this State or of the United States, or the amount of remuneration actually received by the
employee, whichever is higher, and service charges collected by the employer and distributed to workers in lisu
of gratuities and tips;

3. Anentry under the heading “special payments” of the amount of any special payments, such as bonuses and

gifts, which have been paid during the pay period but which relate to employment in a prior period. The

following shall be shown separately under this heading: cash payments, cash value of other remuneration, the
nature of such payments, the period during which the services were performed for which special payments were
payable;

The date hired, rehired and returned to work after temporary layoff;

The date separated from employment and the reason for separation;

Such Information as may be necessary to determine remuneration on a calendar week basis; and

The number of base weeks {as the term “base week” is defined in N.L.S.A. 43:21---19(t)} and wages.

Noe e

121




Ali records referred to in 1. through 7. above must be kept safe and readily accessible at the New Jersey place of
business of the employing unit,

Al records referred to in 1. through 7. above must be retained for the current calendar year and for the four
preceding calendar years.

Once an employer becomes inactive, the employer must keep all records referred to in 1. through 7. above for the
subsequent six quarters.

Wage reporting: Each employer {other than employers of domestic service workers) must electronically file a WR---30,
“Employer Report of Wages Paid,” with the Division of Revenue, within the Department of the Treasury, within 30
days after the end of each quarter. The WR---30 lists the name, social security number and wages paid to each
employee and the number of base weeks worked by the employee during the calendar quarter.

Each employer of domestic service workers {as the term “domestic service worker” is defined at N.JL.A.C. 12:16---
13.7{b}} must file an annual, rather than quarterly, WR---30 with the Division of Revenue, within the Department of the
Treasury.

Contribution reporting: Each employer {other than employers of domestic service workers) must electronically file an
NJ---927, “Employer’s Quarterly Report,” with the Division of Revenue, within the Department of the Treasury, and

remit the corresponding unemployment insurance, supplemental workforce fund, workforce development partnership
fund, temporary disability insurance and family leave insurance contribution payments, within 30 days after the end of
each quarter. The NJ---927 lists the total of all wages paid, the wages paid in excess of the taxable maximum, the
taxable wages on which contributions are due, the number of workers employed during the pay period, the number of
workars insured under a “private plan” for temporary disability insurance and the number of workers insured under a
“private plan” for family leave insurance.

Each employer of domestic service workers {as the term “domestic service worker” is defined in N.J.A.C. 12:16---
13.11(c)) must file an annual, rather than quarterly, NJ---927H, “Domestic Employer’s Annual Report,” with the Division
of Revenue, within the Department of the Treasury.

Temporary Disability Insurance and Family Leave Insurance information: Each employer must retain all records
pertaining to any election to discontinue a private plan for temporary disability insurance and/or family leave
Insurance benefits and must make such records available for inspection by the Division of Temporary Disability
Insurance for a one---year period from the date that the private plan is terminated.

Each employer having a private plan for tempaorary disability insurance and/or family leave insurance must, within 10
days after the Division of Temporary Disability Insurance has mailed the employer a request for information with
respect to a period of disability, furnish the Division with any information requested or known to the employer which
may bear upon the eligibility of the claimant.

Each employer having two or mare approved private plans in effect during a calendar half---year or any portion thereof
must, on or before the 301" day following the close of the calendar half---year, file a report showing the amount of
taxable wages paid during such calendar half--year to empioyees while covered under each such private plan,

Each employer who provides temporary disahility insurance to its employees through a self-—insured private plan
must, forthe six---month periods ending June 30 and December 31 of each calendar year during which the self--insured
private plan is in effect, file a statement with the Division of Temporary Disability Insurance, on or before the 30" day
following the end of the respective six---month period showing:

1. The number of claims received during the six---month period,

122




2. Thenumber of claims accepted during the six-—-month period,

The amount of benefits paid during the six---month period, and

4. Such other information as the Division of Temporary Disability Insurance may require with respect to the
financial ability of the self---insurerto meet the self---Insured’s obligations under the plan.

w

On or before the 30t day following the close of each calendar year during which a self-—insured private plan for
temporary disability insurance is in effect, the employer must file a report with the Division of Temporary Disability
insurance showing:

12, The amount of funds available at the beginning of that year for payment of disability benefits,
13. The amount contributed by workers during that year,

14. The amount contributed by the employer during that year,

15. The amount of disability benefits paid during that year,

16. Direct cost of administration of the plan during that year, and

17. The number of employees covered by the plan as of December 31.

Each employer who provides family leave insurance to its employees through a self---insured private plan must for the
one---year period ending December 31 of each calendar year during which a self---insured private plan is in effect file a
statement with the Division of Temporary Disability Insurance, on or before the 30t day following the end of the one—
year period showing the following information with regard to each of the following types of claims: care of a sick  child,
care of a sick spouse, care of a sick domaestic partnier, care of a sick civil union partner, care of a sick parent, bonding by
biclogical parent with a newborn child, bonding by domestic parther or civil union partner of biological parent witha
newborn child, bonding by Individual with newly adopted child:

The number of claims for family leave insurance benefits received during the one—year period,

The number of claims for family leave insurance benefits accepted during the one---year period,

The number of workers who received family leave insurance benefits during the one---year period,

The amount of family leave insurance benefits paid during the one---year period,

The average weekly family leave insurance benefit during the one---year period,

The amount of sick leave, vacation leave or other fully paid time, which resulted in reduced benefit duration

during the one---year period,

7. With regard solely to family leave insurance benefit claims to care for sick family members, the amount of
intermittent family leave insurance henefits paid during the one-—year period, and

8. The average duration of family leave insurance benefits, in days, during the one---year period.

I o

The information reported in 1. through 8. above must be broken down by sex and by age group, beginning at 25 years
and under and increasing in increments of 10

On or before the 30t day following the close of each calendar year during which a self-—insured private plan for family
leave insurance is in effect, the emplover must file a report with the Division of Temporary Disahility Insurance
showing:

The amount of funds available at the beginning of that year for payment of family leave insurance benefits,
The amount contributed by workers during that year,

The direct cost of administration of the plan during that year,

The number of employees covered by the plan as of December 31, and

Such other information as the Division of Temporary Disability Insurance may require with respect to the
financial abllity of the self-—-insurer to meet the self--insured’s obligation under the plan.

RN

123




Workers’ Compensation Law (N.J.S.A, 34:15---1 et seq.)

tpon the happening of an accident or the occurrence of any occupational disease, an employer who has insurance
coverage or utilizes a third---party administrator shall promptly furnish the insurance carrier or the third---party
administrator with accident or occupational disease information.

Within three weeks after an accident or upon knowledge of the occurrence of an occupational disease, every
insurance carrier, third---party administrator, statutory non-—-insured employer, including the State, counties,
municipalities and school districts, and duly authorized self-—insured employer not utilizing a third-—party administrator
must file a report designated as “first notice of accident” in electronic data interchange media with the Division of
Workers’ Compensation through the Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau in a format prescribed hy the
Compensation Rating and Inspection Bureau. When filed by an insurance carrier or third---party administrator, the
report must also be sent to the employer. If the employer disagrees with the report, the employer may prepare and
sign an amended report and file the amended report with the insurance carrier or third—party administrator, The
amended report must then be filed electronically with the Division through the Compensation Rating and Inspection
Bureau.

Every insurance carrier providing workers’ compensation insurance and every workers’ compensation self-—insured
employer shall designate a contact person who is responsible for responding to issues concerning medical and
temporary disability benefits where no claim petition has been filed or where a claim petition has not been answered.
The full name, telephone number, mailing address, email address and fax number of the contact person must be
submitted to the Division of Workers’ Compensation utilizing the Division’s contact person form in the manner
instructed on the form,

Fach employer, when directed to do so by the Division of Workers” Compensation, must submit to the Division of
Workers’ Compensation copies of such medical certificates and reports as it may have on file.

Gross Income Tax Act {N.1.S.A,. 54A:1---1 et seq.)

Employer’s Quarterly Report: The Employer’s Quarterly Report, NJ---927, reports New Jersey Gross Income Tax
withheld, unemployment insurance, supplemental workforce fund, workforce development partnership fund, family
leave insurance and temporary disability insurance wage and withholding information.

Each employer is required to electronically file an Employer’s Quarterly Report, NJ---927, for each calendar quarter,
regardless of the amount of tax actually due for a particular quarter. Quarterly reports are due on the 30th day of the
month following the end of each quarter.

Employers of “domestic service workers” may report and pay New Jersey Gross Income Tax withheld on an annual,
ratherthan guarterly, basis onan Nj-—-927H.

Records to be kept: Every employer is required to keep all pertinent records avallable for inspection by authorized
representatives of the New Jersey Division of Taxation. Such records must include the following:

The amounts and dates of all wage payments subject to New Jersey Gross Income Tax;
The names, addresses and occupations of employees receiving such payments;

The periods of their employment;

Their soclal security numbers;

Their withholding exemption certificates;

The employer’s New Jersey Taxpayer tdentification Number;

Record of weekly, monthly, quarterly remittances and/or returns and annual returns filed;

No@e e wn e

124




8. The dates and amounts of payments made; and
9. Days worked Inside and cutside of New Jersey for all nonresident employees.

ContactInformation

If an employee or an employee’s authorized representative wishes to contact a State representative in order to provide
Information to or file a complaint with the representative regarding an employer’s possible faliure to meet any of the
requirements set forth above, he or she may use the following contact Information:

For possible fatlure to meet the record keeping or reporting requirements of the Wage Payment Law, Wage and Hour Law or
Prevailing Wage Act:

Phone:  609---292---2305

E-~maif; wagehour@dol.nf.gov

Mail: New lersey Departrnent of Labor and Workforce Development Divislon
of Wage and Hour Compllance ’

P.Q. Box 389

Trenton, NJ 08625—-0383

For possible failure to meet the record keeping or reporting requirements of the Unemployment Compensation Law,
Temporary Disability Benefits Law or Family Leave Insurance Benefits Law:

Phone: 609---292---2810

E--mall; emplaccts@dol.rl.gov

Mali: New fersey Department of Lahor and Workforce Development Division
of Employer Accounts

P.C. Box 947

Trenton, NJ 086250847

For possible fallure to meet the record keeping or reporting requirements of the Workers' Compensation Law: Phone:

609---292---2515
E--mall: dwc@dolnj.gov
Maik New Jersey Department of Laber and Workforce Development Blvision
of Workers’ Compensation
P.C. Box 381
Trenten, NJ 08625—0381

K

For possible failure to meet the record keeping or reporting requirements of the Gross income Tax Act: Phone:

608---292---6400
E—mall: nj.taxation@treas.state.nj.us
Mail: New Jersey Department of the Treasury
Division of Taxatlon * Information and Publications Branch
P.C. Box 281
Trenton, N} 086250281

NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF This natice must be conspicuously posted. Not fater then December
7, 2011, each employee must also be provided o written copy of the
L D notice or, for employees hired after November 7, 2011, a written
copy of the notice must be provided ot the time of the employee’s
LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMEHT ihiring. See N.LA.C. 12:2--1.3 for uiternote methods of posting and
nj.gov/iaboy distribution by electronic means.




NEW JERSEY EARNED SICK LEAVE

New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development

Notice of Employee Rights

Under New Jersey's Eamed Sick Leave Law, most employees have a right to acerue up to 40 hours of eamned siok
leave per year. Go to hifps:/nj.goviabor/ to learn which employees are covered by the law.

New employees must receive this written notice from their employer when they begln employmant, and existing
employees must recelve It by November 29, 2018, Employers must also post this notice in a conspicuous and
accessible place at all work sites, and provide copies to employees upon request.

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO EARNED SICK LEAVE.

Amount of Earned Stck Leave .

Your employer must provide up to a total of 40 hours of earned sick leave every benefit year. Your employer's beneflt year is
January 1 through December 31 :

Rate of Accrual
.

You accrue earned sick leave at the rate of 1 hour for every 30 hours worked, up to a maximum of 40 hours of leave per benefit
year. Alternatively, your employer can provide you with 40 hours of earned sick leave up front. .

Date Accrual Begins
You begin to accrue earned sick leave on October 29, 2018, or on your first day of employment, whichever is later.

Exception: If you are covered by a coliective bargaining agreement that was in effect on October 29, 2018, you begin to accrue
earned sick leave under this law beginning on the date that the agreement expires.

Date Earned Siclk Leave is Available for Use

You can begin using earned sick leave accrued under this law on February 26, 2019, or the 120th calendar day after you begin
employment, whichever is later. However, your employer can provide benefits that are more generous than those required
under the law, and can permit you to use sick leave at an earlier date.

Acceptable Reasons to Use Earned Sick Leave

s Youcan use earned sick leave to take time off from work when:

s Youneed diagnosis, care, treatment, or recovery for a *  Youneed to attend school-related conferences, meetings,
mental or physical illness, injury, or health condi- or events regarding your child's education; or to attend a
tion; or you need preventive medical care. school-related meeting regarding your child’s health,

e Youneed to care for a family member during diag- « Your emplioyer's business closes due to a public health
nosis, care, treatment, or recovery for a mental or emergency or you heed to care fora child whose school
physical illness, injury, or health condition; or your or child care provider closed due to a public health
family member needs preventive medical care. emergency. '

+ Youor a family member have been the victim of
domestic violence or sexual violence and need time
for treatment, counseling, or to prepare for legal
proceedings.

Family Members

The law recognizes the foliowing individuals as “family members:”

« Child (biological, adopted, or foster child; stepchild; . Gl‘andpérent

legal ward; child of a domestic partner or civil union « Spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partnerof an
partner) ‘ employee's parent or grandparent
«  Grandchild « Sibling of an employee's spouse, domestic partuer, or civil
.+ Sibling union partner !
« Spouse ‘ « Any other individual related by blood to the employee
= Domestic partner or civil union partner e Any individual whose close association with the employee
« Parent ) is the equivalent of family

126



Advance Notice

If your need for earned sick leave is foreseeable (can be planned in advance), your employer can require
up to 7 days’ advance notice of your intention to use earned sick leave. If your need for earned sick leave
is unforeseeable (cannot be planned in advance), your employer may require you to give notice as soon
as it is practical.

Documentation

Your employer can require reasonabie documentation if you use earned sick leave on 3 or more
consecutive work days, or on certain dates specified by the employer. The law prohibits employers from
requiring your health care provider to specify the medical reason for your leave.

Unused Sick Leave

Up to 40 hours of unused earned sick leave can be carried over into the next benefit year. However, your
employer is only required to let you use up to 40 hours of leave per henefit year. Alternatively, your
employer can offer to purchase your unused earned sick leave at the end of the benefit year.

You Have a Right to be Free from Retaliation for Using Earned Sick Leave

Your employer cannot retaliate against you for:

¢ Requesting and using earned sick leave

¢ Filing a complaint for alieged violations of the law

¢ Communicating with any person, including co-workers, about any violation of the law
e Participating in an investigation regarding an alleged vioclation of the law, and

¢ Informing another person of that person's potential rights under the law. -

Retaliation includes any threat, discipline, discharge, demotion, suspension, or reduction in hours, or
any other adverse employment action against you for exercising or attempting to exercise any right
guaranteed under the law.

You Have a Right to File a Complaint

You can file a complaint with the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development online at
nj.gov/labor/wagehour/complint/filing_ wage_claim.html

or by calling 609-292-2305 between the hours of 8:30 am. and 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
Keep a copy of this notice and all documents that show your amount of sick leave accrual and usage.
You have a right to be given this notice in English and, if available, your primary language.

For more information visit the website of the Department of Labor and Workforce Development:
nj.gov/labor.

Enforced by: N] Department of Labor and Workforce Development
Division of Wage and Hour Compliance, PO Box 389, Trenton, Nj 08625-0389 » 609-292-2305

This and other required employer posters are available {ree online at njgov/labor, or from the Office of Constituent
Relations, PO Box 110, Trenton, NJ 08625-0110 « 609-777-3200.

If you need this document in Braitle or large print, call 609-292-2305, TTY users can contact this department through
the New Jersey Relay: 7-1-1.

128




WORKER’'S COMPENSATION

What is Wackers’ Compenaatipn?

Workere' Compenaation iz o gystem arentad by
the Hew Jermey Legitinnume thot provides henefim
to workers vhd are imured of who sontract on
accupaiohal diceste whie working. Tha bensfite
include medioal oare, temparary dieablity pay-
mente, &nd oompanubon foz o tenutting per-
manent disabiisy. Inthe svent of the daath of an
injured worker, bensiie /e anab!e ia the famiy
tha worker. Bensfita may untasnily
or Hmay be necassary to npp?y to the Workere"
Compentation Courte fof rellel.

Whe is covered?

Virtualy every worer who performa sendosa for
winges i oavered by the law, tegatdiess of the
numbes of workera employed by the employer.

Undet Hew Jereny lmy, Somaetio and farm work-
&3 h1e coverdd. Howwser, workers qontldered to
b Infapendant sontractors, rather than amploy-
eEL, are not oovered.

Searmen, masitime workers, toirosd workers, ond
tedecal omployens ate dovered unde lpdstal
workem® compentation v,
What peust a workes do if infared?
TFhe worket ehould nosty the smployer ag coon op
pattible, but nat later than 8O days from the dats
of the aocldent. The natice may be given to the
supstvisol, parsorne! office, of anyons [h suthor-
ity &t the employsts place of buaiess. Hotice
nead not be In wiiting. If the worker naeda medi-
oal restment, a requett chould be made o the
smpicyer ad poon a3 postible,

What if an ezsployer refuses to provide madicad
services and/or temporury disability benefits?

The Injurad veorker ehou'd ¢eek he tervicss of an
stoimey wha vill fils & formal efaim patition and

& motian for mediea! ond temporary benelitt with
tha Diviclen of Workers' Compenantion, Atiomesya
are prohinited by law from charging a fes in ad-
vanos tor cuch esrvices. Fesa wilt bs fxad by the
court only H 6 tompeneation awntd fa mads,

Impartant: There {3 o teo-year eiatuts of limka-
tont_ A formal GfmmPam‘gon must ba fled within
o yeora of the dole of the injury or tha Inct pay-
mant of companeation, whichevet i later. Madioal
treatment awherized by the employes iz eontid-
erad o payment of compencation.

Atlantic City

Bridgeton

Camaden

L vniride Do, Rd Pl
Camde, N (133
(oo & Glonan ior crastica)

[N T s ]

Blizabeth 23 Nk Boud b, Bad L (5067 2R5042

Freehald | § e - I

Hackemsack 01) EEY

[V

133 St frrx, 2k L
Forrey G N 05R003
(s ety

Hmbrdon Hilia Fiane
1509 R 2230
Lo, M) 8231
sz, drsees W, Someesst vonesiicl]

Jassey City

201} TIT- T30

Lebanon {58) BEEEM

Me Arlingien 10V R Swe B0 (MNTRAEY
MR Ay, N3O
(Aloczis, Funcn el yppen Ve srozmicr)

Mt Holly S

Newark 434 Habrry Seroct, Ind Floor @75) HS-2E4F
e N 07308023

[l ]

Nt Brunswitk 3% feesy dwecmae
New Eraumrick, K001 250
P EATlne ety

ML)

{n oates of secupational Fnste, the Clalm Pelitien
rmuct be fited within two yeara from the dats the
werket firet baoamo mrare of the oonditon and A
re'adenthip to employment The ctatute of Emits.
tiona appliea o minore ateo.

Aninjured worker may alco fte an appheaton for
an informal hearing befote a Judgs of Compenaa-
ton. At ma informal haaring a reprezentative of
tha smploysr o the smploys:'s nturancs oarist
iz u..ual; prazent. The suggastions made by the
judge at an informal hegring are, iowever, nat
binding oo either party, The fiting of an sppioation

Medical Bruefits

A necassary medical eatmant end hospitalization
sanvdces should be provided by the emplmyed o the
mployet’s NELUANCS Catied.

mmmmmwmmmnm

for on infarmal heoring doses not elop the two-year
atatute of imitations from ruaning.

What happens after a claim is reported?

Tha employer of the smploysr's ineurance camisr
wi invasfgats the olain. I the olaimis found
compensobls, they will poy for nsostoory and
reaacnabla medios) reatment, joas of wogas
during the period of rehabiftation, and, when
doournented, bsnefds Ior peemanset dizoblity.

Within 21 daya of recelving notioa of the secigent,
tha incwrsnce correr chou'd Rle a Firet Regon of
Iniury fosm with the Divitlen. This formn gives the
Division infial information abeut the acoidant and
Imusies. Another form, oa'ed the Bubtaguent
Rsport of lnjury, musat be Wisd vih the Divizion
within 28 waeka aher the worker returng 1o work o
has repthed maximum madical brprovement. At
that time, the worker ehou'd tenel/e o letiar friom
the Inciranca oarrer explaining the benefis paid
2 date on their olaim. The in'esmation from theze
forme ha'pe tha Bhizlon enaure thot workets
recaive fair snd mely benefits for workgelated
injuries.

Can an employer lake action against a worker

{o1 Bling 4 claim?

Tha Workets' Companuation Etatule prohibits the
employer from dizcharging or dizériminaking in
any mararm ogainet on employes beoswse the
s elaimed ar aliempiad fo olakm
woﬁ'am vompeneation ban:ﬁtz, of haa texshed, of
i about fo leatlly, in a workern® compenzaion cace.

Does the Woakers' Cumpeasanan Law give
special consideration to minors?

Yaa. it a minor, emp in violaton of the Child
Labor Law, wl‘mc o disabiiy beonuze of a job-
reated infury or [inect, benefte witt ba double the
amount ordinarity tworded.

Falersam (TR TS

Patusson, KTER02H0
Patss
Toms River 4 Exx
Towna Sbrer N G ¥ 7R
[
Suacion Flaay ¢
FOB=<TR
Toentze, N} RRO3BN
Qilemey i)
}'omsm Momuon shout Workers' Consp,
s epline at gf crﬂabor
lhm dxk on Workirs Comprusation.
Nerw Jecsy Depuztmd o Laboe and Workdir Deselepiotit b
m&m mmsa.m il wxm : equert
i e T
to bndividusls with diealelices e

TIEN

Trerston (s 2005

- o
dmnotﬂxnhmdhworn;dmmgpmz rond~

she Laww see the New Jerney Wedcen Compenaatizg Act
g«’yﬂ!&l)—iﬂ;q)ummhymmm

i}mny:ﬂrglamdm“& luid?tl;n

Hdective & Pemment

D w Patil
Tai

5001)2005 0% ofvages tomuximamed 477 7

mirimram of 423 33

TONY S edwagertoruimom of 7M. A
mirmem of K112 »

570113008 0% of wages omadimumn of 4732 frer)
ririraznef 211 f3

050012 W6 edwages tomadmosn of #4513 #13
meinimvem ef

216 [0}

520112013 0% o wrages oot 06 4826 [LEY
midmom el $223 411

03701 /2014 0% eéwagrt wmaionmncl 4543 f L1
minimumcf  $23 F1]

S101 (2 X odwagss toradmumof 4533 [ Vi
minimmm o §228 [ 1))

O/ W olwaprbmadmumcE 4871 M7
mirimsen of  $2392 13

WAL N

129

hysician, 1o smpioysr rekises 1 provide
medfmlhnmhmmmkmhknu
chooie the beating phydedan. Howewor, & the case
of an emorgency, an iyured wodkar may obdain
Mmmmmummmm

y the smpiayet but e wmploy
shauld be notifisd oz 500N &S postiia concoming
¥ traetd biing racebved.

Temparary Dsa¥ility Benefits

f thate is Jost titre nhich extends bayord seven
cwlender days dus to the injury, terporery dsabiity
banefits becoma payable starting reth tha first
day fost. The benefs smanl is 7 parcsnt ot

Woakly paymants for permansnt tolal disabity
wie 70 porcent of tha groes waekly wage ol fa
¥ of the iy up to & masimom establched
annually by the Cammdssonar of Lubor and
Workfoios Davsloptnoerd.”

Perzranent tola! disability Is prosumed when the
worker has logt S0 M0 MOMHeS 0F & com-
hination of membars of the body such os eyes,
s, hands, legs o4 faet, Howmest, pammranant
Total disabity can tasul rom othad Injuries that
rendet the reotkad unesrployable.

Death Benefils

Phae o job-ratatod aocdecd of Bnecs resuls in
e workae'n dedch, beewfits are payahis to the
depanciants of the worker ks defired by the Lawe
Tha wreekly benefis payment ks 70 paroant of
wagas, b the maxirurm lotad benefit payable to
&l of the wrker's dependants cannot sxceed the
maxTum

o y astabishadd annuatly by ths Commiz-
groes vreakly yrages receivad M the Emo of the
AT, Up 10 @ pished ATy wmaltmmwwmmdwmm
by tha Commiszionss of Labot and ¥orkk A chvurion parise ond nanutsd
Davalopment dﬁimnfnmnpmtcfdsud-ﬁmmﬂd
) whstims of death arn concleively presamad o ba
Permancat Purtial Benefits dupendants.
Whon a job-talatad Inixy of Boess rests &
o ob-H iy : v Asuniving Bpéums of civiluritn pacne) and nadrnd

upan o patcsrdage of certain “scheduled” or

duled” losses. A schaduled™ boss s ons
Involving sums, honds, fingats, legs, eet, toes,
eyed, ek, of fet A ‘nonschaduled” st s one
frvolving the bady, heart, hings, ete.

Pormanest Total Benefily

Whar g job-telotud Enjury 2euits In pedmanor, ol
disuhiliy, da frjured mocdke I entitied 1o g

chdidran who weoe not & part of dacondart’s house-
ok a1 tha e of death and all othi abegad depen-
Gents {pos onts, grancarents, grandchiden, troth-
mm}mymmﬂ&p«ﬂww
wlards emak)
murdhngnollsywior.lnmmm
e age of Z3years. K achid is physicaly or mentaly
oy b i o hrhan Bersofit.

e L

fo1 430 weeks which will ba continued thetkaker
fot 15 long a5 the iotal disabity existc Homvedr,
ater tho 450 weeks, theco pdymenis are subjoct o
raduction for wages earned from smploymant.

s Surance eanter
«m&mwupnﬂjﬁnwuow
ot o job-1siated death. These funds ere payble
o whoméva! b fabla fol tha Hunerad BT, be it the
rtats of an bubvidugl,

* RETIOT Wiy tatss for the past aight yaars ara shown on tha Hevarse




RECEIPT FOR EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

[ acknowledge that [ have received a copy of the Township of Lower's Employee Handbook. I agree
to read it thoroughly. | agree that if there is any policy or provision in the Handbook that [ do not
understand, [ will seek clarification from my supervisor, Department Head or Township Manager. |
understand that this Handbook states Lower Township's personnel policies in effect on the date of
publication. [ understand that nothing contained in the Handbook may be construed as creating a
promise of future benefits or a binding contract with Lower Township for benefits or for any other
purpose. [ also understand that these policies are continually evaluated and may be amended,
modified or terminated at any time.

Please sign and date this receipt and return it to the Manager.

Signature:

Print Name:

Department;

130




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-362

Title: AUTHORIZATION FOR WAIVER OF PERMITTING FEES FOR NAVAL AIR STATION WILDWOOD
ASSOCIATED WITH THE MUSEUM EGRESS PLAN

WHEREAS, Naval Air Station Wildwood Aviation Museum, located at 500 Forrestal Road, will be
making application to the Township for minor building modifications associated with the building egress; and

WHEREAS, Naval Air Station Wildwood is a non- profit corporation and has requested the Township
waive any and all permit fees associated with the project; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council has reviewed their request and deems it appropriate to support local
charitable organizations and non-profit organizations that support and enhance the Township and its community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey that all permissible Township permit fees associated with the above project be
waived.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

RGY

COOMBS

SIPPEL

|, Karen 8. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, Slate of New Jerssy, do
hereby certify the foregoing lo be a true and sxact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Council at a
meeling held on November 3, 2025

Karen S, Fournier, Depuly Township Clerk




NAVAL AIR STATION WILDWOOD
AVIATION MUSEUM

500 FORRESTAL ROAD
CAPE MAY, NJ 08204
(609) 886-8787
(609) 886-1942FAX

WY EES TS W O

| October 24, 2025

Township Manager Michael Laffey

‘Deputy Manager Christina Lewis

Mayor Frank Sippel

Council Members: Joseph Wareham, Thomas Conrad,
Kevin Coombs, Roland Roy

2600 Bayshore Road

Villas, NJ 08251

RE: Permitting Fees Waiver Request/Museum Egress Plan

Dear Mr. Laffey,

The Board of Trustees at Naval Air Station Wildwood (NASW) Foundation, which operates the NASW Aviation

Museum at the Cape May Airport, respectfully requests a waiver for all permitting fees associated with minor
building modifications to satisfy the State of NJ Fire Marshai requirements for building egress. This project will
significantly improve the safety of staff and guests and keep the museum compliant with the state. The work

was not anticipated but is being funded entirely with NASW Foundation funds.

NASW Foundation is a 501 {c)3 non-profit organization. The organization’s mission is to restore historic Hangar
#1, memorialize the 42 naval aviators who perished while training at the site, and educate the public about
New Jersey history. Hangar #1 has become an integral part of our community and is often used by local
organizations at little or no cost. Examples of these functions include Lower Township’s Volunteer
Appreciation Day, Police Camp (Project LEAD), 9/11 Tribute, Cape May County Veteran’s Day Ceremony,
graduations, Christmas at the Hangar, and the New Jersey Run for the Fallen.

Feel free to contact us to discuss this request or let us know if we can provide further information.

Very respectfully,

Joseph E. Salvatore, MD
Chairman, NASW Foundation



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Title:

RESOLUTION #2025-363

TRANSFER OF 2025 APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-58 provides for appropriation transfers during the last two months
of the current fiscal year when it has been determined that any appropriation is insufficient to pay the
claims authorized or incurred during the current year, which are chargeable to said appropriation, and
there is an excess in any approptiation over and above the amount deemed to be necessary to fulfill its

purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower,
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, that the following transfers totaling $121,000.00 he made

between the 2025 budget appropriations:

LINE ITEM ACCT. NUMBER 70O FROM
DPW OE | 5-01-26-305-299 35,000.00
BUILDINGS & GROUNDS OE | 5-01-20-310-399 20,000.00
CONSTRUCTION OE | 5-01-22-195-299 5,000.00
CLERK SW | 5-01-20-120-101 27,000.00
ASSESSOR SW | 5-01-20-150-101 6,000.00
RECREATION AIDES SW | 5-01-28-370-111 28,000.00
BOCA SW | 5-01-22-185-101 30,000.00
MANAGER SW | 5-01-20-100-101 31,000.00
ELECTRIC OE } 5-01-31-430-299 20,000.00
GASOLINE OE | 5-01-31-460-291 40,000.00
121,000.60 121,000.00
MOTION | SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

|, Karen 8. Fournier, Daputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey,
do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Coungil

at a meeting held on November 3, 2025.

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STTE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-364

Title: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL LEVEL OF COMPENSATION FOR THE COMMISSIONERS
OF FIRE DISTRICT #1 PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88 AND LOCAL FINANCE NOTICE 2021-16

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88 and Local Finance Notice 2021-16, a Board of Fire
Commissioners for a Fire District is permitted to establish annual compensation for its fire district commissioners; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2025, the Board of Commissioners of Fire District #1 adopted Resolution

2025-14, a copy of which is annexed hereto, establishing the annual level of compensation for the commissioners of
Fire District #1; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88, the municipal governing body of the Township of Lower is
required to review and approve the proposed annual compensation for the Fire District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey, that the proposed annual compensation for the Commissioners of Fire District #1, a
copy of which is attached herefo, has been reviewed and same is hereby approved.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

f, Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resotution duly authorized by the Township Council al a meeting held on
November 3, 2025.

Karen S, Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




THE COMMISSIONERS OF FIRE DISTRICT NO.1
IN THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY

Resolution 2025-14

Establishing the Compensation for Members of the Board of Fire Commissioners

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88 provides that each member of the Board of Fire
Commissionets shall receive as compensation such amounts as the Board shall fix; and

WHEREAS, N.J.S.4. 40A:14-88 further provides that the compensation so fixed shall be
subject o review by the governing body wherein the Fire District is located; and

WHEREAS, the compensation for members of the Board is set forth in Schedule A to the
resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, be it RESOLVED by the Commissioners of Fire District No, 1 in
the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, as follows:

(1)  The Commissioners shall receive the compensatlon set forth on the attached
schedule subject to review by the governing body of the municipality.

(2) A copy of this resolution shall be forwarded to the governing body of the
municipality upon adoption,




SCHEDULR A

$5,800.00
$6,300.00

$6,300.00

William Howard President
Carrise Mornick Secretary
Linda Brannon Treasurer

Dale Gentek Commissioner
Bryan Harron Vice-Chairman

Certification 2025-14
Establising the Compensation for Members of the Board of Fire Commissioners

$5,300.00

$5,300.00

I, Carrise Mornick, Clerk of the Commissioners of Fire District No. 1 in the
Township of Lower, County of Cape May hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was

duly adopted by the Commissioners at a meeting held on _October 23, 2025.

Catrise Mornick, Cletk

The foregoing resolution was introduced by Commissioner Howard and it was
seconded by Commissioner Brannon

RECORD OF VOTE
Members HARRON BRANNON | GENTEK | MORNICK | HOWARD
Yes X X X X X
No
Not Voting

Absent




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-365

Title: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A SHARED SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER AND THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY FOR PUBLIC
SAFETY ANSWERING, DISPATCH AND RELATED SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 ef seq. {the "Act"),
authorizes local units of this State to enter into agreements with any other local unit or units to provide or receive
any service that each local unit participating in the agreement is empowered to provide or receive in its own
jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, since 2016, the County of Cape May has provided the Township of Lower with public safety
call answering and dispatch services for all calls, both emergency and non-emergency, refating to police, fire,
and emergency medical services; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Lower and the County of Cape May desire to renew their Shared Services
Agreement for the continued provision of public safety call answering and dispatch services; and

WHEREAS, the renewed Shared Service Agreement shall be effective January 1, 2026, for a term of
seven (7) years, and shall automatically renew thereafter for one (1) additional term of seven (7) years on the |
same terms and conditions set forth in the altached Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in the spirit of interlocal cooperation, and in furtherance of the principles underlying the Act,
the Parties now deem it necessary and proper to renew and memcrialize the terms, as set forth below, to outiine
their respective rights and responsibilities for the benefit of both entities, for the benefit of local and county
taxpayers, and to promote public health, safety and welfare generally; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Lower finds that continuation of this Shared Service
Agreement promotes efficiency, cost-effectiveness, and promotes the public health, safety, and general welfare
of its residents, and is in the best interests of the Township.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey, that the Shared Service Agreement attached to this Resolution between the
County of Cape May and the Township of Lower be and is hereby approved and that the proper officials of the
Township of Lower are authorized to execute said Agreement.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

ROY

COOMBS

SIPPEL

|, Karen S, Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do
hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resclution duly authorized by the Township Council at a
meeting held on November 3, 2025,

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR DISPATCH SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN THE
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY AND TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

THIS AGREEMENT is made on this day of , 2025, by and between:

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, a body corporate and politic, located in the State of New Jersey with its
principal offices located at 4 Moore Road, Cape May Coutt House, New Jersey, 08210 (hereinafter
"County"),

and

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, a municipal corporation located in the County of Cape May, State of New
Jersey, with its principal offices located at 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New Jersey, 08251 (hereinafter
"Municipality").

The County and Municipality are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties,” and singularly as a
GGParty",

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 et seq. (the "Act"),
authorizes local units of this State to enter into agreements with any other local unit or units to provide or
receive any shared service that each local unit participating in the agreement is empowered to provide or
receive in its own jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with and in furtherance of the provisions of the Act, the County has
satisfactorily provided the Municipality with public safety call answering and dispatch services for all
calls, both emergency and non-emergency, relating to Police, Fire and Emergency Medical Services for
numerous years; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter a successor Agreement in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this undertaking are set forth below; and

NOW THEREFORE, with adequate, good and valuable consideration as set forth herein and with the
Parties understanding and intending to be bound hereby agree as follows:

1. PREAMBLE. All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and incorporated herein by this
reference thercto as if fully set forth herein verbatim.

2. CONTROLLING LAW. This Agreement is governed by the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1
et seq., the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act. All actions and amendments to this
Agreement must be authorized in conformance with the Act.

3. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be for a period of seven (7) years,
commencing January 1, 2026 and terminating on Janvary 31, 2032 at 11:59pm (Term). This Agreement
shall automatically renew for one additional and successive term of seven (7) years (Renewal Term).
The Renewal Term shall be on the same terms and conditions as set forth herein unless amended in

Page 1 of 7




writing by the Partics at the end of the Term or a Renewal Term,

Parties agree to renegotiate the terms of any renewal upon request of the other at least one hund red
eighty (180) days prior to expiration of the Term or the Renewal Term.

3, SCOPE OF WORK, Commencing as of the Effective Date and during the time periods listed
below, the County shall furnish to the Municipality the following services:

a. Public safety call answering, dispatch and related services for all calls, emergency and non-
emergency, relating to Police, Fire and Emergency Medical Services (collectively referred to
herein as the “Services”) for the Municipality. Pursuant hereto, and during the Term of this
Agreement and any Renewal Terms, the County shall perform all the duties required for such
Services previously provided by personnel of the Municipality.

b. Except as otherwise provided for hetein, all Services shall be provided through County Office
of Emergency Management Communications Center, presently located at the Lower
Township Public Safety Building, 405 Breakwater Road, Exma, New Jersey 08204. All
inspection records and business dealings, related to the Services shall be maintained and
conducted at said location. The County shall be required to employ properly trained
dispatchers in its Communications Center to provide the Services set forth above. The
Services shall be provided twenty-four (24) hours a day, three hundred and sixty-five (365)
days a year. The County reserves the right to determine, in its sole discretion, the level of
staffing necessary to accomplish its responsibilities under this Agreement. The dispatchers
performing the Services set forth herein shall be under the control and direction of the County
at all times.

c. ‘The Services to be provided by the County shall be that of public safety answer, dispatch and
related services for emergency and non-emergency Police, Fire and Emergency Medical
Services calls, Such Services shall be rendered consistent with the County’s current 911 Plan,
as the same may be modified during the term of this Agreement. In the event a discrepancy
arises between this Agreement and the 911 Plan as to the manner in which services are
provided hereunder, the 911 Plan shall govern, and this Agreement shall be deemed amended
accordingly, provided that such change does not materially affect the scope of Services to be
provided pursuant hereto. In the event of a 911 Plan modification, all notifications shall be
addressed to the Cape May County Emergency Management Coordinator, the Cape May
County Office of Emergency Management Chief of Communications, the Chief of Police of
Lower Township, and the Township Manager of the Municipality (or designee) for review
and appropriate general order issuance,

4. PERSONNEL.

a. All individuals employed by the County in the Cape May County Emergency Management
Communications Center and any other individuals who are employed by the County and
Page 2 of 7



who may perform services for the Municipality pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed
to be only County employees, Nothing in this Agreement should be interpreted as forming an
employer-employee relationship between the Municipality and any of the County's officials,
employees, agents and/or servants who perform services for the Municipality pursuant to
this Agreement,

5. COMPENSATION,

a. The Municipality shall pay the County an annual sum of $499,876.73 for calendar year 2020.
The sum is based upon a price per call model that shall be adjusted annually based upon the
County’s opetating expenses and salary and wages for the Services provided herein, as well
as the average number of public safety calls received from the Municipality over the pricing
period compared to the total number of calls received by the County in the immediately
preceding year. The pricing period shall be the three years immediately preceding the
execution of this Agreement; specifically, 2023, 2024 and 2025, and thereafter, in the
immediately preceding three years.

For example, if the County’s operating expenses and salary and wages for 2025 is $100,000,
and the average calls received from the Municipality in 2023, 2024 and 2025 is ten percent
(10%) of the total calls received from all participating municipalities in 2025, the
Municipality shall be responsible to pay the County $10,000 for Services performed in 2026.
The cost for 2027 will be based upon an average of calls received from the Municipality in
2024, 2025, and 2026 compared to the total calls received from all participating
municipalities in 2026.

b. Payments shall be made in equal bi-annual installments on the first day of the fourth and
tenth month of each calendar year (i.e, April 1 and October 1) during the Term and the
Renewal Term. An estimated bill for the following year’s services will be provided to
the Municipality by October 15, A final bill for the current year’s services will be
provided to the Municipality by February 1.

¢. The County shall be solely responsible for all capital expenditures associated with providing
the Services.

6. MUTUAL.COOPERATION BETWEEN THE PARTIES. The Pattics shall utilize their best
efforts to anticipate and deal with problems or difficulties which arise during the term of the contract,
To accomplish this, during the Term and the Renewal Term(s), the County Administrator, Cape May
County Emergency Management Coordinator, the Lower Township Chief of Police, and the Township
Manager (or designees) shall meet as often as necessary (but no less than annually) to assure that the
Services are being provided in an effective and efficient manner.

7. INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE. County shall indemnify, save harmless and defend the
Municipality, its elected and appointed officials, its employees, agents, volunteers and others wotking on
behalf of the Municipality, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against any and all claims,
losses, costs, attorney’s fees, damages, or injury including death and/or property loss, expense claims or
demands arising out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in any manner by a defect in any

Page 3 of 7




equipment or materials supplied under this Agreement ot by the performance of any work or provision of
any service provided under this Agreement, including all suits or actions of every kind or description
brought against the Municipality, either individually or jointly with the County for or on account of any
damage or injury to any person or persons or property, caused or occasioned or alleged to have been
caused by, or on account of, the performance of any work or provision of any service pursuant to or in
connection with this Agreement, or through any act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault or
alleged act, omission or fault of the County, its employees, Subcontractors or agents or others under the
County’s control.

Notwithstanding the indemnification and defense obligations of the County, the County shall purchase
and maintain such insurance described herein and as is appropriate for the work and services being
performed and furnished and as will provide protection from any and all covered claims which may arise
out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in any manner from the County’s performance and
furnishing of the work and services and County’s other obligations under the Agreement, whether it is to
be performed or furnished by the County, by any subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or services, or by anyone for whose acts
any of them may be liable. The County shall be required to name the Municipality as an “Additional
Insured” on the County’s policy of general liability insurance, and simultaneously with the delivery of the
executed Agreement, the County shall provide the Municipality with a Certificate of Insutance indicating
that the insurance coverage as described herein, and as is appropriate for the work and services being
performed and furnished, has been obtained and that the Municipality has been designated as an
“Additional Insured” where required. On or before the renewal date of said policy, County shall be
required to provide the Municipality with a Certificate of Insurance indicating the continuation of
insurance coverage and designating the Municipality as an “Additional Insured”. The County shall
purchase and maintain such insurance described herein and the limits of liability for the insurance shall
provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by law:

a. Workers’ Compensation Statutory coverage and limits in compliance with the Workers’
Compensation Law of the State of New Jersey

b. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with limit coverage to afford protection in an
amount not less than Two Million ($2,000,000) Dollars combined single limit for injury or
death to any one or more persons protecting the Municipality as an additional insured against
any and all claims for personal injury, death or property damage

¢. Automobile Liability Insurance with a minimum combined single limit of liability per accident
of one million ($1,000,000) dollar* for bodily injury and property damage. This insurance
must include coverage for owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles.

Failure by the County to supply such written evidence of required insurance and to maintain same for the
duration of this contract shall result in default under this Agreement. The insurance companies for the
above coverages must be licensed by the State of New Jersey. The County shall take no action to cancel
or materially change any of the insurance required under this Agreement without the Municipality’s prior
approval, The maintenance of insurance under this section shall not relieve the County of any liability
greater than the limits or scope of the applicable insurance coverage. Each Party agrees to cooperate

Page 4 of 7



with the other in the defense of any claim or claims assessed against either or both Parties arising out
of the rendering or non-rendering of services contemplated by this Agreement.

8.  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS. The Cape May County Office of Emergency Management,
pursuant to this Agreement, shall maintain records of all call logs and activities conducted within the
Municipality as may be required by and in accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey. Each
Party shall maintain its own Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system.

9. DISPUTES. Any disputes arising between the Parties as to the interpretation of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, the satisfactory performance of services set forth in this Agreement, or
related to any of the services and other responsibilities specified within this Agreement shall be resolved
in accordance with the following:

STEP A: Township Manager or Mayor, as the case may be, and the County's
Administrator or Commissioner Director shall attempt to resolve the matter. If no
settlement is reached within a twenty (20) day petiod, the Parties agree to submit the
matter as provided for in Step B below,

STEP B: In the event that a dispute cannot be resolved as provided in Step A, then,
pursuant to N.J.S.A, 40A:65A-7(c), the dispute shall be submitted to the American
Aibitration Association for binding arbitration. Any costs associated with arbitration
shall be borne equally by the Parties.

10. TERMINATION. Except as otherwise provided herein, the rights and privileges established by
this Agreement may be terminated as follows:

a. At any time upon mutual Agreement of the Parties.

b. Upon one hundred twenty (120) days written notice before the expiration of the Term or any
Renewal Term(s).

¢. Upon thirty (30) days written notice if either Party fails to cure a default under the provisions
of this Agreement, within such thirty (30) day period, or such longer period as may be
required to diligently complete a cure commenced within that thirty (30) day period.

11. DEFAULT. In the event that either Party defaults in the performance of any of its duties or
obligations under this Agreement, after receiving written notice of same and failing to cure such default
within thirty (30) days of said written notice, or such longer period as may be required to diligently
complete a cure commenced within that thirty (30) day period, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled
to terminate this Agreement at the expiration of the thitty (30) day period.

12. NOTICES. Notices hereunder shall be given to the Parties set forth below and shall be made by
hand delivery, facsimile, overnight delivery or by regular mail. If given by regular mail, the notice
shall be deemed to have been given within a required time if deposited in the U.S, Mail, postage
prepaid, within the specified time limit. For the purpose of calculating time limits, which run from the
giving of a particular notice, the time shall be calculated from actual receipt of the notice. Time shall

Page 5 of 7



run only on business days, which for purposes of this Agreement shall be any day other than a Saturday,
Sunday or legal public holiday. Notices shall be addressed as follows:

If intended for the County, notices should be concurrently provided by one of the foregoing modes of
setvice to the County of Cape May to:

Administrator/Clerk of the Board

County of Cape May

4 Moore Road, DN 107

Cape May Court House, New Jersey 08210

County Counsel

County of Cape May

4 Moore Road, DN 104

Cape May Court House, New Jersey 08210

If intended for the Municipality, notices should be concurrently provided by one of the foregoing modes
of service to the Municipality to:

Township Manager
Township of Lower
2600 Bayshore Road
Villas, New Jersey 08251

Chief of Police

Lower Township Police Department
405 Breakwater Road

Cape May, New Jersey 08204

13. CHOICE OF LAW, Any dispute under the Agreement or related to this Agreement shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New Jersey.

14, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the Parties
and may not be changed orally, and may only be modified or amended by a wiitten statement signed by
the Parties.

15.  SEVERABILITY, If any part of this Agreement shall be held to be unenforceable or invalid the
remainder of the Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect.

16.  WAIVER. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any of the teims, covenants, or conditions
of this Agreement at any one time shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, covenant, or condition at
any one time nor shall any waivet or relinquishment of an y right or power herein at any time be deemed a
waiver or relinquishment of the same or any other right or power at any other time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the day and year first
Page 6 of 7



above writteit,

WITNESS: TOWNSHIP OF LOWER
Karen Fournier Frank Sippel,

Deputy Municipal Clerk Mayor

WITNESS: COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
Kevin Late, Leonard C. Desiderio,

Administrator/Clerk of the Board

ARROVED AS TO FORM:

Jeffrey R. Lindsay, Esquire
County Counsel

Commissioner Director

Page 7 of 7



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-366
Title: AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT OF EIGHT (8) TAX SALE CERTIFICATES

WHEREAS, the Township of Lower is the holder of eight {8) Tax Sale Cettificates all Block 806 Lot 4.01
#25-00064 (CA002); #25-00065 (CADO3); #25-00066 {CAQ04); #25-00067 (CAQ05), #25-00068 (CAGOB); #25-
00069 (CADO7); #25-00070 {CAD0B); #25-00071 (CAB09); and

WHEREAS, it is deemed financially beneficial to, and in the best interest of, the Township of Lower fo sell
or assign that tax sale certificate; and

WHEREAS, the Tax Collector mailed a nofice of the potential assignment to the property owners at the
address as it appears on the tax duplicate within five days prior to the action; and

WHEREAS, notice of the assignment will be posted in three public places within the Township of Lower
and published in the Cape May Star & Wave, within five days prior to the action as required by law.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey that the Council hereby authorizes the sale by assignment of eight (8) Tax
Certificates #-25-00064; #25-00065; #25-00066; #25-00067; #25-00068; #25-0006; #25-00070; #25-00071 each
lien in the same amount of $628.48.as shown on the schedule annexed hereto, fo:

BENJAMIN FRANKLIN CAPITAL, LLC
PO BOX 924
JACKSON, NJ 08701

For the consideration therein set forth, which sum includes the lien for unpaid subsequent taxes for the periods set
forth, all as provided for and permitted under N.J.S.A. 54:5-113.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Municipal Clerk be and are hereby authorized to
execute and deliver ali assignment forms or other legal documents necessary to effectuate the various sales
permitted by this Resclution.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

ROY

COOMBS

SIPPEL

|, Karen 8. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, Counfy of Cape May, Stale of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a frue and exact copy of a resolutior: duly authorized by the Township Council at a meeting held on
November 3, 2025,

Karen S, Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




Title: AFFIDAVIT OF ASSIGNMENT POSTING AND PUBLISHING

State of New Jersey
County of Cape May

|, Kathleen Brown, BEING DULY SWORN ACCORDING TC LAW ON MY OATH STATE:
1. 1am the Tax Collector of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey

2. A Notice of Assignment for tax tille liens #25-00064, #25-00065, #25-00066, #26-00067, #25-00068, #25-
00069, #25-00070 and #25-0007 1 was malled 1o the assessed owner, LLJ Investments NJ LLC by
certified and regular mall pre postage pald :

3. Notice of Assignment will be published in the Cape May Star and Wave, New Jersey on November 12,
2025

4, Acopy of the Notice of Sale was set up in three of the public places in Lower Township, namely:

Township of Lower Municipal Héll
2600 Bayshore Road
Villas, NJ 08251

Lower Township MUA
2900 Bayshore Road
Villas, NJ 08251

Lower Township Court
401 Breakwater Road
Cape May, NJ 08204
' — [MOASY™,
Katrigen B‘ro\&n, CTC
Township of :ower

Sworn énd subscribed to before me,
A Notary Public of New Jersey this

A8 "Day of (Jctdloi 20

Pt
Karen SFournier




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-367

Title: APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER #1 TO 10-75 EMERGENCY VEHICLES TO INSTALL
FOUR (4) TELEVISION MONITORS IN THE DRONE COMMAND CONTROL MOBILE UNIT

WHEREAS, 10-75 Emergency Vehicles was awarded on November 18, 2024 by Resolution #2024-368 for

the Qutfitting a Drone Command Control Mobile Unit in the amount of $70,614.00; and

WHEREAS, 10-75 Emergency Vehicles has provided a proposal to provide and Install Four {4) Television

Monitors in the amount of $1,082.07: and

WHEREAS, the Township Councit desires to approve Change Crder #1 and the CFC has certified the

avaitability of funds as evidenced by her signature below:

Appropriation: Ord #23-08 C-04-55-437-880

Signature;

James Craft, CFO

NCW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey that Change Order #1 aftached hereto in the net increase amount of $1,082,07 to

10-75 Emergency Vehicles is hereby approved and the contract total is now increased to $71,696.07.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN

ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

ROY

COOMBS

SIPPEL

|, Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, Stale of New Jersey, do hereby
certify the foregoing to be a frue and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Council at a meeting held on

November 3, 2025.

Karen S. Fournler, Deputy Township Clerk




1075 s nminani - CHANGE ORDER

10-75 Emergency Vehicles
14 First Ave

Unit 3 & | EMERGENCY VEHICLES Cheektowaga, NY 14212 .
Date Estimate #
Haskell, NJ 07420 Local: 716-714-9148
1-877-614-7187 10127772025 34628
Local: 973-556-5729
Customer
Township of Lower
Police Departiment
Item Description Qty Cost Totat
misc parts TCL 55-Inch Class S4 4K LED Smart TV with Google (555450G, 2023 Model} 1 533491 533497
misc paris TCL 32-Inch Class 83 1080p LED Smart TV with Google TV (325330G, 2023 Model) 3 182.86| 548.58T
By signing below you are avthorizing 10-75 Emergency Lighting to make the above stated changes lo
the conversion of the vehicle at the stated cost. Please note that change orders may delay the delivery Subtotal $1,082.07
date of the vehicle, No changes will be made until the form has been signed and sent back.
Representative Name: Sales Tax (0.0%) $0.00
Representative Signature:
Date:
$1,082.07
Check us out on the web Total

www,1075vehicles.com



TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STTE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-368

Title: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL LEVEL OF COMPENSATION FOR THE COMMISSIONERS
OF FIRE DISTRICT #3 PURSUANT TO N.J.8,A.40A:14-88 AND LOCAL FINANCE NOTICE 2021-16

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.5.A. 40A:14-88 and Locai Finance Notice 2021-16, a Board of Fire
Commissioners for a Fire District is permitted to establish annual compensation for its fire district commissioners; and

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2025, the Board of Commissioners of Fire District #3, adopted Resolution
#2025-15, a copy of which is annexed hereto, establishing the annual level of compensation for the commissioners of
Fire District #3; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88, the municipal governing body of the Township of Lower is
required to review and approve the proposed annual compensation for the Fire District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey, that the proposed annual compensation for the Commissioners of Fire District #3, a
copy of which is attached hereto, has been reviewed and same is hereby approved.

MOTION | SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD
WAREHAM
ROY
COOMBS
SIPPEL

I, Karen Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify
the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Council at a mesting held on
November 3, 2025 .

Karen Foumier, Deputy Township Clerk




THE COMMISSIONERS OF FIRE DISTRICT NO. 3
IN THE TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION # 2025-15

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF FIRE DISTRICT NO. 3, IN
ESTABLISHING THE ANNUAL LEVEL OF COMPENSATION FOR THE
COMMISSIONERS OF FIRE DISTRICT NO. 3 PURSUANT TO N.I.S.A,
40A:14-88 AND LOCAL FINANCE NOTICE 2021-16

BACKGROUND

WHEREAS, the Commissioners of Fire District No. 3, in the Township of Lower, County
of Cape May, State of New Jersey are required to annually establish and authorize the level of

- compensation for its elected Commissioners pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88 and Local Finance
Notice LFN 2021-16,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commissioners of Fire District No. 3,
in the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as follows:

L. The annual compensation for the Commissioners of Fire District No. 3 is hereby
established as set forth on Schedute “A”, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2, The Secretary shall provide a copy of this Resolution to the Lower Township
Council for their review and approval in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:14-88 and Local Finance
Notice LFN 2021-16 prior to approval of the annual budget.

3 This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption this 21 day of
October, 20235,

I hereby certify the foregoing to be the original resolution
Commissioners of Fire District No. 3 at a meeting held October 2

adOJd by the Board of

(A >
__-8teven Douglass; Aty

MOTION | SECOND | YEA NAY ABSTAIN | ABSENT
Robertson X X
G, Douglass X
S. Douglass X X
Sweeten X
Devlin X




BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

LOWER TOWNSHIP DISTRICT 3
PO BOX 162
RIO GRANDE, NJ 08242

Schedule “A” Resolution 2025-15

Commissioner {5)  $4100 each
Treasurer $2200
Secretary $1700




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
RESOLUTION #2025-369
Title: AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PAYOUT OF ACCUMULATED COMPENSATORY TIME
WHEREAS, the empioyee listed below has accrued compensatory time due from the Township
and has requested payment for this time; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to obtain authorization for any salary and wage disbursement to a
Township employee that is not specified in the salary ordinance; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Township Treasurer as evidenced by signature
that adequate funding is available for such payment in the current budget

for Salaries and Wages.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower,
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey that payment to Michael Harkin in the amount of $9,097.28 is
authorized and chargeable to the 2025 Budget account 5-01-25-240-123.

MOTION SECOND | AYE NAY RECUSE | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

CONRAD

WAREHAM

ROY

COCMBS

SIPPEL

I, Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do hereby

certify the foregoing to be a true and exact copy of a resolution duly authorized by the Township Councii at a mesting held on
November 3, 2025.

Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk




LOWER TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT

SPECIAL REPORT
TO: Chief Kevin Lewis
THRU: Sgt. Willam Barcas
FROM: Patrolman Michael Harkin #213
DATE: 10/24/2025

SUBJECT: Comp Time Buy Out

Chief,
[ 'am asking to submit this letter to payroll requesting a buy out of 250 hours accrued
comp time. Thank you in advance for your attention to this request.

Respectfully Submitted,

250 x $36.3891 = $9,097.28

Michael Harkin
Patrolman Badge 213

Eepaa R

C File

Datg .~ N
Vs - /7S Far

12/29/t & LTk, 75 T X e Coalined bge Time
1950 3/5 28 s e T cersincl flan € CaeorCons

7

0 Officer Comnunents




TOWNSHIP OF LOWER, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY
ORDINANCE #2025-22

Title: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 400, LAND DEVELOPMENT, OF THE CODE OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF LOWER

WHEREAS, Chapter 400, Land Development, of the Code of the Township of Lower regulates and limits the
uses of land, the uses and locations of buildings and structures; regulating and restricting the height and bulk of
buildings and structures determining the area of yards and other open spaces; regulating and restricting the density of
population; dividing the Township of Lower into districts for such purposes; adopling a map of said Township showing
houndaries and the classification of such districts; establishing rules, regulations and standards goveming the
subdivision of land within the Township; establishing a Planning Board and a Board of Adjustment; and prescribing
penalties for the violation of its provisions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant fo the New Jersey Municipal Land Use Law, specifically N.J.S.A. 40:55D-25 and |
N.J.S.A. 40:55D-28, the Lower Township Planning Board is vested with the authority to prepare, adopt, and amend the
Township's Master Plan and to make recommendations to the goveming body conceming amendments to the
Township's development regulations, including its Land Development Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, at its duly noticed October 16, 2025 public meeting, the Lower Township Planning Board,
reviewed and recommended certain amendments to Chapter 400, Land Development, Article I, Terminology, Section
8, Definitions, of the Code of the Township of Lower to ensure consistency, remove outdated terminology, and better
align the Township's ordinance with the goals and objectives of the Township's Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Lower has reviewed the Planning Board's
recommendations and finds that adoption of the proposed amendments Chapter 400, “Land Development,” Article |,
“Terminology, Section 8, Definitions, of the Code of the Township of Lower, as recommended by the Planning Board,
is in the best interest of the Township and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Township Council of the Township of Lower,
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey that Chapter 400, Land Development, Article II, Terminology, Section 8,
Definitions, of the Code of the Township of Lower, be and hereby is amended as foliows:

Section 1. The foliowing definitions outlined within Chapter 400, Land Development, Article Il, Terminology,
Section 8, Definitions, are hereby amended and restated as follows:

400-8 Definitions.
Accessory Building, Structure or Use

A building, structure or use which is customarily associated with and is subordinate and incidental fo
the principal building, structure or use and which is located on the same lot therewith. An accessory
buitding attached to the principal building shaft comply in all respects with the requirements applicable
to the principal building. Accessory Buildings, Structures or Use shall not exceed the height of the
Principal Structure or the Building Coverage of the Principal Structure.

Dwelling Unit

A room or series of connecting rooms designed for permanent or seasonal or temporary residency
containing any one of the following; 1. Living, 2. Cooking, 3. Sleeping. 4. Sanitary facilities, for one
housekeeping unit. The dwelling unit shall be self-contained and shall not require passing through
another dwelling unit or other indirect route(s) to get to any portion of the dwelling unit,




Section 2, All other ordinances in conflict or inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of

such conflict or inconsistency.

Section 3. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be declared
- unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remaining portions of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby and
shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provision of this Ordinance are hereby dectared to be

severable,

Section 4. This Ordinance shall become effective 20 days after final passage and publication according to law.

First Reading: November 3, 2025
Adopted:

Aftest:
Karen S. Fournier, Deputy Township Clerk

Thomas Conrad, Councilmember

Joseph Wareham, Councilmember

Roland Roy, Jr., Councilmember

Kevin Coombs, Deputy Mayor

Frank Sippel, Mayor




